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AR1ZONA STATE BoARD FOR CHARTER ScHoOLS
Renewal Summary Review

Interval Report Details Hi
Report Date: 06/11/2012 Report Type: Renewal
Charter Contract Information Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: P.L.C. Charter Schools
Charter CTDS: 07-89-07-000 Charter Entity ID: 6235
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 07/27/1998
Authorizer: ASBCS Contractual Days:
Number of Schools: 1 e Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain: 180
Charter Grade Configuration: K-8 Contract Expiration Date: 07/26/2013
FY Charter Opened: 1999 Charter Signed: 06/15/2000
Charter Granted: 06/12/2000 Corp. Commission Status Charter Holder is in Good
Standing
Corp. Commission File # 1016228-0 Corp. Type Non Profit
Corp. Commission Status 01/24/2011 Charter Enrollment Cap 1300
Date
Charter Contact Information Hide Section
Mailing Address: 2504 South 91st Avenue Website: http://www.plccharterschools.org
Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: 623-474-2120 Fax: 623-936-5337
Mission Statement: To develop and maintain a student/staff/parent/community relationship by building a
Professional Learning Community which merges Fine Arts, Academics and Life Skills.
Charter Representatives: Name: Email: FCC Expiration Date:
1.) Ms. Kimberly Steele ksteele@plccharterschools.org 03/28/2018
Academic Performance - Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain Hide Section
School Name: Arts Academy at Estrella School CTDS: 07-89-07-103
Mountain
School Entity ID: 87413 Charter Entity ID: 6235
School Status: Open School Open Date: 08/23/2005
Physical Address: 2504 South 91st Ave Website: —
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Tolleson, AZ 85353

Phone: 623-474-2120 Fax: 623-936-5337
Grade Levels Served: K-8 FY 2011 100" Day ADM: 786.5325
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
Elementary ELEM 358
2011 Performing Plus; C — — Not Met
2010 Performing Plus — — Met
2009 — Performing Plus — Yes
2008 — Performing Plus — Yes
2007 — — Performing Yes

Academic Performance - Gilbert Life Community School Hide Section
School Name: Gilbert Life Community School School CTDS: 07-89-07-102
School Entity ID: 79163 Charter Entity ID: 6235
School Status: Closed School Open Date: 08/21/2000
Physical Address: 202 S. Gilbert Rd. Website: —
Gilbert, AZ 85296
Phone: 480-833-2530 Fax: 480-964-8040
Grade Levels Served: — FY 2009 100" Day ADM: —
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
0

2009 No Data Available —
2008 No Data Available —
2007 No Data Available —

Academic Performance - Arts Academy at South Mountain Hide Section
School Name: Arts Academy at South School CTDS: 07-89-07-101
Mountain
School Entity ID: 10851 Charter Entity ID: 6235
School Status: Closed School Open Date: 07/27/1998
Physical Address: 4039 N. Raymond Street Website: —
Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone: 602-437-3927 Fax: 602-426-1342
Grade Levels Served: K-8 FY 2011 100" Day ADM: 136.4475
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
Elementary ELEM 358
2011 Performing; D — — Not Met
2010 Performing Plus - - Not Met
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2009 — Performing Plus — No
2008 — Performing — Yes
2007 — — Performing Yes

Academic Performance - Arts Academy @ Scottsdale Hide Section
School Name: Arts Academy @ Scottsdale School CTDS: 07-89-07-104
School Entity ID: 90157 Charter Entity ID: 6235
School Status: Closed School Open Date: 08/12/2009
Physical Address: 7214 E. Jenan Rd. Website: —
Scottsdale, AZ 85260
Phone: 602-437-3927 Fax: 602-426-1342
Grade Levels Served: K-4 FY 2011 100t Day ADM: 146.4825
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
Elementary 0
2011 Excelling — Met
2010 Excelling — Met
2009 — No Data Available —

Charter/Legal Compliance Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: P.L.C. Charter Schools
Charter CTDS: 07-89-07-000 Charter Entity ID: 6235
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 07/27/1998
Timely Submission of AFR  Hi ion Timely Submission of Budget Hi ion

Year Timely Year Timely

2011 Yes 2012 Yes

2010 Yes 2011 Yes

2009 Yes 2010 Yes

2008 Yes 2009 Yes

2007 Yes 2008 Yes

Audit and Fiscal Compliance Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: P.L.C. Charter Schools
Charter CTDS: 07-89-07-000 Charter Entity ID: 6235
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 07/27/1998
Timely Submission of Annual Audit Hi ion
Year Timely
2011 Yes
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2010 Yes
2009 Yes
2008 Yes
2007 Yes
FY Issue #1
2011
2010 Fingerprinting
2009
2008
2007

There were no repeat findings for fiscal years 2007 to 2011.
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Performance Management Plan (PMP)
Evaluation Instrument-Math
P.L.C. Charter Schools
Scoring Criteria and Comments

Each Performance Management Plan will be evaluated based on the inclusion of the required elements within each section. The
evaluator will make the following determination:

FULL DESCRIPTION
PARTIAL DESCRIPTION
VERY LIMITED DESCRIPTION

— The plan sufficiently addresses all of the required elements.
— The plan partially addresses the required elements.
— The plan does not address each of the required elements.

I. PLAN NARRATIVE

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

or<

Comments

A detailed description of
all efforts conducted by
the school in the past five
years that demonstrates
a concerted effort and
capacity to improve pupil
achievement.

the school's efforts for the previous five years to provide
and implement a mathematics curriculum that improves
student achievement. (Ex: Curriculum alignment,
curriculum maps, pacing guides, instructional material
adoptions, committee work, data review teams)

the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the
Arizona Academic Standards into mathematics instruction.
(Ex: Lesson plan review, formal teacher evaluations,
informal classroom observations, checklists, data review
teams)

the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting
student proficiency in mathematics. (Ex: Formative and
summative assessments, common/benchmark
assessments, articulated assessment plan, data review
teams)
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o the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a professional development plan that
supports effective implementation of a [mathematics or
reading] curriculum. (Ex: Articulated plan, literacy or math
coach support, external consultant training, data review
teams)

The description provided for the past five years lacks
detail as to how the actions taken has resulted in a
professional development plan.

VLD - The description provided does not include
continuous efforts to develop or implement a
professional development plan. OR No description
was provided.

A detailed description of
the process used for
conducting an analysis of
relevant pupil
achievement data.

o the school’s efforts for the previous five years to analyze
relevant pupil achievement data. (Ex: datawalls, data
training, data review teams)

o adetailed description of the types of data collected and the
process used in conducting the analysis of the relevant
data.

o justification of how data selected for the analysis is relevant
to improving pupil achievement.

The findings from the
data analysis.

o the school’s detailed interpretation of the findings from the
data analysis of the school’s relevant data for the previous
five years, including patterns and trends, as well as
strengths and weaknesses.

The description provided for the past five years lacks
detail regarding identified patterns and trends.

o arepresentation of the findings using charts and graphs that
are understandable to the reviewer and clearly depict the
results.

A detailed description of
how the plan that is
presented is directly
linked to the findings
from the data analysis.

o adescription of the logic used to develop the PMP that
demonstrates the connection between the findings from
the analysis of the relevant data and the plan. (Ex: What we
learned - What we are going to do with what we learned)

The description provided lacks detail regarding the
connection between the findings and the
development of the action steps in the plan.

Il. PLAN TEMPLATE

Strategy I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

One or more of the action steps provided are not
based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).

o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate,
complement and support the other strategies.
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o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide X
evidence of the implementation of each action step.
Allocated Resources o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to X

implement the action steps that support the strategies.

Strategy II: Develop and

implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into instruction.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

One or more of the action steps provided are not
based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and X
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).
o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, X
complement and support the other strategies.
o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide X
evidence of the implementation of each action step.
Allocated Resources o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to X
implement the action steps that support the strategies.
Strategy Ill: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.
Required Elements A response that meets the requirement will include: Comments
Action Steps o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings One or more of the action steps provided are not
from the analysis of relevant data. based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.
o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and X
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).
o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, X
complement and support the other strategies.
o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide X
evidence of the implementation of each action step.
Allocated Resources o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to X

implement the action steps that support the strategies.

Strategy IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the curriculum.

Required Elements

| Aresponse that meets the requirement will include:

Comments
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Action Steps

action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

One or more of the action steps provided are not
based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.

action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).

action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate,
complement and support the other strategies.

action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide
evidence of the implementation of each action step.

Allocated Resources

adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to
implement the action steps that support the strategies.
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Performance Management Plan (PMP)
Evaluation Instrument-Reading
P.L.C. Charter Schools
Scoring Criteria and Comments

Each Performance Management Plan will be evaluated based on the inclusion of the required elements within each section. The
evaluator will make the following determination:

FULL DESCRIPTION
PARTIAL DESCRIPTION
VERY LIMITED DESCRIPTION

— The plan sufficiently addresses all of the required elements.
— The plan partially addresses the required elements.
— The plan does not address each of the required elements.

I. PLAN NARRATIVE

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

or<

Comments

A detailed description of
all efforts conducted by
the school in the past five
years that demonstrates
a concerted effort and
capacity to improve pupil
achievement.

the school's efforts for the previous five years to provide
and implement a mathematics curriculum that improves
student achievement. (Ex: Curriculum alignment,
curriculum maps, pacing guides, instructional material
adoptions, committee work, data review teams)

the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the
Arizona Academic Standards into mathematics instruction.
(Ex: Lesson plan review, formal teacher evaluations,
informal classroom observations, checklists, data review
teams)

the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting
student proficiency in mathematics. (Ex: Formative and
summative assessments, common/benchmark
assessments, articulated assessment plan, data review
teams)
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o the school’s efforts for the previous five years to develop
and implement a professional development plan that
supports effective implementation of a [mathematics or
reading] curriculum. (Ex: Articulated plan, literacy or math
coach support, external consultant training, data review
teams)

The description provided for the past five years lacks
detail as to how the actions taken has resulted in a
professional development plan.

VLD - The description provided does not include
continuous efforts to develop or implement a
professional development plan. OR No description
was provided.

A detailed description of
the process used for
conducting an analysis of
relevant pupil
achievement data.

o the school’s efforts for the previous five years to analyze
relevant pupil achievement data. (Ex: datawalls, data
training, data review teams)

o adetailed description of the types of data collected and the
process used in conducting the analysis of the relevant
data.

o justification of how data selected for the analysis is relevant
to improving pupil achievement.

The findings from the
data analysis.

o the school’s detailed interpretation of the findings from the
data analysis of the school’s relevant data for the previous
five years, including patterns and trends, as well as
strengths and weaknesses.

The description provided for the past five years lacks
detail regarding identified patterns and trends.

o arepresentation of the findings using charts and graphs that
are understandable to the reviewer and clearly depict the
results.

A detailed description of
how the plan that is
presented is directly
linked to the findings
from the data analysis.

o adescription of the logic used to develop the PMP that
demonstrates the connection between the findings from
the analysis of the relevant data and the plan. (Ex: What we
learned - What we are going to do with what we learned)

The description provided lacks detail regarding the
connection between the findings and the
development of the action steps in the plan.

Il. PLAN TEMPLATE

Strategy I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

One or more of the action steps provided are not
based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).

o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate,
complement and support the other strategies.

01/07/10

Page 2 of 4






o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide X
evidence of the implementation of each action step.
Allocated Resources o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to X

implement the action steps that support the strategies.

Strategy II: Develop and

implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into instruction.

Required Elements

A response that meets the requirement will include:

Comments

Action Steps

o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

One or more of the action steps provided are not
based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.

o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and X
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).
o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, X
complement and support the other strategies.
o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide X
evidence of the implementation of each action step.
Allocated Resources o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to X
implement the action steps that support the strategies.
Strategy Ill: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.
Required Elements A response that meets the requirement will include: Comments
Action Steps o action steps for each strategy are based on the findings One or more of the action steps provided are not
from the analysis of relevant data. based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.
o action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and X
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).
o action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate, X
complement and support the other strategies.
o action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide X
evidence of the implementation of each action step.
Allocated Resources o adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to X

implement the action steps that support the strategies.

Strategy IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the curriculum.

Required Elements

| Aresponse that meets the requirement will include:

Comments
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Action Steps

action steps for each strategy are based on the findings
from the analysis of relevant data.

One or more of the action steps provided are not
based on the findings from the analysis of relevant
data.

action steps for each strategy are sequential, timely, and
contribute to the school’s ability to meet the identified end
target(s).

action steps for each strategy, to the extent appropriate,
complement and support the other strategies.

action steps for each strategy include artifacts that provide
evidence of the implementation of each action step.

Allocated Resources

adequate resources, i.e. time, money, personnel, etc. to
implement the action steps that support the strategies.
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

Introduction

PLC Charter Schools, an Arizona non-profit corporation, currently operates Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain
(AAEM) located at 2504 S. 91st Avenue in Tolleson, Arizona. AAEM is a K-8th grade elementary school which
serves approximately 880 students.

Its vision is to instill a desire in students to become life-long learners, empowered with the ability to have a
positive effect on the global community. The primary mission is to establish a Student-Family-Teacher-Civic
relationship that develops and sustains a professional learning community in which arts and technology
combined with academics and real life-skills educate and enrich the whole individual.

AAEM is committed to providing a learning environment rich in the arts, where students achieve academic and
social excellence while solving real-life problems in a cooperative manner. It is our belief every student has the
ability and right to learn. This takes place best when educators, parents, and students share a common set of
educational goals and values. Teachers provide students with educational experiences in a variety of
academic areas such as social studies, language arts, math and science. Additionally, enrichment activities
are offered such as music, art, dance performing arts, and physical education.

Integration of Arizona Academic Standards into Instruction

AAEM has strived to maintain high scholastic principles and rigor. Teachers have been required to integrate
the academic standards into lesson plans set forth by the Arizona Department of Education. During the same
academic school year, the curriculum coordinator introduced and trained the faculty on developing scope and
sequence maps, which is a snapshot of the depth and breadth of the information a teacher plans to teach
within a specific curriculum area. Creating a scope and sequence for each subject area is beneficial to the
teacher and serves as a guideline to ensure the teacher stays on track throughout each semester. Each
teacher completed a scope and sequence map for their particular grade level which integrated the Arizona
Academic Standards and was posted in the classroom. These scope and sequence maps served as the
curriculum framework for the entire school with academic skills listed throughout the year for each particular
grade level. The scope and sequence maps thus laid the foundation for the development of curriculum maps,
a process for collecting and recording curriculum-related data which identifies core skills and content taught
and instructional processes and assessments used for each subject area and grade level. Administration
required teachers in FY 2008 to develop curriculum maps with the Arizona State Standards identified for their
particular grade level and core subject. The purpose was, and still is, that curriculum maps are tools that help
teachers keep track of what State standards have been taught and what still needs to be covered.
Administration continually reviews teachers’ lesson plans, scope and sequence maps, and curriculum maps.
Constructive feedback is provided to teachers through informal meetings, observations, and evaluations as to
whether the Arizona Academic Standards are being addressed and to ensure curriculum collaboration between
grade levels. This standard teacher assessment practice has continued from FY 2008 through 2012. Teachers
and administration have analyzed AIMS data at faculty meetings to identify if students have gained proficiency
of the State’s academic standards to determine areas of weakness and strength.
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Monitoring and Documenting Student Proficiency

AAEM acknowledges the only way teachers and administration can identify which students can demonstrate
proficiency on State academic standards is if students are continuously assessed and monitored as part of the
classroom instruction. AAEM has made continual improvement in monitoring and documenting student reading
and math proficiency. In FY 2008, teachers implemented benchmark tests for students. DIBELS (Dynamic
Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills) benchmark assessments were given to K-5" grade student three times
a year (beginning, midyear, end of year) to establish a baseline of student reading proficiency level and to track
student growth. Students who were not testing at their grade level were progress monitored every three weeks
by the Reading Interventionist. This data was shared with parents and the regular classroom teacher so
reading interventions could be instituted to provide support for the child’s reading success. DIBELS has been
used since its implementation to monitor and document student reading ability levels.

In FY 2009, A+ Testing was implemented and utilized as a benchmark assessment for grades second through
eighth to track student progress in both reading and math. After numerous faculty meetings and the review of
A+ Testing, administration decided to discontinue use of A+ Testing and adopted Acuity in FY 2011 for both
math and reading. This decision was made due to Acuity’s user friendliness and real time data acquisition. The
Acuity benchmark test was administered three times during the FY 2012 for grades third through eighth to get
a snapshot of how the students might perform on AIMS. Acuity results were disseminated and evaluated by
teachers and administration to target specific areas students were still struggling in. Lesson plans were
adjusted to meet the instructional needs of the students.

Buckle Down Math, a series concentrated on essential grade-specific math skills to help students master
critical concepts to succeed on AIMS, was purchased as supplemental material in FY 2010. Buckle Down
Math has remained in place as a good indicator of monitoring and documenting student proficiency for AIMS.
In FY 2012, Buckle Down Reading, Math and Science assessments were given to second through eighth
grade students to gather more evidence on students’ proficiency levels towards performance on AIMS.

Starfall, a common core aligned language arts and reading curriculum, was adopted by kindergarten in FY
2010 for benchmark assessment while first grade continued to use teacher created grade level tests. Since FY
2008, second grade teachers utilized Stanford 10 data to document their students’ language arts proficiency
levels. Third, fourth, and fifth grade teachers used IDEAL to create tests based on the Essential Math
Concepts where the goal was for 80% student mastery. Other methods AAEM teachers have utilized to
monitor and document students’ progress include:

e Understanding and articulating in advance of teaching the achievement targets that their students are to hit.

e Informing their students of learning goals, in terms students understand, at the very beginning of the teaching
and learning process.

¢ Becoming assessment literate and thus able to transform their expectations into assessment exercises and
scoring procedures that accurately reflect student achievement.
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e Translating classroom assessment results into frequent descriptive feedback (versus judgmental feedback)
for students, providing them with specific insights as to how to improve.

e Continuously adjusting instruction based on the results of classroom assessments.

e Engaging students in regular self-assessment, with standards held constant so that students can watch
themselves grow over time and thus feel in charge of their own success.

e Actively involving students in communicating with their teacher and their families about their achievement
status and improvement.

Professional Development

AAEM professional development standards are intended to guide efforts to improve professional development
for all teachers. These standards acknowledge that teacher professional development encompasses a wide
variety of learning activities. The list includes, but is not limited to, teacher study groups, coaching and
mentoring relationships, teacher networks, participation on school improvement teams and committees that
develop curricula and assessments, workshops, and college and university courses. These standards can help
improve the quality of professional development by:

e Providing a clear vision of high-quality professional development that recognizes needs, priorities, and resources.
e Guiding planning, designing, implementing, and evaluating high-quality professional development.

e Supporting alignment of professional development with goals for improving student learning.

e Informing allocation of resources for professional development.

e Defining accountability for ensuring that professional development is of the highest quality and readily accessible.

Another valuable resource such as teacher-to-teacher training has also been provided to teachers. Teachers
are allowed to observe their colleagues during instruction and they have found it impactful on their instructing
methodologies. Examples of professional development teachers have attended are:

. Response to Intervention

e  Acuity Benchmark Assessment

. Differentiated Instruction

e  Master Teacher

. Charter School Law & Applications

e  ADE Trainings — ELL, SPED, Common Core, OELAS, NCLB, ALEAT
. Open Court

. Easy Grammar Systems

. Fred Jones Classroom Management
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. DIBELS Measurement

. Curriculum Mapping

. Socratic Circles

e Reading & Writing Effectiveness

. Six Traits Writing Workshop

e  Technology Across the Curriculum

. Step Up to Writing

Reading

Curriculum Development

Over the past five years, the reading curriculum at AAEM has evolved due to the academic needs of the
students and resources available. In FY 2008, Open Court, a basal reading program developed by
SRA/McGraw-Hill, was purchased and implemented as the reading curriculum for K-5th grade. The program is
designed to systematically teach decoding, comprehension, inquiry and investigation, and writing in a logical
progression. The decision to move to Open Court basal reading program was made by the administration at
that time. In addition to Open Court, teachers supplemented their reading program with outside sources such
as ABC Teach, EdHelper, and Superteacher. Grades sixth through eighth utilized Prentice Hall as their
reading curriculum. Open Court was used as the reading program at AAEM until FY 2010. Study Island
Reading, a leading provider of standards-based assessment, instruction, and test preparation software
programs for K-12 students, was purchased in FY 2011for 2" -8" grade to augment the language arts
curriculum at AAEM. To further enhance the language arts curriculum, fourth and fifth grade teachers piloted
Easy Grammar Systems by Dr. Wanda C. Phillips to improve students’ skills in writing and grammar. The pilot
of Easy Grammar Systems was proven successful by an increase in student test scores. As a result, Easy
Grammar Systems will be adopted for 2" — 8" grade in FY 2013. Lastly, fifth grade also instituted the
Excellence in Writing program in FY 2012 to study its effectiveness in improving students writing process skills.

Math

Curriculum Development

The mathematics program at AAEM has adjusted during the past five years. In FY 2008, K-6" grade teachers
chose to pilot Harcourt Math, a curriculum based on scientific research that focuses on effective learning
processes and instructional strategies. It included intervention strategies that diagnosed students’ difficulties
with mathematics concepts, skills, and problem solving, and provided intervention resources to ensure success
for all learners. The Saxon Math program was selected for grades seventh and eighth because it
systematically distributed instruction, practice, and assessment throughout the academic year. Due to a
successful implementation of Harcourt Math, K-5" grade teachers continued to use this program until FY 2011.
In FY 2009, 6™ — 8™ grade switched to Holt Math because it provided teachers with strategies for different
learning styles and to accommodate students below grade level as well as those students who needed to be
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challenged. With the integration of Common Core standards, administration chose to replace Harcourt Math
with Math In Focus (Singapore Math) in FY 2012. This new math program will be rolled out in K-3" grade in
FY 2013, grades 4"-6" FY 2014, and grades 7"-8" in FY 2015. The Holt Math program for 6™"—8" grades has
remained in place in lieu of the change. Study Island, First in Math, and IXL (computer based and internet
programs) were purchased in FY 2012 to supplement 15-8" grade mathematics programs and to reinforce
students’ math skills over summer months.

Reading & Math Data Analysis

Students’ AIMS scores from the prior school year were given to teachers to identify areas of strengths and
weaknesses. These Data Day faculty meetings have occurred at the onset each academic school year since
2008 to gather baseline data of their students and align the curriculum to meet their students’ academic needs.
In FY 2012, Acuity benchmark assessments were used to predict 3"-8th grade student performance on AIMS.
Implementation of Essential Math Concepts (EMC’s), instructional interventions, IXL, and Study Island
provided additional support in reinforcing the Arizona Academic Standards and resources.

DIBELS data is analyzed to modify instruction in order to meet the academic needs of students in reading. K-
5™ grade students are progress monitored to track student growth and proficiency. In addition, DIBELS
benchmark assessments were administered three times (beginning, mid, end of year) during the school year.

4"™_8" grade teachers have adjusted curriculum and instruction based upon the previous year’'s AIMS results.
Starfall progress monitoring was utilized twice a year by kindergarten teachers. Reading intervention groups
were created based upon DIBELS and Acuity benchmark data. AZELLA determined which students were in
English Language Development (ELD) classes. AAEM administration has collected student assessment data
from the following resources:

e AIMS e AZELLA

e DIBELS e Starfall

e  Study Island e  Firstin Math

e A+ Testing e Teacher Created Benchmarks

e  Acuity
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

Areas of Growth & Decline Based on AIMS Data (2007-2011)

Standards referenced below can be cross referenced with the Arizona Academic Standards.
3rd Grade Reading

» Reading Process (S1) has had steady growth of about 15% since 2007.

» Comprehending Literary Text (S2) has had steady growth of almost 20% since 2007.

» Comprehending Informational Text (S3) has had overall growth of 20% since 2007.

3rd Grade Reading
Percentage of Points Earned

70 -+ : m Strand 1: Reading Process
60 -+
50 + - m52: comprehending
40 + - Literary Text
ig [ ' | I ® 53: Comprehending

I Informational Text
10 " ]

2007 2008 2009

3rd Grade Math

>

vV V VYV VY

2010 2011
Overall Growth: In 2010, there was a decline due to a change in academic standards
Math, and Study Island in 2011, there was a rise in scores.

Number and Operations (S1) has seen an overall growth of 10% since 2007.
Patterns, Algebra, and Functions (S3) has steadily grown by 20% since 2007.
Geometry, Measurement (S4) has steadily grown by 20% since 2007.

Structure and Logic (S5) has seen an overall growth of about 15% since 2007.

. With implementation of EMC's, First in

3rd Grade Math
Percentage of Points Earned
100
90 -+ W 51: Number &Operations
80
70 4 M 52: Data Analysis,
60 4 Probability, & Discrete
Math
50 +
m 53: Patterns, Algebra &
40 -+ Functions
30
W S4: Geometry &
20 - Measurement
10 +
o : ! . W 55: Structure & Logic
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

4th Grade Reading
» Reading Process (S1) has grown every year except for 2011 when there was a 3% drop.
» There has been an 8% decline specifically in expository text comprehension since 2009.
» Literary and Information Text (S2, S3) have declined nearly 10% since 2009. While reviewing the specific AIMS scores, the

negative shift is due primarily to the significantly lower 4/5th English Language. Development combo class scores and one
other 4th grade class. Itis clear that the 4/5th combo class needs to have a strong, experienced teacher along with an aide.

4th Grade Reading
Percentage of Points Earned

70 4 mStrand 1: Reading Process
60 |
50 + m52: comprehending Literary
40 Text
30 W 53: Comprehending
Informational Text
20 -
10 +
0 4 . . - .
2007 2008 2009

2010 2011
» Number and Operations (S1) had a 5% decline since 2009, of which most occurred from 2010 to 2011. When reviewing the
scores this was due to a 4/5th grade ELD class and another 4th grade class.

4th Grade Math

» Data Analysis (S2) indicates a dip in 2010 due to standards change, but there was growth of 10%.
» Geometry, Measurement (S4) has seen a decline of nearly 20% since 2009.

»  Structure and Logic (S5) has declined near 14% since 2009.

4th Grade Math
Percentage of Points Earned
100 -
90 - m S1: Number &Operations

80

70 < m 52: Data Analysis,

60 -+ : Probability, & Discrete
Math

50 -

m S3: Patterns, Algebra &

401 Functions

30 <

20 m 54: Geometry &
Measurement

10 +

U 4 - - » r "
2007 2008

m 55: Structure & Logic
2009 2010 2011
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

5th Grade Reading

» Reading Process (S1) has shown growth of about 12 % until 2011 when there was a drop of about 3% due to the significantly
lower scores from the 4th/5th grade ELD class.

» Comprehending Literary Text (S2) shows a 4% increase from 2007 to 2009 which was followed by a decline of almost 5% in
2010 due to the 5" grade ELD class scores.

» Informational Text (S3) shows an overall gain of 5% since 2007.

5th Grade Reading
Percentage of Scores Earned
100
90 +
80

W Strand 1: Reading
Process

m S2: comprehending
Literary Text

mS3: Comprehending
Informational Text

70 +

60 -

50 - : [ o
R = = -

30 - = =2 Ll :

20 +

10 +

0 ] » .

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

5th Grade Math

» Number Sense (S1) has improved by 14% from 2007 to 2011. The fifth grade teachers are data driven and many changes
have been made due to the needs of the students. They implemented Essential Math Concepts in 2010 and focused on basic
skills (Mountain Math) which signals to the absence of a dip in 2010 scores which was seen in all other grades.

» Data Analysis, Probability, and Discrete Math (S2): There was an almost 7% decrease in 2010 but the scores recovered in
2011 with an 11% increase.

5th Grade Math
Percentage of Points Earned

70 +
60 -
50
40
30 + ;
20
10
o L L . .
2007 2008 2009

2010 2011

W S1: Number &Operations

m 52: Data Analysis,
Probability, & Discrete
Math

W S3: Patterns, Algebra &
Functions

W S4: Geometry &
Measurement

| 55: Structure & Logic
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

6th Grade Reading

» Reading Process (S1) there was nearly a 15% decline from 2009 to 2010 and a 4% increase in 2011 however the overall
decline is about 10% from 2007. In 2011, students were leveled according to AIMS.

» In 2010, there was a large increase in the number of new students who were significantly below grade level.
» Comprehending Literary Text (S2) increased nearly 10% from 2009 to 2011.

» Comprehending Informational Text (S3) also increased nearly 9% from 2009 to 2011.

6th Grade Reading
Percentage of Points Earned

100
90 -
80 +
70 +
60 +
50
40 +
30 4
20
10 +

® 5trand 1: Reading Prccess

® 52: comprehending
Literary Text

® 53: Comprehending
Informational Text

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

6th Grade Math

» Number and Operations (S1) There has been an overall decrease of 5% since 2009 which includes a slight recovery from the
2010 decline; there was an increase in Number Sense of over 9% from 2007 to 2011.

» Data Analysis (S2) had no significant change since 2007, and there was an almost 20% increase in systematic listing and
vertex edge graphs. However, there was a 12% decrease in all other areas.

» Geometry, Measurement (S4) there was a 10% decrease in 2010 and 3% increase in 2011, but overall decrease since 2009.
This may be due to the significant changes in the math standards for this strand.

»  Structure and Logic (S5) there was a 10% decrease in 2009, decrease in 2010, but gain of 7% in 2011.

6th Grade Math
Percentage of Points Earned
100 +
90 - ® 51: Number &Operations
80
70 : m 52: Data Analysis and

60
50
40 4
30
20
10

Probablity

W 53: Patterns, Algebra &
Functions

W 54: Geometry &
Measurement

W 55: Structure & Logic

2009 2010 2011
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

7th Grade Reading

» C3 persuasive text is the only area of improvement; all other areas have declined or remained the same.

» Reading Process (S1) there was a gain of more than 11% from 2007 to 2009 which was lost in 2010 because of an 8%
decline. In 2011 there was a 4% increase, but overall there has been a 7% increase since 2009.

» Comprehending Literary Text (S2) there was a gain of 4% from 2007 to 2009, but very little change since 2009.

» Comprehending Informational Text (S3) there has been increase of 3% since 2007. Overall there has been little to no growth

in all other areas except in Persuasive text which had a 4% increase. There has been a consistent decline in Functional Text
since 2009 of almost 9%.

20
10

OIII
2007 2008 2009

7th Grade Reading

Percentage of Points Earned
100
90 +
80
70 ® Strand 1: Reading Process
60
50 ® 52: comprehending
40 Literary Text
30

® 53: Comprehending
Informational Text

2010 2011

7th Grade Math

» S1, S2 and S3 were significantly better in 2011 than any other year, while S3 is steady, S4 have had no ready growth, S5 has
declined 10% from 2009 to 2011.

» Number and Operations (S1) declined 10% since 2009 to 2011, although Estimation has increased about 7% from 2007-2011.

» Data Analysis (S2) steady decline since 2007 until 2011 when there was a 12% increase.

» Patterns, Algebra, and Functions (S3) has seen a steady increase of nearly 10% since 2007.

7th Grade Math
Percentage of Points Earned

70 +
60
50
40
30
20
10
0 -4 5 " ) 4
2007 2008

2009 2010 2011

® 51: Number &Operations

= 52: Data Analysis,
Probability, & Discrete
Math

= 53: Patterns, Algebra &
Functions

= 54: Geometry &
Measurement

= S5: Structure & Logic
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

8th Grade Reading
» Reading Process (S1) has declined by 26% from 2009 to 2011.
» Comprehending Literary Text (S2) has increased 7% from 2009 to 2011.

» Comprehending Informational Text (S3) has increased by 8% although expository text has remained low since 2009 when
there was an 8% decrease.

8th Grade Reading
Percentage of Points Earned

]m -
90 - -
80 -+
70 - 5 _ ®Strand 1: Reading Process
60 +
50 - - : m 52: comprehending
40 - Literary Text
gg | [ ' m 53: Comprehending

| i Informational Text
10 + - -
0 ; - - :

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

8th Grade Math

» Number and Operations (S1) has decreased 9% since 2007.

» Data Analysis (S2) has a decrease of 15% in 2010, with an 8% increase 2011 but an overall decrease of 5%. Probability had
a 23% decrease in 2010 and stayed the same in 2011.

» Patterns, Algebra, and Functions (S3) has consistently declined every year for an overall decrease of about 5%.
» Geometry, Measurement (S4) has shown overall growth of about 2% since 2007.

»  Structure and Logic (S5) showed a 15% increase from 2009 to 2010, then no growth.

8th Grade Math
Percentage of Points Earned

100
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80
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

Reasons for Decline

e Anincrease of student to teacher ratio from 25/1 to 30/1 in 2009/2010. This may have contributed to a
deterioration in scores seen across all grade levels on 2010 AIMS results.

e In 2010, there was a large influx of new students who were significantly below grade level across all grades, but
especially in grades 6"-8" . This has had a significant impact on school performance.

e Reading process has been in gradual decline along with comprehension of literary and expository text that
correlates with a decline in Math S5: Logic and Reasoning. This makes sense as logic and reasoning problems
are heavy in reading and if a student struggles to read, then these are the problems that they will miss due to lack
of reading comprehension rather than lack of math comprehension.

e Teacher turnover in fifth through eighth grades has led to a lack of consistency in instructional standards. The
fourth/fifth grade ELD class has not performed well. It is clear that the 4th/5"™ grade ELD class needs to have a
strong, experienced teacher along with an Instructional Aide.

Potential Solutions

o AAEM will develop Essential Concepts for all core subjects similar to the Essential Math Concepts so they are
aligned from grade level to grade level.

o AAEM will utilize Crosswalks for all grade levels to aide in transferring to Common Core Standards.

o AAEM will make real time data adjustments throughout the year after benchmark assessments to better
accommodate students and provide interventions.

Areas of Strength

e AAEM students are more proficient in reading based on our language arts academic reports.

e AAEM is in process of improving the math curriculum with implementing Math in Focus (Singapore Math), which
is aligned to Common Core Standards.

e Teacher lesson plans are aligned to Arizona Academic Standards.

e AAEM replaced the previous 4th/5th grade ELD teacher and hired an additional instructional aide to meet the
students’ reading and math academic needs.

e Additional instructional aides were hired to assist teachers in the classroom.

Resources that Contribute to Strengths

Resources that have contributed to these strengths include the use of the Essential Math Concepts in grades third
through fifth. Use of supplemental materials like IXL, First in Math, Study Island, and Title | interventions has provided
students with academic gains.
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PLC Charter Schools Narrative Analysis

Conclusion

In summary, AAEM has had a positive impact on the Tolleson community and continually seeks innovative ways to
provide an education with an emphasis in performing arts. Utilizing resources such as high quality curriculum embedded
with Common Core Standards, research-based professional development, and grade level articulation will foster high
academic principles. Based on the narrative analysis findings, AAEM recognizes the need for continual intervention for
English Language Learners and increased math instructional support for all students. The Performance Management Plan
details the short term goals to best address the academic needs of AAEM. Financial planning through fiscal year 2014
will ensure that the Performance Management Plan will be sustainable. Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain is committed
to providing a rich learning environment and will continue the mission that every student has the ability and right to learn.
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PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN TEMPLATE

PLC Charter Schools

INDICATOR:* X Math ___Reading DURATION OF THE PLAN?: Begins April, 2012 to June, 2014
MEASURE* METRIC* CURRENT End Target For This Plan*®
STATUS*

State standardized
assessment

Percent (%) of students who score

proficient on the State standardized

assessment and
Student growth percentile (SGP)

(Board staff
will enter info
here)

Meet or demonstrate sufficient progress toward the
level of adequate academic performance as set and
modified periodically by the Board.

STRATEGY I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps

1. PLC Charter Schools will In April 2012, the Teachers from Meeting minutes will be kept on Part of

create a Curriculum Committee committee was various grade levels. | file by the Site Director/s. Teacher’s/

to assist with the implementation | created. Site

of math curriculum. Site Director/s is a Meeting sign in sheets will be Director’'s
member of the kept on file by the Site Director/s. | expected
Curriculum duties.
Committee.

2. PLC Charter Schools will Currently in place Teacher/s will be Reports will be generated by $3,500.00 in

utilize standards-based math and subscription will | responsible for Teachers and Administration to FY 2012,

software for supplemental be renewed annually. | software integration track student usage and identify | 2013 and

instruction, formative in the classroom. proficiency level of standards. 2014.

assessments and technology
integration in the classroom.

Business Office will
be responsible for
software purchase
and payment.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s will be kept on file in
the Business Office.

Approved 11/19/2010






3. PLC Charter Schools will FY 2012: Curriculum Inventory of math curricular $51,143.50
purchase math curriculum and Initial purchase Committee will make | materials will be kept on file. in FY 2012
instructional materials to made. curriculum purchase
implement Common Core recommendation to Invoice/s and purchase $78,000.00
Standards. FY 2013: the Corporate Board. | requisition/s will be kept on file in | in FY 2013

Implementation will the Business Office.

begin in grades K-3 Business Office will $45,000.00

and English be responsible for the in FY 2014

Language purchase and

Development payment of the math

classes. curriculum and

instructional

FY 2014: materials.

Implementation for

grades 4-6.
4. PLC Charter Schools will Currently in place English Language Weekly lesson plans created by | Part of
require all English Language and will be conducted | Development Teacher/s. Teacher’s/
Development classes to deliver | daily (excluding early | Teacher/s Site
at least one hour of math release days). Classroom schedule created by Director’s
instruction each regular school Site Director/s will be | Teacher/s. expected
day (excluding early release responsible for duties.

days).

reviewing the lesson
plans and classroom
schedule.

Approved 11/19/2010






STRATEGY II: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into

instruction.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. The teaching staff within PLC Currently in place and | Teacher/s will be Weekly lesson plans will remain | Part of
Charter Schools will identify is conducted weekly. responsible for on file with the Site Director/s. Teacher’s/
Arizona and/or Common Core identifying math Site
math standards within their standards on lesson | Quarterly standards checklist Director’s
weekly lesson plans. plans. will be on file with Teacher/s expected
and Site Director/s. duties.
Site Director/s will be
responsible for
reviewing lesson
plans, updating
checklist and
providing feedback to
Teacher/s.
2. PLC Charter Schools will Implementation of Curriculum K-8 math curriculum maps will Part of
utilize math curriculum maps in articulated curriculum | Committee will be be available to all Teachers and | Teacher's/
grades K-8. maps will begin in FY | responsible for final will remain on file with the Site | Site
2013 and will be approval of Director/s. Director’s
ongoing. articulated math expected
curriculum maps. duties.

Site Director/s will be
responsible for the
guarterly reviewing of
the math curriculum
maps.

Approved 11/19/2010






3. PLC Charter Schools will

administer three benchmark
assessments throughout the
school year in grades K-1.

Initial purchase and
partial implementation
in FY 2012.

Beginning FY 2013:

1% Benchmark
assessment will be
administered within
the first two weeks of
student entry date.

2" Benchmark
assessment will be
administered midway
through the school
year.

3" Benchmark
assessment will be
administered 2 weeks
before the last day of
school.

Test Coordinator will
be responsible for
test scheduling and
reporting.

Teacher/s will be
responsible for test
administration.

Business Office will
be responsible for the
purchase and
payment of the
benchmark
assessment
software.

Benchmark assessment results
and related reports will be kept
on file by the Test Coordinator

and/or Site Director/s.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for the benchmark
assessment software will be
kept on file in the Business
Office.

Costis
included in
Strategy | -
Action Step #
2

Approved 11/19/2010






4. PLC Charter Schools will
administer five math benchmark
assessments throughout the
sg}hool year in grades 2" through
8".

Initial purchase and
partial implementation
in FY 2012.

Beginning FY 2013:

1% Benchmark
assessment will be
administered within
the first two weeks of
student entry date.

2nd, 3rd & 4th
Benchmark
assessments will be
administered
successively during
the school year.

5" Benchmark
assessment will be
administered 2 weeks
before the last day of
school.

Test Coordinator will
be responsible for
test scheduling and
reporting.

Teacher/s will be
responsible for test
administration.

Business Office will
be responsible for the
purchase and
payment of the
benchmark
assessment
software.

Benchmark assessment results
and related reports will be kept
on file by the Test Coordinator

and/or Site Director/s.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for the benchmark
assessment software will be
kept on file in the Business
Office.

$7,500.00 in
FY 2012,
2013 and
2014.

Approved 11/19/2010






STRATEGY lll. Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documentin

student proficiency.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. PLC Charter Schools will use Beginning FY 2013: Test Coordinator will | Benchmark assessment results | Cost is
benchmark assessment data to be responsible for and related reports will be kept | included in
monitor and document student Benchmark benchmark on file by the Test Coordinator | Strategy Il -
proficiency in math. assessment results assessment and/or Site Director/s. Action Step #
will be made available | reporting. 1

within two weeks of
each test date.

Five times per year for
grades 2-8.

Three times per year
for grades K-1.

Site Director/s will be
responsible for
disseminating
assessment results
to teaching staff.

2. PLC Charter Schools will
provide student level AIMS and
Stanford 10 math data to
Teachers to establish a baseline

proficiency level for each student.

Beginning FY 2013:

Student level data will
be provided during
Orientation Week at
the beginning of each
school year.

Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s
will be responsible for
creating and
disseminating
AIMS/Stanford 10
reports to Teachers.

Teachers will be required to
sign a log book acknowledging
receipt of the data.

Log book and copies of the
AIMS/Stanford 10 reports will
be kept on file by the Test
Coordinator and/or Site
Director/s.

Part of Test
Coordinator’s
[/Site
Director’s
expected
duties.

Approved 11/19/2010






3. PLC Charter Schools will
purchase a web-based grading
system that has the ability to
record student grades, generate
standards based report cards and
serve as a communication
platform between school staff and
parents.

Installation of software
will occur in May 2012
and school-wide
implementation will
take place in FY 2013.

Teacher/s will be
responsible for
entering grades.

Business Office will
be responsible for the
purchase and
payment of the
grading system.

Registrar and IT
Department will be
responsible for
implementation and
maintenance.

Student data reports.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for the grading
system will be kept on file in the
Business Office.

$17,500 for
the initial
purchase in
FY 2012.

$8,500 per
fiscal year
thereafter

Part of
Teacher's/
Business
Office’s/
Registrar’s/
IT's expected
duties.

4. PLC Charter Schools
Administration will present school
level academic reports to the
governing and/or corporate board
to report student proficiency.

Beginning FY 2013:

Reports will be
presented following all
benchmark and
standardized
assessments.

Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s
will be responsible for
creating academic
reports.

Governing and/or Corporate
Board Agendas

Governing and/or Corporate
Board Meeting Minutes

Report copies will be kept on
file with the Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s.

Part of Test
Coordinator’s
/Site
Director’s
expected
duties.

STRATEGY IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the

curriculum.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. PLC Charter Schools will Beginning 2013: Site Director/s will Sign-in sheets for mentoring Part of
provide a Mentoring Program for assign a Mentor meetings will be kept on file by | Teacher’s/
new math Teachers. Teacher mentoring will | Teacher to new math | the Site Director/s. Site
be conducted monthly. | Teacher/s. Director’s
Participating Teachers will fill expected
Mentor Teacher/s will | out a yearly survey to evaluate | duties.

be responsible for
meeting with new
math Teacher/s.

the Mentoring Program.

Approved 11/19/2010






2. PLC Charter Schools will Beginning FY 2013: Site Director/s will be | Sign-in sheets for professional | $11,000.00
schedule professional responsible for development will be kept on file | in FY 2013
development to support Curriculum training will | scheduling by the Site Director/s. and 2014.
implementation of the math be conducted prior to | professional
curriculum. the first day of school. | development. Invoice/s and purchase Part of Site
requisition/s for professional Director’s/
On-going professional | The Business Office | development will be kept on file | Business
development will will be responsible for | in the Business Office. Office’s/
occur during the purchase of all Human
scheduled teacher in- | professional Certificates of participation will | Resources
service days. development. be kept on file with Human Department’s
Resources Department. expected
duties.
3. The PLC Charter Schools Beginning FY 2013: Teacher/s will have Curriculum Committee meeting | Cost is
Curriculum Committee will review the opportunity to minutes will be kept on file by included in
all professional development The Curriculum request professional | the Site Director/s. Strategy IV -
requests for math. Committee will make development. Action Step
initial Invoice/s and purchase #2

recommendations to
the Business Office by
mid-September.

Curriculum
Committee will
provide professional
development
proposals to the
Business Office.

The Business Office
will be responsible for
the purchase of
professional
development.

requisition/s for professional
development will be kept on file
in the Business Office.

Approved 11/19/2010






4, PLC Charter Schools
Instructional Aides will attend
math professional development.

On-going professional
development will
occur during
scheduled teacher in-
service days.

Instructional Aides
are responsible for
attending math
related professional
development
approved by the
Curriculum
Committee.

Curriculum
Committee will
provide professional
development
proposals to the
Business Office.

The Business Office
will be responsible for
the purchase of
professional
development.

Sign-in sheets for Instructional
Aides that attend professional
development will be kept on file
by the Site Director/s.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for professional
development will be kept on file
in the Business Office.

Certificates of participation will
be kept on file with Human
Resources Department.

Costis
included in
Strategy IV -
Action Step
#2

Part of
Teacher's/
Instructional
Aide’s/
Business
Office’s/
Human
Resources
Department’s
expected
duties.

Using the information entered in the “Budget” columns above, please provide a budget total that incorporates all strategies and action
steps for each year of the performance management plan’s implementation. For “Year 1", please specify the fiscal year (e.g., 2011).
The charter holder may add years, as necessary.

Year 1. Budget Total: $ 79,643.50
Year 2: Budget Total: $108,500.00
Year 3: Budget Total: $ 75,500.00

Notes:
* Provided by ASBCS staff

1 Academic area to be addressed for improvement
2 Duration of the plan must align with the timeline presented in the Action Steps
3 Refer to Terms to Know in the Renewal Application Instructions

4 Repeat these action steps as necessary to include the appropriate number of steps to accomplish the strategy

Approved 11/19/2010

Fiscal Year: 2012
Fiscal Year: 2013
Fiscal Year: 2014
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RENEWAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PLAN

PLC Charter Schools

INDICATOR:* __ Math _X Reading DURATION OF THE PLAN? Begins April, 2012 to June , 2014
MEASURE* METRIC* CURRENT End Target For This Plan*®
STATUS*

State standardized
assessment

Percent (%) of students who score
proficient on the State standardized
assessment

and

Student growth percentile (SGP)

(Board staff
will enter info
here)

Meet or demonstrate sufficient progress toward the
level of adequate academic performance as set and
modified periodically by the Board.

STRATEGY I: Provide and implement a curriculum that improves student achievement.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. PLC Charter Schools will In April 2012, the Teachers from various | Meeting minutes will be kept Part of
create a Curriculum committee was created. grade levels. on file by the Site Director/s. Teacher’s/
Committee to assist with the Site
implementation of reading Site Director/s is a Meeting sign in sheets will be | Director’s
curriculum. member of the kept on file by the Site expected
Curriculum Committee. | Director/s. duties.
2. PLC Charter Schools will Currently in place and Teacher/s will be Reports will be generated by | $11,809.92
utilize standards-based subscription will be responsible for Teachers and Administration | in FY 2012
reading software for renewed annually. software integration in | to track student usage and
supplemental instruction, the classroom. identify proficiency level of $13,000.00
formative assessments and standards. in FY 2013
technology integration in the Business Office will be
classroom. responsible for Invoice/s and purchase $15,000.00
software purchase and | requisition/s will be kept on in FY 2014
payment. file in the Business Office.
Part of
Teacher’s/
Business
Office’s
expected
duties.

Approved 11/19/2010






3. PLC Charter Schools will

Currently in place and will

Site Director/s will be

Human Resources

$25,000.00

provide a certified Reading be ongoing through FY responsible for the Department will maintain base salary
Specialist to assist with the 2014, hiring of the Reading employee files and copies of | + $9,000.00
implementation of reading Specialist. qualifications. for benefits
curriculum to improve student for FYy 2012
achievement. Human Resources Professional development
Department will be sign in sheets, literature lists, | $38,000.00
responsible for the Curriculum Committee base salary
verification of minutes and classroom + $13,680.00
certification. observation logs will be kept for benefits
on file by the Reading in FY 2013
Specialist. and 2014.
Part of Site
Director’s/
Human
Resources
Department’s
expected
duties.
4. PLC Charter Schools will Beginning FY 2013: One Highly Qualified Time and Effort logs. Part of
require English Language Implementation will begin | Instructional Aide will Instructional
Development (ELD) students the third week of school. | be responsible for Anecdotal Records. Aide’s/
on an Individual Language providing additional Reading
Learner Plan (ILLP), that are FY 2014: reading support under | Individual Language Learner | Specialist’s
below grade level, to receive Will be ongoing. the direction of regular | Plans (ILLPs) expected
supplemental reading classroom Teacher/s duties.

instruction in a small-group
environment at least one hour
per week.

or the Reading
Specialist.

Approved 11/19/2010






STRATEGY II: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring the integration of the Arizona Academic Standards into

instruction.
Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget
Steps
1. K-8 Teachers will identify FY 2012: Kindergarten is | Teacher/s will be Weekly lesson plans will Part of
Common Core reading being implemented. responsible for remain on file with Teacher/s Teacher’s/Site
standards within their weekly identifying reading and Site Director/s. Director’s
lesson plans. FY 2013: standards on lesson expected
1% Grade will be plans. Quarterly standards checklist | duties.
implemented. will be on file with Teacher/s
Site Director/s will be | and Site Director/s.
FY 2014 responsible for
Grades 2™ — 8" will be reviewing lesson
implemented. plans, updating
checklist and
providing feedback to
Teacher/s.
2. PLC Charter Schools will Implementation of Teacher/s will be K-8 curriculum maps will be Part of
utilize reading curriculum maps | articulated curriculum responsible for available to Teachers and will | Teacher’s/
in grades K-8. maps began in FY 2012 | updating curriculum remain on file with the Curriculum

and will be ongoing.

maps with their grade
level team.

Curriculum
Committee and Site
Director/s will be
responsible for
reviewing the content
of the reading
curriculum maps.

Curriculum Committee and
Site Director/s.

Committee’s/
Site Director’s
expected
duties.

Approved 11/19/2010






3. PLC Charter Schools will
administer three benchmark
assessments throughout the

school year in grades K-1.

Initial purchase and
partial implementation in
FY 2012.

Beginning FY 2013:

1% Benchmark
assessment will be
administered within the
first two weeks of student
entry date.

2" Benchmark
assessment will be
administered midway
through the school year.

3" Benchmark
assessment will be
administered 2 weeks
before the last day of
school.

Test Coordinator will
be responsible for
test scheduling and
reporting.

Teacher/s will be
responsible for test
administration.

Business Office will
be responsible for
the purchase and
payment of the
benchmark
assessment
software.

Benchmark assessment
results and related reports will
be kept on file by the Test
Coordinator and/or Site
Director/s.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for the benchmark
assessment software will be
kept on file in the Business
Office.

$253.00 in FY
2012.

$285.00 in FY
2013.

$285.00 in FY
2014.

Part of Test
Coordinator’s/
Teacher’s/
Business
Office’s
expected
duties.

Approved 11/19/2010






4. PLC Charter Schools will
administer five language arts

benchmark assessments

throughout the school year in

grades 2" through 8".

Initial purchase and
partial implementation in
FY 2012.

Beginning FY 2013:

1% Benchmark
assessment will be
administered within the
first two weeks of student
entry date.

2nd 31 g 4™ Benchmarks
assessments will be
administered
successively during the
school year.

5" Benchmark
assessment will be
administered 2 weeks
before the last day of
school.

Test Coordinator will
be responsible for
test scheduling and
reporting.

Teacher/s will be
responsible for test
administration.

Business Office will
be responsible for
the purchase and
payment of the
benchmark
assessment
software.

Benchmark assessment
results and related reports will
be kept on file by the Test
Coordinator and/or Site
Director/s.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for the benchmark
assessment software will be
kept on file in the Business
Office.

$7,500.00 in
FY 2012.

$7,500.00 in
FY 2013.

$7,500.00 in
FY 2014.

Part of Test
Coordinator’s/
Teacher’'s/
Business
Office’s
expected
duties.

Approved 11/19/2010






STRATEGY lll.: Develop and implement a plan for monitoring and documenting student proficiency.

Action Steps *

Timeline

Responsible Party

Evidence of Meeting Action
Steps

Budget

1. PLC Charter Schools will use
benchmark assessment data to
monitor and document student
proficiency in reading.

Beginning FY 2013:

Benchmark assessment
results will be made
available within two weeks
of each test date.

- Five times per year for
grades 2-8.

- Three times per year
for grades K-1.

Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s
will be responsible for
creating and
disseminating
benchmark
assessment reports.

Benchmark assessment
results and related reports
will be kept on file by the
Test Coordinator and/or
Site Director/s.

Part of Test
Coordinator’s/
Site Director’s
expected
duties.

2. PLC Charter Schools will
provide student level AIMS and
Stanford 10 reading data to

Beginning FY 2013:

Student level data will be

Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s
will be responsible for

Teachers will be required to
sign a log book
acknowledging receipt of

Part of Test
Coordinator’s/
Site Director’s

Teachers to establish a provided during Staff creating and the data. expected
baseline proficiency level for Orientation Week at the disseminating duties.
each student. beginning of each school AIMS/Stanford 10 Log book and copies of
year. reports. reports will be kept on file
by the Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s.
3. PLC Charter Schools will Installation of software will | Teacher/s will be Copies of student data Costis
purchase a web-based grading | occur in May 2012 and responsible for reports will be kept in the included in
system that has the ability to school-wide entering grades. Student Cumulative File Math
record student grades, generate | implementation will take maintained by the Template -
standards based report cards place in FY 2013. Business Office will Registrar. Strategy Il -
and serve as a communication be responsible for the Action Step
platform between school staff purchase and Invoice/s and purchase #3
and parents. payment of the requisition/s for the grading
grading system. system will be kept on file Part of
in the Business Office. Teacher’s/
Registrar and IT Business
Department will be Office’s/

responsible for
implementation and
maintenance.

Registrar’s/
IT's expected
duties.

Approved 11/19/2010






4. PLC Charter Schools
Administration will present

school level academic reports to
the governing and/or corporate

board to report student
proficiency.

Beginning FY 2013:

Reports will be presented
following all benchmark

and standardized
assessments.

Test Coordinator
and/or Site Director/s
will be responsible for
creating and
presenting the
academic reports.

Governing and/or
Corporate Board Agendas

Governing and/or
Corporate Board Meeting
Minutes

Report copies will be kept
on file with the Test
Coordinator and/or Site
Director/s.

Part of Test
Coordinator’s/
Site Director’s
expected
duties.

STRATEGY IV: Develop and implement a professional development plan that supports effective implementation of the

curriculum.

Action Steps * Timeline Responsible Party Evidence of Meeting Action Budget

Steps
1. PLC Charter Schools will Beginning 2013: Site Director/s will Sign-in sheets for Part of
provide a Mentoring Program assign a Mentor mentoring meetings will be | Teacher's/
for new reading Teachers. Teacher mentoring will be | Teacher to new kept on file by the Site Site Director’'s
conducted monthly. reading Teacher/s. Director/s. expected
duties.

Mentor Teacher/s will
be responsible for
meeting with new
reading Teacher/s.

Participating Teachers will
fill out a yearly survey to
evaluate the Mentoring
Program.

Approved 11/19/2010






2. The PLC Charter Schools Beginning FY 2013: Teacher/s will have Curriculum Committee Part of
Curriculum Committee will the opportunity to meeting minutes will be Curriculum
review all professional The Curriculum request professional kept on file by the Site Committee’s/
development requests for Committee will make initial | development. Director/s. Business
reading. recommendations to the Office’s
Business Office by mid- Curriculum Committee | Invoice/s and purchase expected
September. will provide requisition/s for duties.
professional professional development
development will be kept on file in the
proposals to the Business Office.
Business Office.
The Business Office
will be responsible for
the purchase of
professional
development.
3. PLC Charter Schools will Beginning FY 2013: Site Director/s will be | Sign-in sheets for Part of Site
schedule professional responsible for professional development Director’s/
development to support the Curriculum training will be | scheduling will be kept on file by the Business
reading curriculum. conducted prior to the first | professional Site Director/s. Office’s/
day of school. development. Human
Invoice/s and purchase Resources
On-going professional The Business Office requisition/s for Department’s
development will occur will be responsible for | professional development expected
during scheduled teacher | the purchase of all will be kept on file in the duties.

in-service days.

professional
development.

Business Office.

Certificates of participation
will be kept on file with
Human Resources
Department.

Approved 11/19/2010






4. PLC Charter Schools
Instructional Aides will attend
reading professional
development.

On-going professional
development will occur

during scheduled teacher

in-service days.

Instructional Aides are
responsible for
attending reading
related professional
development
approved by the
Curriculum
Committee.

Curriculum Committee
will provide
professional
development
proposals to the
Business Office.

The Business Office
will be responsible for
the purchase of
professional
development.

Sign-in sheets for
Instructional Aides that
attend professional

development will be kept

on file by the Site
Director/s.

Invoice/s and purchase
requisition/s for

professional development

will be kept on file in the
Business Office.

Certificates of participation

will be kept on file with
Human Resources
Department.

Part of
Instructional
Aide’s/
Curriculum
Committee’s/
Business
Office’s/
Human
Resources
Department’s
expected
duties.

Using the information entered in the “Budget” columns above, please provide a budget total that incorporates all strategies and action
steps for each year of the performance management plan’s implementation. For “Year 1", please specify the fiscal year (e.g., 2011).
The charter holder may add years, as necessary.

Year 1. Budget Total: $53,562.92
Year 2: Budget Total: $72,465.00
Year 3: Budget Total: $74,465.00

Notes:
* Provided by ASBCS staff

1 Academic area to be addressed for improvement
2 Duration of the plan must align with the timeline presented in the Action Steps
3 Refer to Terms to Know in the Renewal Application Instructions

4 Repeat these action steps as necessary to include the appropriate number of steps to accomplish the strategy

Approved 11/19/2010

Fiscal Year: 2012
Fiscal Year: 2013
Fiscal Year: 2014






		PMP Reading Template Cover Page

		Performance Management Plan_ Reading




PLC CHARTER SCHOOLS

Performance
Management Plan
Documentation of Academic
Oversight
Part 1

April 26th, 2012





PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Wednesday, January 05, 2011
Special Meeting for PL.C Corporate Board

AGENDA

Call Meeting to Order and Verify a Quorum
2. Moment of Silence
3. Pledge of Allegiance

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING:

A new facility for the AASM Campus. Board and public attendees will travel to the
location of the building at 12" St and Priest Dr. in Tempe, AZ to review the building.

UPDATES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FROM COMMITTEES

1. Next meeting to be held January 11, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at Arts Academy at South
Mountain, 4039 E. Raymond St., #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040. Note: agenda items may be
submitted to the Secretary or Chair of the Board up to 48 business hours prior to the

next meeting.
2. Adjourn

Where performing (s more thon an art, s a way ef learning.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate/Governing Board Meeting Minutes

SPECIAL MEETING
January 5, 2011, 12:30 PM, 1200 S. Priest Drive, Tempe, AZ 85282

Present: Mike Sims, Chairman of the Board, President (MS), Kim Steele-Haynes, Board
Member, Secretary (KS), Agnes Lawson, Board Member, Treasurer {(AL),

Absent: Howard Bell, Board Member (HB).

Administration: Brandi Adams-Bressler, AAEM; Frieda Mekhemar, Office Manager, AASM

Public: None

¢ MS called the meeting to order at 12:30 p.m.

+ A quorum was verified with those present.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING:

+ Board met at 1200 $. Priest Drive, Tempe, AZ 85282 to tour a potential future site for AASM
campus.

» Going through the site plans and making necessary changes to the floor plan to accommodate
the school and its needs.

e Discussion as to rooms needed for drama, choir and music.

o Trying to come up with a plan for playground usage, where any block walls may be needed or
iron gates for the playground.

» The need for additional drinking fountain for the child to sq. ft ratio.
« Discussion on bus route in front of the school, signage, office space available.

+ The realtor is putting a letter of intent together but first recommends that we visit with an
architect to have him price the changes we want for the potential new site.

e Agreed that we would come back on Friday 1/14/11 @12:30 p.m. to meet with the architect so
complete changes that were discussed,

A motion was made by to adjourn this meeting at 3:40 p.m.

lof 1

1/16/2011





PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

W=

Tuesday, January 11, 2011 at 6:00 pm
Meeting for PL.C Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

AGENDA

Call Meeting to Order and Verify a Quorum
Moment of Silence

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval and/or Discussion of previous minutes from 9/1/2010, 9/14/10, 10/26/10, 12/20/2010,
1/5/2011.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

a) Employee Manual Changes suggested by Personnel Compensation Committee.
b)  Scotisdale Lease Agreement

c)  Enrollment procedures for Scottsdale

d)  Penny Pace Contract, Final Review

" DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING:

1.

Noo RN

10.
11.
12.

13.

Strategic Planning Committee Report
Board Books (where kept, official responsibility - no secretary for the Board)
Assign Board Officers (President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer).

Possible site location for AASM.
Charge, authority and responsibilities of Board appointed committees (Finance, Personnel)

Responsibilities and authority of the Enter_ir_n__Operations Manager.

Bill to Howard Bell from Fennemore Craig for services rendered by Deana Rader on behalf of Howard

Bell to "educate the PL.C Corporate Board regarding the by-laws and responsibilities. Services were
rendered in March of 2010

Vote on Charter Representative.

Mileage reimbursement policy review for approval.
Gift Wrapping Fundraiser Update

AAGC Status of Charter

Formation and debts incurred by HOKI

Discussion for possible agenda items for the next meeting to be held . at .at
. Note: agenda items may be submitted to the Secretary or Chair of the Board up to 48 business

hours prior to the next meeting.

14. Adjourn





PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Present:

Absent:

Tuesday, January 11, 2011 at 6:00 pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

MINUTES

Mike Sims, Chairman of the Board, President (MS), Kim Steele-Haynes, Board Member,
Secretary (KS), Agnes Lawson, Board Member, Treasurer (Al.), Howard Bell, Board

Member (HB).
None

Administration: None

Public:

e

Linda Humes, HR/Payroll — Scribe (LH), Courtney Cardenas ~ HB Aide.

MS called the meeting to order at 6:08 PM - A guorum was verified with those present.

~Moment of Silence

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval and/or Discussion of previous minutes from 9/1/2010, 9/14/10, 10/26/10, 12/20/2010,
1/5/2011.

Minutes 9/1/10 — HM motioned to accept the minutes as written with a record that the Board has
been lax in following up with these minutes and the Board does not remember the exact dates for
the retreat or the specifics of the contract. KS 2™ Unanimous Yes.

Minutes 9/14/2010 — HB motioned to make table the mlnutes untif the 2™ tape recorder (Red) can

" be reviewed for the remainder of the minutes. KS 2™. Unanimous Yes.

Minutes 10/26/2010 — KS motioned to accept with correction. MS 2" Unanimous Yes.
Minutes 12/20/2010 — HB motioned to approve the minutes with corrections. KS 2" Unanimous
Yes.

Minutes 1-5-2011 — MS motioned to table the 1/5/2011 minutes as they are not yet available, KS
2™ Unanimous Yes.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
Employee Manual Changes suggested by Personnel Compensation Committee.

a)

b)

c)

Approved through Consent Agenda

Scottsdale Lease Agreement

Moved to Discussion and Action — HB explained that this is for a continued lease on the property,
not the church parking lot. Because that campus is now its own charter we need to negotiate a
new Iease HB motioned to table this item until attorney Will Gelm can be contacted for direction,

KS 2™ Unanimous Yes.

Enro!iment procedures for Scottsdale

Approved through Consent Agenda

Penny Pace Contract, Final Review





» Moved to Discussion and Action — HB motioned to table Penny Paces' contract until the contract
can be rewritten to include the company name of Bryan Pace Ministries, detailing the services
rendered by the company. Also need to detail a minimum number of hours that Penny will work
and the end date of the contract. Contract also needs to include the dates PLC will be invoiced
and that the payment will only be rendered for services performed. AL 2" Unanimous Yes.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING:

5.

Strategic Planning Committee Report
e No report is available

HB motioned to switch the subjects of #6 and #7. AL 2". Unanimous Yes.

6.

7.

8.

Assign Board Officers (President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer).

¢ HB motioned that MS be made President of the Board of Directors for all 3 operations: AASM,
AAEM, and AASC. AL 2". MS Abstained. Passed.

e HB motioned that KS be made Vice Presmenb’Secretary of the Board of Directors for all 3
operations: AASM, AAEM, and AASC. MS 2™. KS Abstained. Passed.

e HB motioned that AL be made Treasurer of the Board of Directors for all 3 operations: AASM,
AAEM, and AASC. MS 2™, AL Abstained. Passed.

Board Books (where kept, official responsibility - no secretary for the Board)
» HB motioned that the Master Copy of the Board Books be kept under lock and key in the Board
Secretary's office with a working copy available at AAEM and AASM. MS 2" Unanimous Yes.
Possible site location for AASM.

e Report Only - Visited 1200 S. Priest, Tempe. Realtor will pull together a letter of intent.
Currently considering a possible 2 year lease with an option to buy.

BREAK - 7:55pm to 8:05pm

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Charge, authority and responsibilities of Board appointed committees (Finance, Personnel)
¢ HB motioned that all committees will meet under the direction and supervision of the Corporate
Board and will not meet again until the board has given them a specific task. AL 2" Unanimous
Yes.
Responsibilities and authority of the Interim Operations Manager.
e HB motioned to do away with the position of Interim Operations Manager and reinstate the
position of Chief Executive Officer. MS 2" KS abstained. Passed.
e HB motioned to nominate KS to the position of CEQ with her job description and salary to be
discussed at a later date. AL 2™. KS Abstained. Passed.
e HB motioned to have the CEO put together a job description of a financial manager. MS 2™
Unanimous Yes.
Bill to Howard Bell from Fennemore Craig for services rendered by Deana Rader on behalf of Howard
Bell to “educate the PLC Corporate Board regarding the by-laws and responsibilities. Services were
rendered in March of 2010.
¢ KS motioned to table this item until she can contact Deana Rader to see if Deana felt that she
was only educating HB on these issues, or if she was educating the PLC Board, or both. The
Board will look at the bill and the mlnutes from that period and see if they feel they owe any
portion of it. No 2™ or vote.
Vote on Charter Representative.
» HB resigned as Charter Representative over all 3 entities. MS resigned as Charter
Representative over all 3 entities.
e HB motioned that KS be made Charter Representative for AASC, AASM and AAEM. MS 2™ KS
Abstained. Passed.
Mileage reimbursement policy review for approval.
o KSd recommended this be tabled and placed under the Consent Agenda for the next meeting. No
2" or vote.

Gift Wrapping Fundraiser Update

Where performing is more than an art, it's a way of learning.





» KS reported that PLC took in $4752 and had $6100 in expenses. KS felt that this was a good
community campaign, good marketing tool. MS also said that it biessed the Bridge with a
benevolence fund for the community. All agreed they would plan earlier next year.

15, AAGC Status of Charter
+ HB motioned that the Board go before the ASBCS to ask for an extension of the opening of
AAGC from 2011/2012 to 2012/2013. MS 2™ Unanimous Yes.

16. Formation and debts incurred by HCKI.
+ This issue has already been concluded.

17.  Discussion for possible agenda items for the next meeting to be held at AASM on 1/18/2011 at
6:00pm. Note: agenda items may be submitted to the Secretary or Chair of the Board up to 48

business hours prior fo the next meeting.
18. Meeting Adjourned at 9:05pm

Where performing is more than ar art, it's a way of learning.





PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Wednesday, January 19, 2011 at 6:00 pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

AGENDA
1. Call Meeting to Order and Verify a Quorum
2. Moment of Silence
3. Pledge of Allegiance
4, Approval and/or Discussion of previous minutes from 10/6/2011, 1/5/2011 and 1/11/2011,
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

a) Mileage Reimbursement Policy.
b) Penny Pace Contract, Final Review

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING:

5.
6.
7.

Review quotes for sound equipment at AAEM Campus (MS)

Scottsdale Lease Agreement ~ close and open under Arts Academy of Scoftsdale

Bill to Howard Bell from Fennemore Craig for services rendered by Deana Rader on behalf of Howard

Bell to "educate the PLC Corporate Board regarding the by-laws and responsibilities. Services were

rendered in March of 2010,

Discussion for possible agenda items for the next meeting to be held . at . at
. Note: agenda items may be submitted to the Secretary or Chair of the Board up to 48 business

hours prior to the next meeting.

Adjourn.





PLC Corporate and Governing Board of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM
January 19, 2011 at 6:00"p.m.

Present: Mike Sims, Chairman of the Board, President (MS), Kim Steele-Haynes, Board

Public:
1.

2.

6.

Member, Secretary (KS), Agnes Lawson, Board Member, Treasurer (AL),
Howard Bell, Board Member (HB).

Anna Gallegos, Transcriber (AG) and Robby Marti, HB’s assistant (RM)

None

MS called the meeting to order and verified a quorum at 6:20 p.m.
Moment of silence taken.

Recited Pledge of Allegiance.

A motion made by HB, seconded by KS to approve the minutes from 10/6/2010. Motion
passes unanimously.

A motion made by K8, seconded by AL to approve the minutes from 1/5/11 with
correction
of the word “so” to the word “to” on the last bulleted item in the minutes. Motion passes,

HB abstained due to being absent.

A motion made by HB, seconded by KS to approve the minutes from 1/11/11 with the
following corrections: 1) Motion made by HB to pull consent agenda item B from the
consent agenda, 2) Motion made by MS to pull consent agenda item D from the consent
agenda, and 3) All subsequent numbering on minutes should be changed in accordance
with the two previous motions stated above. Motion passes unanimously.

MS discussed proposal/quote for new sound equipment for the AAEM campus. (Please

see :
attached proposal A and B). HB stated his concerns with seeking another quote as due

diligence. A motion made by HB, seconded by KS to hereby approve using Alfonso to
oversee the project of obtaining sound equipment for AAEM with a budget of $10,000.
There would need to be approval by the CEQ if the monies exceed $10,000.

A motion made by HB to adjourn the PLC Corporate and Governing Board at 7:29 p.m.

sk sk ok e sk ok o o ok o ot ok sk ok sk o sk ok ok sk e sl ok e sk ok s ok ofe sk ol e ok ok sk ok e ok ok sk stk ok ok ok sk ok ook ok stk sk ok ook ook sk sk ke skotolok koo skokskokok ok ok

Convene at 7:30 p.m.
PLC Arts Academy of Scottsdale Governing Board





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Tuesday, February 8", 2011 at 12:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
AGENDA
1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
AGENDA ITEMS:

2. Discussing the issuance of new bonds for the acquisition of a new South
Mountain Campus and the expansion of Estrella Mountain.

3. Adjourn
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PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

February 8, 2011, 12:00pm at Buchalter Nemer office

MINUTES

Board Present: Mike Sims (President), Kimberly Steele (Vice-President), Agnes
Lawson (Treasurer)

Absent: Howard Bell (Board Member)

Pubiic: Will Geim (lawyer at Buchalter Nemer), Dick Ward (Dougherty &
Company LLC), Dan Nelson (Dougherty & Company LLC), LaTonya Harrison
(Scribe; from Buchalter Nemer)

1. Called meeting to order and verified a quorum

DISCUSSION REGARDING:
.. Discussion on:

Arts Academy at Estrelia Mountain

Arts Academy at Scoftsdale

Arts Academy at South Mountain

Discussion of moving the South Mountain campus to the prospective site

@ 1200 S. Priest

Would like to lease new site with option to purchase

General discussion re: Bonds

Given fiming and current enroliment, we may be able to get bonds rated.

School already had gone through a review when it took over charter from

Papasunway; will work in school’s favor.

¢ Bring Community investment Corp (CIC) to monitor school's continuing
disclosure until bond closing will help position PLC favorably in eyes of the
current and future investors.

o PLC to set aside approx. $25,000, to cover costs for the initial, partial
bond application. This will include: various bond and real estate due





diligence fees, financial forecasting fees, demographic report fees and
appraisal, phase 1 and soils report costs.

PLC will send Dick Ward the documents satisfying PLC's current
disclosure requirements so that he can let the current investors know the
documents are in.

PLC will let Dick Ward know when Anthony Lorenzo intends to have the
audit completed and Dick wilt advise investors of same (so that investors
can confirm the school is meeting the 1.4 current debt coverage ratio and
the 1.2 projected debt coverage ratios required by the 2006 bond docs).
Dick Ward/Dan Nelson confirmed they will email Kim Steele an electronic
copy of the Official Statement from the 2006 bonds.

Dick Ward/Dan Nelson to get a jumpstart on marketing/positioning the
eventual bond issuance, Underwriter will begin advising and informing the
current bond investors and potential investors about the board’s current
makeup and vision, its dedication to meeting the continuing disclosure
requirements from now on, the estimated date for receipt of the audit, and
the school's future plans regarding the bond financing.
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Corporate Offices
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Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
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Monday, February 14", 2011 at 11:00am
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

AGENDA ITEMS:
2. Discussing the purchase of a new vehicle for the Estrella Campus.

3. Adjourn
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PLC Corporate and Governing Board of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
February 14, 2011 at 11:00am

Present. Mike Sims, President (MS); Kim Steele, Vice President (KS); Agnes Lawson,
Treasurer (AL); Howard Bell, Board Member (HB)

Absent: None

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe)

1. KS called the meeting to order at 11:05am and verified a quorum.

2. Continuation of the discussion of whether to make an offer for a 2003 Chevy
Truck with 96,000 miles for the AAEM campus. The asking price of the truck is
$6900.

e Doug had sent an email with some more details about the vehicle:

« The owner said it has a clear/clean title and it passed emissions
in 6/2010.

» ltis a GMC not a Chevy, the questions about 1500,2500 or 3500
might apply to a Chevy van.

» ltis a Model TG33 with a V-8, 4Liter engine.

« We have to remember when looking in the Blue Book that this is
NOT .a regular cargo van. It has a 10’ cargo box placed on a GMC
chassis that is in excellent condition, which makes it valued higher
than a cargo van.

e In light of this information, Al suggested an offer of $5500, due to the high
mileage of the vehicle, anticipating that the owner may counter with an
offer around $5900/6000.

¢ HB made a motion to approve and authorize Doug to look at the van in
person, offer $5500 for it, and purchase it for no more than $6000. The
motion was seconded by MS, and approved unanimously.
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Wednesday, February 16", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA
Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

Pledge of Allegiance
Moment of Silence

AGENDA ITEMS:

4.
5.

0 N

10.
11.
12,
13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

Approval of minutes from 2-08 and 2-11 meetings

Present and vote on new board members: Kathy Divers & Sam Tomlin (Kim
Steele)

IT changes for 2011/2012 school year (Rainy Carstens)

Present recent audit to board (Maritza Romero)

Financials (Maritza Romero)

Outcome of Arizona Mills Mall Fundraiser

Update on new site (Kim Steele)

Update on Education committee meeting (Maureen DeGrose)
Update on Strategic Planning committee (Maureen DeGrose)
Discussion of sound equipment for Estrella Mountain (Mike Sims)
Discussion of Musical Theater Summer Camp (Mike Sims)

Update on OMA “Opening Minds Through the Arts” (Mike Sims)
Discussion of Agenda Items for future board meetings (Kim Steele)

Adjourn
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PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

February 16, 2011 at 6:00pm

Board present: Mike Sims (President, Chairman — “MS"), Kim Steele (Vice
President — “KS”), Agnes Lawson (Treasurer — “AL”"), Howard Bell (member —
“HB”), Cathie Devers (new board member — “CD"), Sam Tomlin (new board
member — "“ST")

Absentees: None

Public: Rainy Carstens (PLC IT Staff — “RC"), Jessica Finley (Scribe), Maritza
Romero (“MR”), Chuck Boebinger (AASC Site Director — “‘CB"), Maureen
DeGrose (AAEM Site Director — “MD"), Beth Gasperone (PLC Financial Director
_ lIBGH)

1. KS called meeting to order at 6:12pm.
2. Moment of Silence
3. Pledge of Allegiance

Agenda Items:
4. Approval of minutes from 2-8-11, 2-11-11 meetings
a. 2-8-11 Minutes

e HB made a MOTION to table the 2-8-11 minutes until they
can be put into a format that better reflects what actually
happened at the meeting. Motion was seconded by AL and
passed unanimously.

b. 2-11-11 minutes

e Correction to the minutes: should include HB as an
absentee board member.

o KS made a MOTION to approve the 2-11-11 minutes as
presented, with the correction mentioned above. Seconded
by HB, and passed unanimously.

5." Present and vote on new board members: Kathy Divers & Sam Tomlin
(Kim Steele)
e Correct spelling is: Cathie Devers.





HB made a MOTION that we nominate and approve to the board of
PLC CD and ST to serve on the board for a time that is in keeping
with our bylaws, currently 3 years. After a brief discussion of the
proper series of actions, the motion was rescinded.

HB made a motion to nominate CD to the PLC board, MS
seconded, motion passed unanimously, CD accepted.

HB made a motion to accept and appoint CD to the PLC board, KS
seconded, motion passed unanimously.

HB made a motion to nominate ST to the PLC board, MS
seconded, motion passed unanimously, ST accepted.

HB made a motion to accept and appoint ST to the PLC board, AL

seconded, motion passed unanimously.

HB noted that the new board members may vote in the remainder
of the agenda items.

6. Presentation of IT changes for 2011/2012 schoot year (Rainy Carstens)
a. RC presented a variety of bids to meet our internet, tele-

communications, and server/hardware needs for the next school

year. These services would be largely funded through an e-Rate

grant, and the actual services purchased would depend on
approval through e-Rate. See attachments for details.

Discussion; _

« - HB noted that the bids are not all comparing the exact same
services/equipment, so it is difficult to compare them fairly. We
are not comparing apples to apples.

* We would want to know what we HAVE to do to function, what
would we LIKE to do to get better, and what is our wish list?
Then we would need to see quotes for each tier of needs and
wants. It would be easier to judge like quotes.

». RC was asked to group services.and hardware into the priority
“tiers” mentioned above, try to compile quotes for each tier, and
then create a report with her recommendations for which

- companies and services to pursue.

» HB poinied out that if AASM is going to change campuses and
PLC commits to updating the whole hardware system, we might
get stuck eating the cost to change the hardware if it is not
funded. This is because the companies will be trying to build an
infrastructure between campuses, so they will not want it to be
piece-mealed together. It is fairly common for companies like
these to require matching hardware pieces, instead of some
new equipment and some old.

+ RC responded that in her discussions with these companies,
they have said that pieces can be taken out of the package (ex:
phone system) without a penalty.

* The Board agreed that until we do a complete 1T assessment, it
i1s difficult to determine our priorities and what we need to
pursue. It would be wise to hire an outside IT Consultant to help





PLC assess the situation. The Board will revisit this topic in

early March with the intent of seeing a final presentation and

recommendation from RC, and to vote on a course of action.
7. Present recent audit to the Board (Maritza Romero)

a. First Audit: The School Board audit is not complete, so there is
nothing to present yet.

b. Second Audit: The Arizona Department of Education requested
time with PLC to audit the 2 SPED-related grants. It is not ready to
present yet.

8. Financial Report (Maritza Romero)

e Presentation of 2010 Financials given by MR (July - Dec. 31, 2010);,
see attachments to the Minutes.

o Discussion: CB asked if the Scottsdale Campus budget numbers
reflect the 7% adjustment that had been discussed in previous
meetings?

e MR said she will need to look into this. The budget she has here is
based on a set of formulas; she needs to see what is included in
those formulas.

9. Outcome of Arizona Mills Mall Fundraiser (presented by Kim Steele)
e Report is attached to the Minutes.
o Would like to do it again next year and try to make it more
profitable. - '
10.Update on new site (Kim Steele)
¢ No update right now

10b. MS made a motion to switch the order of Agenda Items 12 and 13, KS
seconded, Board approved unanimously.
11.Update on Strategic Planning Committee (Maureen DeGrose)
¢ MD presented the work of the Strategic Plan Committee thus far.
» Presentation Slides are attached to the Minutes.
12.Update on Education Committee Meeting (Maureen DeGrose)
¢ MD presented the work of the Education Committee thus far.
e Presentation slides are attached to the Minutes.
13. Discussion of sound equipment for EM (Mike Sims)

e AAEM has received a recommendation for sound equipment from
Alfonzo. Can they go ahead and purchase it?

e The big issue is when PLC will have the finances to purchase new
equipment. Note: The $10,000 purchase was already approved by
the Board in a previous meeting, under the condition that the
money was available.

e BG stated that the money is available. However, while the books
are being audited there are corrections being found and made
every day. She is not 100% comfortable with making the purchase
right now; she would rather wait until there is a better
understanding of our cash flow situation. It would be beneficial for
the Board to see an up-to-date, accurate, cash flow analysis to





make an informed decision about whether to purchase this
equipment right now, or for any future purchase.

Other members stated that the Board already approved the
purchase, so if there is money in the budget and in the bank we
should buy the sound equipment by April 1,

Conclusion ~ in keeping with the previous decision of the Board,
and the fact that funds are available, by April 13 AAEM will
purchase a new sound system for up to $10,000.

14, Discussion of Musical Theater Summer Camp (Mike Sims)

See attachments for a sample advertisement.

The suggestion for Musical Theater Summer Camp is for kids ages

8-15 to produce the Broadway show Godspell Junior. Mike and one
other person would be running the camp. The camp can support
30-40 students as is. If more apply we would need 2 casts.

The school (AAEM) would provide the facility, The Bridge would
provide the production. Any profits will be divided in a
predetermined manner.

BG noted that PLC's insurance has an annual premium, so the
schools are covered year round for student activities.

Mike will advertise this camp in the paper to take advantage of a

. special free marketing deal. If the Board decides at its next meeting

not to approve the camp, he can contact any interested parties to
let them know the camp was canceled.

Suggestions for improvements to the advertisement: Promote the
all-day care price of $110/wk and free meals, provide phone
number of church for inquiries, change wording of “childcare” to
‘Community Programs or something similar.

15. Update on OMA -~ Opening Minds Through the Arts (Mike Sims)

MS presented some background and information on Opening
Minds Through the Arts:

OMA calls themselves “Arts Integration Specialists.” They integrate
the arts into the classroom, as opposed to making the arts a
separate class. They are expensive, but research by WestEd, Inc.
suggests that they are effective in raising test scores and improving
student achievement. MS hopes to bring in OMA representatives at
the next board meeting to have them present what they do.

OMA is looking for a site for their summer workshop, and could
potentially offer a deal where they can hold their 4-day workshop at
AAEM and let a few PLC teachers attend for free (normally a $700+
tuition cost).

16. Discussion of Agenda ltems for future board meetings (Kim Steele)

*

Would like to move future Board meetings to Tuesdays.

Next meeting will be March 1% at 6pm, at AASM.

Potential agenda items to include: Update on new site, Discuss and
vote on IT quotes/bids, Approve ADE audit information, Discuss





and vote on sound equipment for EM, Discuss next year's school
calendar, Approve meeting minutes from 2-14, 2-16, 2-18.
17.HB made a motion to adjourn, seconded by MS. Meeting was adjourned
at 9:15pm.





LERAN Y
ot B ey

PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

February 18, 11:30am — Conference Call Meeting

Meeting Minutes

Present: Mike Sims, President (MS); Kim Steele, Vice President (KS); Agnes Lawson, Treasurer
(AL), Sam Tomiin, Board Member (ST); Cathie Devers, Board Member (CT); Howard Bell, Board

Member (HB)

Pubiic:

1. MS called meeting to order at 11:35am

Agenda ltems:
2. Discussion and action regarding installation of solar panels at Estrella Mountain

campus.
a. HB made a motion fo proceed with the instalfation of the solar panels at Estrella

Mountain, seconded by KS.

3. Meeting adjourned at
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PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC and AAEM

February 18, 11:30am ~ Conference Call Meeting

AGENDA

Present: Mike Sims, President (MS); Kim Steele, Vice President (KS); Agnes
Lawson, Treasurer (AL); Sam Tomlin, Board Member (ST); Howard Bell, Board
Member (HB)

Absent: Cathie Devers (CD)

Public: none

1. MS called meeting to order at 11:37am

Agenda Items:
2. Discussion and action regarding installation of solar panels at Estrella

Mountain campus.
~ a. Howard Bell raised a question on whether or not the ceiling would
be able to handle the weight of the solar panels, Kim Steele said
that it would not be done if after APS inspection it could not handle
the weight.

b. Howard Bell asked since we don’t have anyone on the Estrella
campus that could oversee the operation and completion of the
installation of the solar panels would Sam Tomlin be able to stop by
a couple of times. Sam stated that he would be able to do that.

c. Agnes Lawson asked when they would begin the project and Mike
Sims thought it was in July sometime, further discussion on if it
were during the school year how would that impact the students on
campus.

d. HB made a motion to proceed with the installation of the solar
panels at Estrella Mountain, seconded by KS.

3. Meeting adjourned at 11.57a.m. .





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Tuesday, March 22nd, 2011 at 4:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA
1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

AGENDA ITEMS:
2. Receive information about Compliance Services, inc (CSl) as a possible IT

service provider for PLC
Discussion and Action Item:

3. Discussion and possible action regarding which company to pursue (CSI or
another) for next year’s IT needs and for the purpose of the E-Rate grant.

4. Adjourn
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Tuesday, March 22nd, 2011 at 4:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Present: Mike Sims (President, “MS), Kim Steele (Vice President, "KS), Agnes Lawson
(Board Member, “AL"), Howard Bell (Member, “HB"), Sam Tomlin (Board Member, “ST")

Absent: Cathie Devers

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Rainy Carstens (PLC’s IT Director), Joel Brice & Darrell
Brown (CSI representatives)

1. MS called meeting to order and verified quorum at 4:12pm.

AGENDA ITEMS:
2. Receive information about Compliance Services, Inc (CSI) as a possible IT
service provider for PLC
e (CSlI's bid is attached.
e A long discussion took place with questions for Rainy, Joel, and Darreli.

Discussion and Action ltem:
3. Discussion and possible action regarding which company to pursue (CS| or
another) for next year's |IT needs and for the purpose of the E-Rate grant.

¢ HB made a motion that, based on E-Rate approval for internal
connectivity, we will expend the $45,560 should our budget allow for an IT
expenditure. Seconded by AL, approved unanimously by the board.

o Discussion: HB stated that he does not feel comforiable with a contract
that has a variable hourly rate for maintenance. Our current situation, in
his experience, is that we have not received a lot of additional fees from
our maintenance provider, but with a new vender we cannot easily
anticipate any extra charges.

» KS stated that it seems that CSI has been frank and honest with us, and
has really looked at what we need and has been reasonable. Their
willingness to adjust their monthly maintenance rate as the year goes on,
giving PLC a better handle on the maintenance going forward, and the fact
that they did not take advantage of our lack of knowledge and come in
with an astronomical bid, have worked to earn her confidence.
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+ HB expressed thanks for the hard work put in by RC and JB.

4. HB made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 5:25pm.
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Thursday, March 24th, 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order and verify a guorum
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Moment of Silence

AGENDA ITEMS:

4. Discuss and approve prior minutes from 2-8-11, 3-1-11, and 3-22-
11 meetings.

5. Discussion and posmb!e action for current budget status and
projected budget, presented by Robert Brown w/CSl
(Compliance Services, Inc) |

6. Discussion and possible action regarding the expansion of
Estrella campus.

7. Discussion and possible action regarding going after the bond
financing.

8. Discussion and possible action regarding the use of ACT
(Accelerated Construction Technologies) for the construction.
In accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose fo
convene in execufive session to discuss this item.

9. Discussion and possible action regarding the acceptance of a
quote from ACT {Accelerated Construction Technologies)
presented by Sam Tomlin. In accordance with A.R.S. 38-
431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive session
fo discuss this item.

10. Report on status of South Mountain campus acquisition/
Kim Steele-CEO, Sandra Reece-Realtor (United Brokers Group),
Robert (Bob) Brown-CSl (Compliance Services Inc). In
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accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose fo
convene in executive session o discuss this item.

1. Discussion and possible action regarding the future of
AASM: Remain at current location, move to Tempe, closure. n
accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose to
convene in executive session to discuss this ifem.

12. Discussion and possible action regarding the PTO
policy/Beth Gasperone.

13. Discussion and possible action regarding the update or
change to the Estrella school calendar/Beth Gasperone

14, Discussion and possible action regarding dates and/or
agenda items of future board meetings.

15. Adjourn
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, March 24th, 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

Minutes
Present: Mike Sims (President, “MS”), Agnes Lawson (member, “AL”}, Kim Steele (Vice
President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (member, “ST"), Howard Bell (member, “HB")

Absent: Cathie Devers

Public: Maureen DeGrose (AAEM Site Director), Jessica Finley (Scribe), Beth Gasperone
(Business Director), Elizabeth (Assistant to HB), Joel Brice (cs1), will Geim (Legal Counsel),
Enrigue (PLC Business Department Employee), Bob Brown {Budget Auditor, with Compliance
Services Inc.), Sandra Reese (Real Estate Agent}

1. Called meeting to order at 6:07 and verified a quorum.
2. Recited Pledge of Allegiance
3. Observed a moment of silence

AGENDA ITEMS:
4. Discuss and approve prior minutes from 2-8-11, 3-1-11, and 3-22-11 meetings.
a} On ALL minutes (2-8, 3-1, 3.22), need to change the word “Agenda” to “Minutes.”
b) HB made a motion to approve the 2-8 minutes with the above correction, seconded
by KS, approved unanimousty.
¢) 3-1corrections: Howard Bell “Present Telephonically” instead of “Present
Electronically.” Agenda item #7, bullet point 3: the motion should read “there will be
an external IT audit” (not recommendation).
d) HB made a motion to approve the 3-1 minutes with the above corrections, seconded
by AL, approved unanimously.
e) 3-22 corrections: must state that it was a telephonic meeting, and that KS was
present at the AASM corporate location.
f) HB made a motion to approve the 3-22 minutes with the above corrections,
seconded by ST, approved unanimously.
5. Discussion and possible action for current budget status and projected budget,
presented by Robert Brown w/CS| {Compliance Services, Inc)
a) Robert (Bob) Brown presented a summary report of PLC's financial status and cash
position. He answered several questions from the Board.
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6. Discussion and possible action regarding the expansion of Estrella campus (Maureen
DeGrose)
a) For this discussion, Sandra Reese and Sam Tomlin stepped outside due to their
personal involvement.
b) MD presented a rough idea of the potential enrollment, staffing, and expenses
related to a possible Jr. High expansion at AAEM.
¢) HB made a motion that we formally agree that we need to expand the AAEM
campus to include the building of a facility which will accommodate up to 600
students. Seconded by KS, approved unanimously by the board. ST abstained.
7. Discussion and possible action regarding going after the bond financing (Bob Brown and

Will Gelm)
a) Bob discussed the enroliment numbers AAEM would need to handle an expansion

from the financial side.

b) Will advised the board of the amount of time to expect the bond process to take (90-
100 days), which means that the construction of the AAEM expansion over the
summer would most likely not be feasible.

c¢) HB made a motion that we move ahead with the exploration of acquiring a bond for
the expansion of AAEM and the acquisition of a new building for AASM/new Tempe
location, seconded by KS, approved unanimously. ST abstained.

d) HB made a motion to declare the official intent of P.L.C. Charter Schools for the
reimbursement of capital expenditures associated with the expansion of the Estrella
Mountain campus and/or the acquisition of the South Mountain campus. Seconded by
AL, approved unanimously. ST abstained.
7.1. HB made a motion to table agenda items #8 and 9 (below), seconded by AL, approved
unanimously.
(Tabled) 8. Discussion and possible action regarding the use of ACT (Accelerated Construction
Technologies) for the construction. In accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may
chose to convene in executive session to discuss this item.
(Tabled) 9. Discussion and possible action regarding the acceptance of a quote from ACT
(Accelerated Construction Technologies) presented by Sam Tomlin. /n accordance with A.R.S.
38-431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive session to discuss this item.

10. Report on status of South Mountain campus acquisition (Kim Steele—CEO; Sandra
Reece--Realtor, United Brokers Group; Robert (Bob) Brown—CSl, Compliance
Services Inc). In accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose to
convene in executive session to discuss this item.
a) Lengthy discussion about the Tempe building, competing schools in the area, the
cost to lease or purchase the building.
11. Discussion and possible action regarding the future of AASM: Remain at current
location, move to Tempe, closure. In accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board
may chose to convene in executive session to discuss this item.
a) Lengthy discussion about the current financial state of AASM, the outlook for the
financial future of the campus, the supply and demand of similar programs in the
same vicinity, and the options for AASM's future.
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b) HB made a motion to publicly announce that we will be closing AASM effective the
last day of school 2011, seconded by KS, approved unanimously by the Board. MS
abstained for personal reasons.

1. Discussion: HB stated for the record that the motion and his vote do not
come easily. Eleven years ago thisis where he started, and if there wasn’t a
South Mountain there wouldn’t have been an Estrella Mountain or a
Scottsdale. He hopes the board will find it in the budget to make a plaque
with the pictures of these students for the other campuses, to remember
and memorialize where PLC came from.

2. HB noted that we do still have the Glendale charter and could pursue
something in that location. We could even open other schools in the
Scottsdale charter. Also, the board had agreed previously to give SM one
more year, and it has not succeeded.

3. MS stated that this decision financially makes sense, since there seems to be
no way for AASM to make it financially in the current situation/location. He
also asked the Counsel how the closure of a school would look when PLC is
applying for bonds. Counsel replied that closing a campus which has been
losing money will work to the benefit of the organization when applying fora
bond.

12. Discussion and possible action regarding the Paid Time Off (PTO) policy (Beth
Gasperone)

a) Beth stated that at a future meeting she would like Susan Bowers (HR) to present
a proposal for employees’ PTO and/or benefits to make PLC a more competitive
employer in this regard.

13. Discussion and possible action regarding the update or change to the Estrella school
calendar (Beth Gasperone)

a) Beth presented financial reasons why she would argue that the board reconsider
its decision to take Good Friday as a day off next school year.

b) HB made a motion to accept the revised calendar as proposed by Ms. Gasperone
for the 2011-2012 year, including April 6" as a student attendance day and the
final day as May 23", Seconded by KS, approved unanimously.

14. Discussion and possible action regarding dates and/or agenda items of future board
meetings.

a) The next meeting will be on Tuesday, April 12, 6pm.

15. HB made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 8:36pm.
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Tuesday, April 12, 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
2. Pledge of Aliegiance
3. Moment of Silence

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

4. Update of South closure, share information regarding parent night, open
house

5. Signing of Scottsdale charter

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

6. Discuss and approve minutes from 3-24-11

7. Discussion and possible action regarding Student Handbook/Maureen
DeGrose

8. Discussion and possible action regarding Paid Time Off (PTO) policy,
benefits/Susan Bowers

9. Discussion and possible action regarding financials, budget/Bob Brown

10.Discussion and possible action regarding staff evaluations, raises, bonuses

11.Discussion and possible action regarding teachers asked to return next
year, positions available

12.Discussion and possible action regarding corporate office/location,
financially feasible, size needed, date to occupy ‘

13.Discussion and possible action regarding Estrella campus expansion -- if
need is greater than previous expansion discussed after open enrollment
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Tuesday, April 12th, 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

MINUTES

Present. Mike Sims (President, “MS"), Agnes Lawson (member, “AL”), Kim Steele (Vice
President, “KS"), Sam Tomlin (member, “ST”), Howard Beli (member, “HB"), Cathie Devers

(member, “CD”)

Absent: none

Public: Maureen DeGrose (AAEM Site Director), Jessica Finley (Scribe, “JF”), Beth
Gasperone (PLC Business Director), Elizabeth (Assistant to HB), Joel Brice (CSI), Enrique
Duron (PLC Business Department Employee), Susan Bowers (PLC Human Resources),
Chuck Boebinger (AAS Site Director), Bob Brown (Budget Auditor, with Compliance Services

Inc., “BB")

1. MS called meeting to order at 6:13 and verified a quorum.

2. Recited Pledge of Allegiance.
3. Observed a moment of silence.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:
4. Update of South closure, share information regarding parent night, open house
{(a) MS made a motion fo pull agenda items #4 & 5 out of the Consent category,
seconded by ST, approved unanimously.
5. Signing of Scottsdale charter {(moved out of Consent category)

AGENDA ITEMS:
4.b. Update of South closure, share information regarding parent night, open house/

Kim Steele
(a) KS gave an update of PL.C’s conversations with Skyline regarding moving into
the AASM campus next school year. They are holding an informational open
house next Tuesday.
5.b. Signing of Scotisdale charter/ Kim Steele
(a) KS informed the Board that the Scottsdale Charter had been signed.
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DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS:
6. Discuss and approve minutes from 3-24-11

(a) Change #1-3 to past tense verbs.

(b) AL made a motion to approve the minutes from 3-24-11, seconded by KS,
approved unanimously.

7. Discussion and possible action regarding Student Handbook/Maureen DeGrose

(a) Howard Bell arrived at 6:23 pm.

(b) HB made a motion to table the approval of the 2011-2012 Student Handbook with
the recommendation that the schools operate under the current handbook undtil the
Board has had a chance to thoroughly review the handbook, get feedback, and
discuss it at a later meeting. Seconded by ST, approved unanimously.

(c) Discussion:

i. MS said he had little if any input in writing the handbook. For the most part it is
very good. Kudos to whomever pulled it together. He did not want to cast a
negative shadow on the document after the discussion here tonight.

iil. HB expressed concern about the different philosophies regarding the arts that
were represented in the handbook. HB noted that MD has submitted the
handbook to the Board for approval every year since she became Site Director.
The issues happened before that.

iii. CD said it would be nice to see a list of what the performing arts were, so they
don't sound like they are optional.

iv. HB asked if, for the Site Directors’ sake, we could put a deadline as to when the
Board would approve a new handboock? MS responded that it would be before
the start of the next school year.

v. MS stated that we should emphasize that all arts classes will not be electives or
specials, but vital parts of the curriculum. He thinks that the PLC district has the
liberty to set up the core components of each PLC school, yet still give each
campus freedom to meet their own unique needs.

(d) HB made a motion to form a task force, with KS as the chair, plus the two Slte
Directors, and MS as a representative of the Board, for the purpose of reviewing the
Student Handbook and its philosophies, and proposing any necessary revisions, to
report back to the Board by June 15, 2011. Seconded by AL, approved unanimously.

8. Discussion and possible action regarding Paid Time Off (PTO) policy, benefits/Susan

Bowers
(a) Susan Bowers presented some proposed changes to the PTO policy and empioyee

benefits. See attachment to meeting minutes. No action taken at this time.

9. Discussion and possible action regarding financials, budget/Bob Brown
(a) Bob presented a comparison of last year's and this year's financials (see

attachment). No action taken at this time.

(b) He warned that PL.C's available cash reserve is too low. Recommends 6-8 weeks of
cash reserves on hand. Also recommends that the company sit financially for 1 year
and let their reserves build up.

10. Discussion and possible action regarding staff evaluations, raises, bonuses/

Maureen DeGrose
(a) Evaluations were done, and intents to return have been given by staff. Next week

the schools will offer teachers their intent to give them a contract, and contracts will
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be signed in May. No action taken at this time.

1. Discussion and possible action regarding teachers asked to return next year,
positions available/ Maureen DeGrose

(a) MD and CB reported the numbers for staff returning and open positions. No action
taken at this time.

12. Discussion and possible action regarding corporate office/location, financially
feasible, size needed, date to occupy/ Kim Steele

(a) KS stated that after hearing Bob's recommendations, it does not seem like a sound
decision to seek an additional office building to rent or buy at this time. The board
will continue looking for a place to have offices. A better decision can be made once
the budget for next year has been set.

13. Discussion and possible action regarding Estrelia campus expansion -- if need is
greater than previous expansion discussed after open enroliment/ Maureen DeGrose

(a) MD presented an option for adding some new classrooms in Room 306 and
increasing enroliment at Estrella.

(b) A lengthy discussion followed where the board discussed this and other options for
increasing enrollment while not overcrowding the AAEM facility next year.

(c) MS moved to take a five minute bathroom break at 8:48pm.

(d) At 8:59pm the Board was back in session.

14. Discussion and possible action regarding CEO responsibilities and salary. /n
accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive
session to discuss this item.

(a) HB made a motion to convene into executive session, for KS to leave the room,
and for BB and JF to remain. No objections.

(b) The Board entered into executive session at 9:00pm. ' :

(c) The Board returned to open session at 9:39pm. CEp POLT her

(d) HB made a motion to extend a contract for full fime employment, effective May 1,

]'P v ;011 at the salary rate of $80,000 plus benefits to Ms. Kimberly Renee Steele, and
OSt o™ we would like to have an answer back to the Chairman of the Board on this offer no
NS Ot later than Friday of this week. Seconded by ST, approved unanimously. KS
Yo LS a,J abstained from voting.
O Bkt 57 (&) Discussion:
e i. MS stated that part of our requirement is that you come to work full time. The
Oun QS reason for our offer is to make you feel secure enough to come here full time.

i. HB noted that the reason we said the amount in public is that it will be public
record anyway. He also stated that it is recommended that the CEO position not
be on the board. It’'s not fair to have her mentor the people she has to answer
to.

iii. There was some discussion about whether or not the CEO should also actas a
member of the Board. The members decided to resolve this at a later time.

iv. HB stated that he supports moving the CEO position to full time as soon as
possible because he has heard from some of the key employees how well KS is
doing (as CEQ), and how they need her to be more available.

15. Discussion and possible action regarding new PLC corporate position needed:
responsibilities and salary. /n accordance with A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may
chose fo convene in executive session to discuss this item.

(a) HB made a motion {o convene in executive session, for MS to leave the room, and





4 of4

for BB and JF to remain. No objections.

(b) MS made a motion to have HB operate as Chairman during his absence. No
objections.

(c) At 9:47pm the Board entered executive session.

(d) The Board returned to open session at 10:17pm. HB continued in the role of
Chairman for the following motion.

(e) AL made a motion to table #15 until a later date, seconded by CD. Approved
unanimously. MS abstained from voting.

(f) Discussion: HB stated that we all agree the position is necessary and something we
all want. What it will look like and how much it will pay will need to be solidified after
open enrollment.

16. Review and discuss Corporate Flow Chart

(a) HB made a motion to table discussion on the flow chart, seconded by AL,
approved unanimously.

17. Discussion and possible action regarding dates and possible agenda items of
future board meetings

(a) Agenda items for next meeting should include: Corporate Flow Chart, decision on
executive manager, student handbook, budget, staff policies and procedures. All
other items must be submitted to the Chairman no later than 3 days before the next

meeting. Date: Thursday, April 28", 6pm, at AASM.

18. HB made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 10:27pm.
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2.
3.

PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, April 28", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA
Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance

Discussion and Action:

1.
2.

w

Discussion and possible action regarding approval of minutes from 4-12-11.
Discussion and possible action regarding employee PTO, benefits, policies
and procedures. (Enrique Duron, Susan Bowers, Elizabeth Gasperone)
Report and Discussion regarding the budget. (Bob Brown)

Discussion and possible action regarding corporate office location and
lease.

Discussion and possible action regarding Estrella campus expansion: the
possible use of modular classrooms in front, and the usage of existing
buildings.

Discussion and possibie action regarding position of Executive Manager of
Performing Arts / Corporate Development and Marketing and Public
Relations, which may include job description and salary. In accordance with
A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive session to
discuss this item.

Report and update of Student Handbook corrections. Discussion and
possibie action regarding the proposed corrections to the Student
Handbook.





8. Report and discussion regarding the PLC Performing Arts Policy as it is
practiced at Estrella and Scottsdale Campuses,

9. Discussion and possible action regarding lease of Scottsdale Academy.

10.Discussion and possible action regarding Authorizing Resolution for the
bond financing.

11.Discussion and possible action regarding Reimbursement Resolution for the
bond financing.

12.Discussion and possible action regarding a Whistle-Blower Policy for the
PLC Corporate by-laws.

13.Discussion and possible action regarding Corporate Flow Chart.

14.Discussion and possible action regarding Tribute’ to South Mountain
'Founders’, Faculty, Students and staff at final performance (May 13")?

15.Discussion and possible action regarding future meetings and agenda items.

16.Adjourn
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, April 28", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

MINUTES

Present: Mike Sims (President, “MS"), Kim Steele (Vice President/CEO, “KS”), Sam
Tomlin (Member, “ST"), Cathie Devers (Member, “CD”), Agnes Lawson (Member, “AL")

Present Telephonically: Howard Bell (Member, “HB”)

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Beth Gasperone (Business Director), Enrique Duron
(Business Department), Susan Bowers (HR Department), Joel Brice (CSl), Maureen
DeGrose (AAEM Site Director), Bob Brown (CSl), Patricia Bumann (AAEM), Terri Lake
(AAEM)

Absent: none

1. Mike Sims called meeting to order at 6:07pm and verified a quorum.

2. Recited Pledge of Allegiance
3. Observed a moment of silence

AGENDA

Discussion and Action:
1. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of minutes from 4-12-11.
a. Changes: 14:D — “offer the CEO 80k and full benefits, with the condition
that she come to work full time by May 1"
b. 7:B: eliminate “d” in “until”
c. ST made a motion to accept the minutes with the above corrections,
seconded by AL, approved unanimously.

Discussion and possible action regarding employee PTO, benefits, policies and
procedures. (Enrique Duron, Susan Bowers, Elizabeth Gasperone)
a. HB made a motion to move this item to after item #6, second by AL,

approved unanimously.





2.

3.

4.

Report and Discussion regarding the budget. (Bob Brown)
a. Bob presented a preliminary budget forecast for Estrella Mountain
campus. (See attachment)
b. The board discussed the budget and asked questions of Bob.
c. KS made a motion to table items #3, 5, 9, 10, and 11 until a future
meeting, seconded by AL, the motion was passed with a 4-2 vote. MS and
ST voted “Nay.”
i. Discussion: HB said he believes the bond financing items need to
be done and will not take much time...why not just do it tonight?
ii.ST said he agrees with HB's comments regarding the bond
financing; it allows us to proceed with something that might allow
growth, which will support the finances of the company. Portable
buildings can be a no-cost discussion.
d. HB feft the meeting at 7:02pm.
Discussion and possible action regarding corporate office location and lease.
(tabled)

Discussion and possible action regarding Estrella campus expansion: the
possible use of modular classrooms in front, and the usage of existing buildings.
a. MS shared that we are looking at possibly adding a couple of modular

buildings to accommeodate four new classrooms, which could house about
120 new students, and would mean an additional income of approx.
$400,000 to $500,000 a year for a cost of much less than that.
b. ST presented a preliminary blueprint for these modulars on the AAEM
campus as part of a multi-phase construction plan.
c. A discussion about the proposed plan followed.
d. No action was taken at this time.
Discussion and possible action regarding position of Executive Manager of
Performing Arts / Corporate Development and Marketing and Public Relations,
which may include job description and salary. /n accordance with A.R.S. 38-
431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive session to discuss this
item. (tabled)
Discussion and possible action regarding employee PTO, benefits, policies and
procedures. (Enrique Duron, Susan Bowers, Elizabeth Gasperone)
a. SB presented proposed employee PTO, policy, and procedure changes
and additions. See attachment.
b. The Board discussed the proposed changes and asked questions of SB.
c. AL made a motion to accept the changes that have been brought forth in
the personnel handbook as presented by Susan Bowers, seconded by
CD, approved unanimously; MS and KS abstained, HB was absent.
i. Discussion: CD — on the PTO donation, you just put it in a pot and
you don’t designate who it goes to, right? SB — yes
d. AL made a motion to table the discussion and possible action regarding
benefits until a cash flow analysis is available, seconded by CD, approved
unanimously; KS and MS abstained, HB was absent.
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7. Report and update of Student Handbook corrections. Discussion and possible
action regarding the proposed corrections to the Student Handbook.

a. MS and MD reported on the changes to the Student Handbook.

b. ST made a motion that we accept the handbook with the proposed
corrections, seconded by KS, approved unanimously.

8. Report and discussion regarding the PLC Performing Arts Policy as it is practiced
at Estrella and Scottsdale Campuses.

a. MS and MD clarified that alf students participate in performing arts as part
of their core curriculum, and they also have performing arts electives
available if their grades merit it.

9. Discussion and possible action regarding lease of Scottsdale Academy.

a. KS reported that we have received notice that there is money owed for
2009 property taxes at this site. As of January 31, 2011 there was a lien
put on the property; the lien has been purchased by two separate
companies. The owner has 3-5 years to pay them back to satisfy the lien.
If he does not do this, the two companies can take over that property.

b. A discussion followed about this information.

c. KS plans to meet with an attorney (free consultation) to gather more
information about PLC's options.

d. No action was taken at this time.

10. Discussion and possible action regarding Authorizing Resolution for the bond
financing. (tabled)

11. Discussion and possible action regarding Reimbursement Resolution for the
bond financing. (tabled)

12. Discussion and possible action regarding a Whistle-Blower Policy for the PLC
Corporate by-laws. (tabled) :

13. Discussion and possible action regarding Corporate Flow Chart.

a. AL made a motion to table this item, seconded by ST, approved
unanimously. _

14.Discussion and possible action regarding 'Tribute' to South Mountain 'Founders,
Faculty, Students and staff at final performance (May 13""}?

a. MS said that he would like to plan a tribute to South Mountain founders,
faculty, students, and/or staff, to be presented on May 13™ after the final
performance.

b. AL made a motion that we allow up to $500 to be spent for a special
tribute on May 13" to the founders, staff, and/or students of South
Mountain, seconded by KS, approved unanimousty.

15. Discussion and possible action regarding future meetings and agenda items.

a. Next meeting will be Monday, May 16'". Agenda items will include the
items tabled tonight. Other items will be submitted to the Chair three days
before the meeting.

16. CD made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 8:15pm.





4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www.plccharterschools.org

Monday, May 16", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PL.C Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
2. Moment of Silence
3. Pledge of Allegiance

AGENDA

Discussion and Action:
4. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of minutes from 4-28-11.
™ 5, Update and Discussion regarding the budget and cash flow (Robert Brown
or Enrique Duron)

N\ 6. Discussion and action regarding Charter Holder Location Notification
Request with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools." (Elizabeth
Gasperone) o

7. Discussion and action regarding whether to retain Anthony Lorenzo for the
annual audit. (Elizabeth Gasperone)

¢z 8. Discussion and possible action with regards to the issurance of supplemental
financing for the existing bond financing. (Will Gelm)

9. Discussion and action regarding the use of Education Technology
Consortium (ETC) as the IT Service Provider including E-Rate support.
(Enrique Duron)

N\ 10.Discussion and possible action regarding corporate office location and lease.

\11.Discussion and possible action regarding position of Executive Manager of
Performing Arts / Corporate Development and Marketing and Public
Relations, which may include job description and salary. In accordance with
A.R.S. 38-431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive session
to discuss this item.

N\





N 12.Discussion and possible action regarding Authorizing Resolution for the
bond financing.
™-13.Discussion and possible action regarding Reimbursement Resolution for the
bond financing.
\14.Discussion and possible action regarding a Whistle-Blower Policy for the
‘2(}/{? PLC Corporate by-laws.
" "\.15.Discussion and possible action regarding Corporate Flow Chart.
"\\16.Discussion and possible action in regards to retaining a law firm for the
purpose of demanding that all back taxes for the Scottsdale location be
satisfied and liens released, and to handle any other related issues/concerns.
17.Discussion and possible action on the renewal of the Scottsdale parking lot
lease.
™\ 18.Discussion and possible action with regards to signing a contract with CIC
for the purpose of keeping PLC in compliance.
'19.Discussion about future agenda items and next meeting.

N
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PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
4039 E. Raymond St., Suite #3, Phoenix, AZ 85040
Phone (602) 437-3927 - Fax (602) 426-1342
www . plccharterschools.org

Monday, May 16", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

MINUTES

Present: Mike Sims (President, “MS"), Kim Steele (Vice President/CEO, “KS”), Sam
Tomlin (Member, “ST"), Cathie Devers (Member, “CD"), Agnes Lawson (Member, “AL"),
Howard Bell (Member, "HB")

Public: Jessica Finley {Scribe), Beth Gasperone (Business Manager, "BG"), Enrique
Duron (Financial Manager, “ED"), Will Gelm (Attorney, “WG")

Absent: none

1.
2.
3.

Mike Sims called meeting to order at 6:13pm and verified a quorum.
Observed a moment of silence
Recited Pledge of Aliegiance

Discussionand Action: =~

4.

Discussion and possible action regarding approval of minutes from 4-28-11.
e HB made a motion to approve the minutes of 4-28. KS seconded.
e Minutes were approved unanimously without corrections.

HB made a motion to move items #8, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17 into the #5
position, seconded by CD, approved unanimously.

HB -~ for the record, item #5 has a typo and should read “issuance,” not
“‘issurance.”

Discussion and possible action with regards to the issuranee issuance of
supplemental financing for the existing bond financing. (Will Gelm)

» Wil Gelm presented a brief summary of what has happened so far with
the bonds, and presented two scenarios for supptemental bond
issuance (see attachment).

» A discussion followed in which the board asked questions of Wil Gelm.

. No_action was taken at this time.
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6. Discussion and possible action regarding Authorizing Resolution for the bond
financing.
+« HB made a motion to approve the Authorization and Reimbursement

Resolutions, seconded by Al..
o Discussion:

»  MS —-What are committed to by authorizing these items at this
time?

» WG - You are committing to having us starting working in
earnest on putting together a bond transaction, and any monies
associated with it.

» HB -~ You may see a $5k expense here or there, but the real
expenses won't hit until August/September.

» WG — Between now and the end of August you can expect
about $10k - $25k in fees.

» KS — So we approve this, find out our cash flow, then if we need
to hold off on something a little bit we can stilt do this?

» WG - Yes. Also, there is a program available to charter schools
that will allow them to borrow up to $150k to help them with
upfront costs.

» Motion was passed unanimously.

7. Discussion and possible action regarding Reimbursement Resolution for the
bond financing.

o See #3 for the motion made on this item and the outcome of the motion.

8. Discussion and possible action regarding a Whistle-Blower Policy for the PLC
Corporate by-laws.
¢ See attachment.
¢ HB made a motion to approve the Whistle Blower Policy as presented to

the board, seconded by ST. '
o Nodiscussion. e

« Motion was passed unanimously.

9. Discussion and possible action regarding Corporate Flow Chart. (tabled)

« HB made a motion to table discussion of the Corporate Filow Chart until
a later date, seconded by ST,

o No discussion.

¢ Motion was passed unanimously.

10. Discussion and possible action in regards to retaining a law firm for the purpose
of demanding that all back taxes for the Scottsdale location be satisfied and fiens
released, and to handle any other related issues/concerns.

e Kim presented the information from Mack Drucker & Watson P.L.C., a real
estate attorney she had met with, (see attachment) regarding fees and
services that could be provided.

» ST made a motion that we retain Will’s firm to address this issue, and
have Kim continue to work on it as well, seconded by AL.

o No discussion.
¢+ Motion was passed unanimously.
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» At 7:45pm the board took a break.
» The board reconvened at 7:53pm.

11. Discussion and possible action on the renewal of the Scottsdale parking lot

lease.

o KS stated that they are asking for some increases that are unreasonable. See
attachment regarding recommendations from Sandra Reece, Real Estate
Agent. Bottom line is, we know we need the parking lot but we are trying not
to be taken advantage of.

¢ MS made a motion to give the CEO the board’s approval to discuss with
the church and attorneys and to negotiate the details of this lease.

o Discussion:
= HB — | don’t agree with us making motions and setting a

precedence to micro-manage the CEO.
= MS—For the future, | agree, but because it's on the agenda |

would like to make a motion for it now.
e “Aye” votes: MS, KS, AL, CD, ST, “Nay” vote: HB. Motion was passed 5-1.
12.Update and Discussion regarding the budget and cash flow (Robert Brown or
Enrique Duron)
e BG and ED presented the updated Cash Flow Analysis (see attachment).
e The board asked questions of Beth and Enrique regarding the details of the
Cash Flow Analysis that was presented.
13.Discussion and action regarding Charter Holder Location Notification Request
with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools. (Elizabeth Gasperone)
e Beth proposed that we change the charter holder address and corporate
address to the AAEM location.
e HB made a motion to move the corporate address to the AAEM location
(2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353) KS seconded.
o No discussion.
¢ Motion was passed unanimously.
14.Discussion and action regarding whether to retain Anthony Lorenzo for the
annual audit. (Elizabeth Gasperone)
¢ HB made a motion to retain Anthony Lorenzo for all PLC entities (AAEM
and AASC), seconded by KS,
o No discussion.

¢ Motion was passed unanimously.
15.Discussion and action regarding the use of Education Technology Consortium

(ETC) as the IT Service Provider including E-Rate support. (Enrique Duron)

o ED recommended that the board reverse the decision made on March 22,
2011, and that we keep NAC as a network service provider.

e HB made a motion to keep ETC and to reverse the decision made on
March 22, seconded by AL.





40of5

o Discussion:

» ST - This seems like something Kim could just take care of.

» HB — We need to reverse it as a board, because it was a
decision made as a board. The contract for ETC will come as a
consent item when it is signed.

+ Motion passed unanimously.

16. Discussion and possible action regarding corporate office location and lease.

* ST made a motion that we allow KS to provide the board options for

office space and meeting space, seconded by CD.
o Discussion:

» HB | don't think it should be Kim; it should be you (MS). She
needs to close down this campus.

» MS — She can delegate to me as much of it as she wants,

« Motion was passed unanimously

17.Discussion and possible action regarding position of Executive Manager of

Performing Arts / Corporate Development and Marketing and Public Relations,

which may include job description and salary. In accordance with A.R.S. 38-

431.03(7) The Board may chose to convene in executive session to discuss this

item.

« HB made a motion to hire MS as Executive Manager of Performing Arts /
Corporate Development and Marketing and Pubiic Relations as
previously discussed in Executive Session, that his office hours would
be on campus, and that he would report directly to the CEQ, seconded by
ST.

c Discussion: .

» AL —1don't want to approve this right now. We don't have the
funds. A lot of the things | see over here are things that Kim can
do. If we are cutting other employees in different areas, maybe
we don't need this position at this moment. We don't have the
money for this, \OrTietit. vve U

»  KS - It seems difficult to approve this position with the job
description presented when | do not have my own job
description yet.

» HB - We are not voting on the job description now, just the
position.

« “Aye” votes: ST, HB, CD; “Nay” vote: AL; Abstaining: MS, KS. Motion
passed with a vote of 3-1.

» KS made a motion that we recant the previous motion and action,
seconded by AL. '

o Discussion:

» ST - This certainly seems to be a subject that needs more
discussion.

= HB - Kim’s argument is reasonable, that we can't define this job
description until Kim has her own job description.

* “Aye” votes: AL, KS; “Nay” votes: HB, CD, ST, Abstaining: MS; Motion
stands as passed with a vote of 2-3.





Hof b

18. Discussion and possible action with regards to signing a contract with CIC for the
purpose of keeping PLC in compliance.
¢ WG explained what the CIC service offers, and stated that it may be
advantageous for PLC to work with a company like this to help them stay in
compliance with full disclosure bond requirements.
¢ HB made a motion to retain CIC, seconded by ST.
o No discussion.
¢ Motion passed unanimously.
19. Discussion about future agenda items and next meeting.
o Next meeting will be Tuesday, June 14", at AASM.
» Items for next agenda should inciude the following:
o Approve Budget
o Corrective action: have the board ratify the decision made in #17;
will have opportunity for additional discussion -- Ratifying
Resolution
o Discuss removal of MS from the writing of KS's job description —
have the employment committee write it and present to the board.
o Change the chairman of the board
o HB requested that we limit future agendas to 8 or 9 items.

HB made a motion to adjourn; meeting was adjourned at 9:45pm.
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, June 8", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PL.C Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance

Discussion and Action:

4.
5.

Discussion and action regarding approval of minutes from 5-16-11.
Discussion and possible action to approve the amended budget along
with the time and place for the public hearing, to adopt the Fiscal
year 2012 Expenditure budget for PLC Charter Schools and PLC Arts
Academy at Scottsdale.

Discussion and possible action cash flow analysis, expense report and
statement of activities.

Discussion and possible action to approve a company credit card vs.
debit cards already in use.

Discussion on resignation of AAEM Site Director and plans for moving
forward.

Discussion and possible action on demographic area, type of
purchase/build, cost of up-front monies needed for the opening of
the {(Glendale) charter for the 2012/2013 school year.

10. Discussion and possible action of formation of Policies and

Procedures committee, to determine the delegation of authority
specific to facility use and agreements.





11. Discussion and possible action to review the job description of the
CEO brought forward by Mike Sims, Agnes Lawson and Cathie
Devers.

12. Discussion and possible action of what needs to be on future agenda
items, formation of agendas and time constraints.

13. Discussion and possible action on whether or not to increase the
facility size at AAEM.

14. Discussion and possible action on the installment of modular
buildings to increase the enroliment at AAEM for the 2011/2012
school year.

15. Discussion and possible action on the number of kindergarten
students enrolled per campus, and any and all costs associated with

Kindergarten.
16. Discussion and possible action to renew the contract with Pitney

Bowes for postage.
17. Discussion about future agenda items and date of next meeting.

18. Adjourn.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, June 9", 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

MINUTES

Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS"}, Agnes Lawson (Member, “AL"), Sam
Tomlin (Member, “ST”); Howard Bell (Member, “HB")

Present Telephonically for a portion of the meeting: Howard Bell (Member, “HB")

Absent. Mike Sims (President), Cathie Devers (Member, “CT")

Public: Gerod Belnap (Country Financial), Joel Brice (CSI Services), Beth
Gasperone (PLC Business Manager, “BG”), Enrique Duron (PLC Financial
Manager), Jessica Finley (Scribe)

1.
2.

3.
4

KS called the meeting to order at 6:15pm and verified a quorum.
KS made a motion that we have ST step in as acting Chairman
for this meeting, seconded by AL. No discussion. Approved
unanimously. ST abstained.

Observed a moment of silence.

Recited Pledge of Allegiance.

Discussion and Action:

**Let the minutes reflect that as of 8-9-11, Mr. Sims resigned his position on
the Board of PLC Charter Schools.

ST made a motion to accept the resignation of Mike Sims from
the Board, seconded by AL.

o No discussion

Motion was approved unanimously.

5. Discussion and action regarding approval of minutes from 5-16-11.

e Al made a motion to approve the minutes of the 5-16
meeting as they stand, seconded by HB.
o No discussion
¢« Motion was approved unanimously.





6. Discussion and possible action to approve the amended budget along with
the time and place for the public hearing, to adopt the Fiscal year 2012
Expenditure budget for PLC Charter Schools and PLC Arts Academy at
Scottsdale.

KS acknowledged the discussions and many hours that went
into creating this budget. it is very detailed, includes government
grant information, and has more accurate/realistic numbers from
Scottsdale and Estrella Mountain.
Joel Brice presented an overview of the 2011-2012 budget for
Scottsdale and Estrella campuses. See attachment for details.

o The Board asked questions of Joel Brice, Beth

Gasperone, and Enrique Duron.

Howard Bell arrived in person at 6:36pm.
HB made a motion to approve the budgets for AASC and
AAEM as presented, seconded by KS.

o No discussion

' I E ) ! E IRTE

+ HB made a motion to strike item #7 from the agenda,

seconded by KS,
o No discussion
Motion was approved unanimously.

8. Discussion and possible action to approve a company credit card vs.
debit cards already in use.

BG explained the past situation with the company debit cards,
and the potential advantages and savings that would come with
company credit cards.

HB made a motion that the CEO be permitted to possess a
credit card with an amount not to exceed $10,000 $5,000.
Seconded by AL.

o Discussion: ST stated he would like to propose a $5000
limit instead of $10,000.

o HB stated that there potentially are circumstances in
which $10k could be spent in one month. We could
change it to $5k, but that seems a little low.

o HB amended his motion to read “$5,000” instead of
“$10,000," seconded by AL.

Motion was approved unanimously.
HB made a motion that each Site Director be given a credit
card with a limit of $2500, seconded by Al..

o No discussion.

Motion was approved unanimously.

HB made a motion that a proposed policy for these credit
cards be presented to the board at the next meeting, before
these cards are handed out. The policy should be made by
AL and with 2 individuals of her choosing, including a





corporate officer and a community member. Seconded by
KS.

o No discussion

e Motion was approved unanimously.

9. 'Discussion on resignation of AAEM Site Director and plans for moving
forward.

e Discussion: KS reported that on Monday morning Maureen
DeGrose handed in her resignation. She will be staying on until
the end of June. We now have an advertisement out for a Site
Director and are looking for experienced, qualified candidates to
interview who share our vision for performing arts.

e The Board discussed that this time before a new Site Director is
hired is an opportunity to clarify some philosophical beliefs
about what an SD should be and what expectations the Board
has of the position. The Board also recommended looking up
salary comparisons from three other similar organizations and
creating a competitive salary rubric for the position based on
education and experience.

10.Discussion and possible action on demographic area, type of
purchase/build, cost of up-front monies needed for the opening of the
(Glendale) charter for the 2012/2013 school year.

e AL made a motion to table this item, seconded by HB.

o Discussion: HB stated that the phrase “monies needed
for the opening of the (Glendale) charter” will possibly
need a retreat to discuss. There's a lot of things that will
go into this one item. It's probably a half a day
discussion.

o KS will determine a time, date and location for such a
retreat.

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.

11. Discussion and possible action of formation of Policies and Procedures
committee, to determine the delegation of authority specific to facility use
and agreements.

e HB made a motion to table item #11, seconded by AL.

o Discussion: HB and ST agreed that this could be a topic
at the retreat; it should be set in place before we hire a
new SD.

e Motion was approved unanimously..

12. Discussion and possible action to review the job description of the CEO
brought forward by Mike Sims, Agnes Lawson and Cathie Devers.

e HB made a motion to table item #12, seconded by KS.

o Discussion: AL stated that the job description is finished,
she was just not able to print it tonight. Will email it out
ASAP.

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.

13. Discussion and possible action of what needs to be on future agenda
items, formation of agendas and time constraints.





HB made a motion that all agenda items must be submitted
to the Secretary of the Board one week prior to that
meeting, and that no agenda contain more than seven
items, and the time constraint be set to 2 hours maximum
unless it is a retreat. Seconded by KS.

No discussion

Motion was approved unanimously.

14. Discussion and possible action on whether or not to increase the
facility size at AAEM.

HB made a motion to move agenda item 16 to agenda item
14, seconded by KS.

No discussion

Motion was approved unanimously.

15. Discussion and possible action on the number of kindergarten students
enrolled per campus, and any and all costs associated with Kindergarten.

*

The Board had a discussion about whether to limit the number
of Kindergarten classes at AAEM and use the extra class
spaces for fully funded students. Other options discussed were
charging for Kindergarten either this year or next year, informing
parents that the number of Kindergarten classes were cut and
hold a lottery to determine who could stay, or keeping the
current enrollment and letting the students have a %z day with a
teacher, and a ¥z day with an aide.

No action was taken at this time.

16. Discussion and possible action on whether or not to increase the
facility size at AAEM.

HB made a motion that we do not expand the AAEM
campus in light of the fact that there are plenty of students,
a positive bottom line in the budget, and that there is no SD

yet; seconded by KS.

o Discussion: KS ~ | originally was not opposed to adding
buildings to the campus because we had an SD who had
the ability to do it, but | think now it will be too great of a
challenge for a new SD to manage.

o ST - The plan for the modular buildings was originally to
alleviate overcrowding and to increase enrollment and
revenue, enhancing our ability to secure bond financing
and further expansion. In meeting with Maureen and SRP
today, she indicated that she could move her entire 68"
grade to these buildings and use the other space for
music and the arts and that it would fit well into her plans.

o HB - Can the campus hold the 927 students? Yes, but it
is crowded. So bringing in the trailers gives us more room
but not really additional income.

o ST - It would also be able to house some additional
students.





o HB — It would not bring in a substantial amount, plus it
would need maintenance etc. We are also planning to
add a new campus next year, so what is the rush?

o AL~ If we are going to be expanding next year, then let's
just wait one more year.

e “Aye” HB, KS, AL; “Nay”. ST. Motion passed 3-1,
17. Discussion and possible action on the instaliment of modular buildings to
increase the enroliment at AAEM for the 2011/2012 school year.
e ST stated this agenda item is now irrelevant due to the previous

motion.
18. Discussion and possible action to renew the contract with Pitney Bowes

for postage.
» KS presented a potential new contract with Pitney Bowes. See
attachment.
« HB made a motion to approve the PB contract as written,
with the additional request that future items of this
magnitude be distributed in advance and simply put on a
consent agenda. Seconded by AL.
» No discussion.
¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
19. Discussion about future agenda items and date of next meeting.
e Next meeting will be Thursday, June 30 at AASM, 6:30pm.
« Consent items: all new contracts for the coming year shouid
come before the board for approval; minutes from 6-9-11;
budget
» Other Agenda Items: CEO job description, Policies and
procedures committee, Policy for credit cards, Need to appoint a
permanent Chairman, Need to rescind the vote regarding the
position offered to Mike Sims
20.HB made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 8:24pm.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
- 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
F Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337
www . plccharterschools.org

Thursday, June 30, 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

1. Consent ltems:
Approve conflict of interest policy required for bond
financing

Approve new contracts for the coming year (only those in

this attachment)

Approve Room Usage agreement

Approve minutes from 6-9-11

Approve policy for credit cards

Approve budget with $250.00 benefit addition already
factored in, in lieu of a raise.

Approve next scheduled board meeting to be held July

14th @
Estrella Campus @4:00 p.m.

2. Presentation by Kids Connection

Discussion and Action:

Approve standard Independent contractor agreement





9.

Discussion and possible action to amend the Glendale charter
to

change it from a K-8 to a high school.

Discussion and possible action regarding location and purchase
of property for the proposed high school. /Presented by Sandra
Reece '

Discussion and possible action to approve the already existing
modular building be placed up to code prior to any and all
children

having access.

Discussion and possible action to accept the nomination of an
additional board member.

Discussion and possible action regarding appointing a
permanent

Chairman.

Discussion and possible action regarding ratifying/rescinding
the
vote regarding the position offered to Mike Sims .

Discussion about future agenda items and date of next
meeting.

Adjourn.





PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623} 474-2120 Fax: {623) 936-5337

www plccharterschools.org

Thursday, June 30™, 2011 at 6:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

MINUTES

Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Agnes Lawson (Member, "AL"), Sam
Tomlin (Member, “ST"); Cathie Devers (Member, “CT")

Absent: Howard Bell (Member, “HB")
Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Bob Brown, Cory Lyke (Kid's Connection)

» KS called the meeting to order at 6:20pm and verified a quorum,
» Observed a moment of silence.
» Recited Pledge of Allegiance.

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

* AL made a motion that Sam Tomlin serve as acting Chairman
for this meeting, seconded by CD.

> No discussion.
¢ Motion was approved unanimously. ST abstained.

1. Consent ltems:
Approve conflict of interest policy required for bond financing
Approve standard Independent contractor agreement
Approve new contracts for the coming year (only those in this attachment)
Approve Room Usage agreement
Approve minutes from 6-9-11
Approve policy for credit cards
Approve budget with $250.00 benefit addition already factored in, in lieu of a
raise.
Approve next scheduled board meeting to be held July 14th @ Estrella Campus
@4:00 p.m.

* ST made a motion to move the Credit Card Policy off the consent
agenda list, seconded by KS.





° No discussion.
¢« Motion was approved unanimously.
* KS made a motion to move the next scheduled board meeting off

the consent agenda list, seconded by CD.
> No discussion.

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
» KS made a motion to accept all of the remaining consent agenda

items, seconded by AL.

> No discussion.
» Motion was approved unanimously.

2. Presentation by Kids Connection/ Cory Lyke
*Cory Lyke gave a presentation about the Kids Connection’s PE, after

school, and sports programs that have been provided to AAEM and
AASM.

Discussion and Action:

3. PLC Credit Card Policy (removed from Consent Agenda)
¢ KS made a motion to add 2 more cards to the list of approved

credit cards, each with a $1000 limit, to be used by the Finance
Manager and the Business Manager, seconded by AL.

> No discussion
* Motion was approved unanimously.
» The board pointed out that in the 6th builet point, the word “retain”
should be changed to “retained,” and the sentence “No cash should be
received by the Cardholder” should be removed.
e KS made a motion to approve the credit card policy as it
stands, with the change mentioned above and with exception of
fixing typographical errors as they are found, seconded by CD,

> No discussion
+ Motion was approved unanimously.
4. Discussion and possible action to amend the Glendale charter to
change it from a K-8 to a high school.
¢ KS shared information about a potential opportunity to purchase
tand adjacent to AAEM and use that land to open a high school in

the future.
» CD made a motion to approve changing the Glendale Charter

to a high school, seconded by AL.
> No discussion
+ Motion was approved unanimously.
5. Discussion and possible action regarding location and purchase of
property for the proposed high school.





» The Board had a general discussion about a property that is
available for purchase just north of the AAEM campus.

¢ No action was taken at this time.

6. Discussion and possible action to approve the already existing
modular building be placed up to code prior to any and all children
having access.

» ST presented the current situation with a modular building at AAEM
that seems to be not under permit and not up to code. He estimated
that for about $5300 the proper permits can be obtained, and it
would take approximately $20-25,000 to conduct the work fo bring
the buildings up to code.

* KS made a motion that PLC proceed with getting the building
up to code, and not allowing any children to access that
building until everything is correct, seconded by AL.

a

No discussion

* Motion was approved unanimously.
7. Discussion and possible action to accept the nomination of an
additional board member.
» KBS presented the cover letter and resume of Maureen DeGrose.
* No action was taken at this time.
8. Discussion and possible action regarding appointing a permanent

Chairman.

¢ KS made a motion to appoint Sam Tomlin as the permanent
chair, seconded by CD.

o

No discussion

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
9. Discussion and possible action regarding ratifying/rescinding the
vote regarding the position offered to Mike Sims.
* AL made a motion to rescind the vote regarding Mike Sims’s

offer, seconded by ST. -

o

Discussion: AL — Mike Sims had this job before and he didn't do
his job. He was never at the school and they had to take it away
from him. They allowed him to come here and only do it at
South Mountain for less money, but also full health coverage for
him and his family. | have also known some things about Mike
being inappropriate with the children. He is not very patient with
the children.

CD - I thought we were talking about his position on the Board

KS — Not on the Board...he would be an assistant to me.
Without us discussing salary, Howard threw in the $50,000

figure.
CD — s there a need? Weren't we trying to determine if we
could even afford it?

KS — I'm not going to say | don't need help, cause I'd be lying.
But to take that position as it was written and look at it as a full





time position, | felt like if there was ever a need to have
someone help with bylaws or whatever, it would be more of an
independent contract type of think. In my personal opinion he
would not have enough to keep him busy throughout the year.
His current contract goes through the end of July, but no one
has really heard/seen him since the last production. He did do
his Stage Kids camp which ended last week.

> CD—Personally | think some of that money needs to be going
to the Site Director for Estrella Mountain.

o KS—Yes, and there is an assistant. For the new AAEM Site
Director we're looking at a salary of around $70,000, with
stipends for performance.

> CD—How does Maureen feel about this?

> KS—I told her | was going to give her a raise, but you can't just
snap your fingers and make it happen.

= CD-—Where is that assistant money coming from?

*  KS—Iis tied into Grants and Title money. She's going to do
some of the title work and curriculum mapping.
Motion was approved unanimously.

10. Discussion about future agenda items and date of next meeting.
Possible future agenda items include:

L

Emergency phone meeting to determine who to hire for modulars
CEO job description

Kid’s Connection contract

Mike's current contract — make a decision whether to terminate
Amendment to bylaws — amend requirements for committees, and
need to add CEO to governing structure (or change the title), add
authorizing limits .

Forming Committee for individual school governing boards
Renting an office space

Organizational chart (could have Enrique draft one)

Next meeting: July 14", 5:30pm, at ACT meeting room in Phoenix.

11. AL made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 8:54pm.
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: {623) 474-2120 Fax: {623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Tuesday July 6™, 2011 @ 1:00 p.m.
PL.C Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

AGENDA

Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS"), Agnes Lawson (Board Member,
“AL"), Howard Bell (Board Member, “HB")

Absent: Sam Tomlin, Cathie Devers

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe)

1. KS called meeting to order at 1:05pm and verified a quorum.

2. Discussion and possible action to Hire Accelerated Construction
Technologies to bring modular building up to code, prior to any/all children
having access for the school year 2011/2012.

+ HB made a motion to hire Accelerated Construction Technologies to
bring the modular building located on the AAEM campus up to code,
with a budget not to exceed $35,000, seconded by AL.

> No discussion.
¢ Motion was unanimously approved
3. Meeting was adjourned at 1:07pm.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623} 936-5337

www.plecharterschools.org

Thursday, July 14", 2011 at 5:30pm
Meeting for PLC Corperate and Governing Board
of AASM, AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

1.

Consent Items:

a. Kids Connection contract
b. Bridge worship Center

¢. Zumba

d. Future board meetings

Discussion and Action:

2.

Bow

Introduction of new Site Director for AAEM Patricia DeVito/short summary of
new school year.

Discussion and possible action for location and approval of Corporate office.
Discussion and possible action regarding financial review

Discussion and possible action to discuss and amend the PLC bylaws for purpose
of establishing the governing board.

Discussion and possible action to recognize PLC Arts Academy of Scottsdale as a
subsidiary to establish the CEO to represent PLC Corporate board to represent
the governing board.

Discussion and possible action to appoint Maureen DeGrose to sit on the
governing board for AAEM





8. Discussion and possible action to authorize the CEQ and one other board
member as a committee to bring forward nominations for both governing
boards.

9, Discussion and possible action to determine Contract authority limits in place for
CEO.

10. Discussion and possible action for approval to do online banking with AmTrust

11. Discussion and possible action for review of Corporate organizational chart.

12. Discussion and possible action to increase SPED services

13. Discussion and possible action regarding the renewal of Mike Sims employment
contract.

14. Discussion and possible action regarding future board meetings and agendas

Adjourn.
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PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, July 14", 2011 at 5:30pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Location: 22425 N 16th St, Phoenix, AZ 85024

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Cathie Devers
{Board Member, “CD”), Agnes Lawson (Board Member, “AL”)

Absent: Howard Bell (Board Member, “HB")

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Bob Brown (CSI/ Standing Speaker, “BB”), Pat DeVito
(AAEM Site Director)

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

Sam Tomlin called the meeting to order at 6:04pm and verified a quorum.
Observed a moment of silence.
Recited pledge of allegiance.

e KS made a motion to switch the order of agenda items # 1 and 2, seconded by
AL.
o No discussion
e Motion was approved unanimously.

1. Introduction of new Site Director for AAEM Patricia DeVito/short summary of
new school year.
¢ Patricia DeVito gave an introduction of herself and her plans for the
upcoming school year.
2. Consent ltems
¢ KS made a motion to move all of the Consent Agenda items to item #14 in
the agenda, seconded by CD.
o Nodiscussion
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¢ Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and Action:
3. Discussion and possible action for location and approval of Corporate office.

e KS presented one possible corporate office location

¢ KS made a motion to approve the leasing of corporate office space,
contingent upon considering three different bids which range in price from
$1500 to $2500 a month, seconded by AL.

o Nodiscussion
¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
4. Discussion and possible action regarding financial review.
e Bob Brown presented an updated financial review. See attachment.

e KS made a motion to put Agenda ltem #11 in the place of Item #5, seconded
by AL.
o No discussion
¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
5. 'Discussion and possible action for review of Corporate Organizational Chart.
e KS presented a proposed Corporate Organizational Chart. See attachment.
e General discussion about the flow chart, and proposed changes.
e AL made a motion to approve the Corporate Organizational Chart,

contingent upon making the necessary changes.
o Discussion: Change the level below the CEO to Director level, delete

the two Governing Boards (for now), move Site Director and SPED
Director up to the Director level.

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.

6. Discussion and possible action to discuss and amend the PLC bylaws for purpose
of establishing the governing board.

¢ KSand BB presented two pages of possible revisions to the bylaws. See
attachments.

e The Board agreed that legal counsel should review these changes before
making them final.

e CD made a motion to have the CEO amend the PLC bylaws for the purpose
of establishing the GB, have legal counsel review them, and then bring
them back to the board for approval, seconded by AL.

o No discussion

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
7. Discussion and possible action to recognize PLC Arts Academy of Scottsdale as a

subsidiary to establish the CEO to represent PLC Corporate board to represent
the governing board.
e KS made a motion to table Agenda Items #6, 7, 8 until we bring back the
amended bylaws for approval, seconded by AL.
o No discussion
e Motion was approved unanimously.
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8. Discussion and possible action to appoint Maureen DeGrose to sit on the
governing board for AAEM.
¢ Tabled
9. Discussion and possible action to authorize the CEO and one other board
member as a committee to bring forward nominations for both governing
boards.
¢ Tabled
10. Discussion and possible action to determine contract authority limits in place for
CEO.
¢ ST made a motion that we allow the CEQ to approve contracts of $40,000
and below without bringing them to the board for approval, seconded by
CD.
o Nodiscussion
e Motion was approved unanimously.
11. Discussion and possible action for approval to do online banking with AmTrust.
¢ CD made a motion to approve doing online banking with AmTrust,
seconded by AL.
¢ No discussion.
+ Motion was approved unanimously.
12. Discussion and possible action to increase SPED services.
¢ KS made a motion to strike this item from the agenda, seconded by CD.
o No discussion.
+ Motion was approved unanimously.
13, Discussion and possible action regarding the renewal of Mike Sims employment

contract.
e AL made a motion to renew the contract for Mike Sims employment,
seconded by CD.

o No discussion.
e Four “nay” votes: Motion was not passed.
14, Consent ltems
e ST made a motion to strike the consent items from the agenda, seconded by
CD.
o No discussion.
e Motion was approved unanimously,
15. Discussion and possible action regarding future board meetings and agendas.
* See attachment for dates of future meetings
* Approval of previous board minutes
e Interact with legal counsel and amend bylaws so we can implement a GB/CB
structure
¢ Fundraising
o Check-signing authority, limits, checks/balances, procedures and rules
s Next meeting at Sam’s office, August 18™, 5:00pm
ST made a motion to adjourn; meeting was adjourned at 8:27pm.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plecharterschools.org

Friday, August 19*, 2011 at 4:30pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Cail meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

1.

Steele.)

Consent agenda items:
a. Approve/Coliect Conflict of Interest Forms (previously discussed and
approved, to be filled out by each board member and collected by Kim

b. Approve minutes from June 30", July 6", July 14"

Discussion and Action:

2.
3.

Discussion and possible action to interact with legal counsel and amend
bylaws so we can implement a GB/CB structure.

Discussion and possible action regarding the updated budget to reflect the
actual and current student numbers.

Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of the
organizational chart: adding in the governing boards.

Discussion and possible action in regards to forming a nominating
committee for the purpose of developing a governing board at each
campus.

Discussion and possible action regarding check-signing authority, limits,
checks/balances, procedures and rules.

Discussion and possible action to increase the expenditure timit for the
modular bidg. on AAEM campus by an additionat $2,000.

Discussion regarding AAEM, AASC update on enroliment numbers,
curriculum updates.

Discussion and possible action regarding fundraiser allowing students,
staff to have a jean day once a month. $1.00 for students, $5.00 for staff.





10. Discussion and possible action regarding specific verbiage used to critique
school uniforms,

11.Discussion and possible action regarding future board meetings and
agendas.

Adjourn.
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
‘ 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Friday, August 19", 2011 at 4:30pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Location: 22425 N 16th St, Phoenix, AZ 85024

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST"),
Agnes Lawson (Board Member, “AL”)

Absent: Howard Bell (Board Member, “HB”), Cathie Devers (Board Member,
“CD!I)

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Bob Brown (CSI/ Standing Speaker, “BB”),
Renee Shprecher (Legal Counsel), Pat DeVito (AAEM Site Director)

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

Sam Tomlin called the meeting to order at 5:00pm and verified a quorum.
Observed a moment of silence.
Recited pledge of allegiance.

1. Consent ltems
e AL made a motion to approve all of the Consent Agenda items,
seconded by KS.
o Discussion: Board members will sign and return Conflict of
Interest forms as soon as possible to KS, preferably via email.

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and Action:
2. Discussion and possible action to interact with legal counsel and amend
bylaws so we can implement a GB/ CB structure.

e Renee Shprecher explained that the proposed changes would make
the PLC Corporate Board a separate entity that would discuss district-
wide issues, and each individual school campus would have its own
governing board of 5-9 members, which would take care of issues
related directly to the running of its campus. A Corporate Board





20of3

Appointee and the Site Director for that campus would be non-voting
members of the governing boards. The specific powers of the
Corporate Board are outlined in the proposed document, but can be
amended as needed in the future, See attachment: Amended and
Restated Bylaws.

« The board spent some time in general discussion and asked questions
of Renee about the details of what this amendment would mean and
how it would be implemented.

¢ KS made a motion to approve the amendments to the bylaws as
presented by legal counsel, the implementation of which is
pending the establishment of the individual boards and the
approval of the organizational documents, seconded by AL.

o No discussion

» Motion was approved unanimously.

3. Discussion and possible action regarding the updated budget to reflect the
actual and current student numbers.

e Bob Brown presented an updated financial review and the Unaudited
Financial Statement Information for PLC, 7/1/10-6/30/11. See
attachments.

s No action was taken at this time.

4. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of the
Organizational Chart: adding in the governing boards.

« No action was taken at this time.

5. Discussion and possible action in regards to forming a nominating
committee for the purpose of developing a governing board at each
campus.

o KS shared that she believed 1-3 of the Board members shouid be on
the nominating committee in order to be able to quickly process and
consider each candidate. ST suggested that the Slte Directors shouid
also be on the nominating committee.

e ST made a motion to establish one nominating committee for
AASC, and one for AAEM; for AASC the committee will be
comprised of AL and Chuck Boebinger, and for AAEM the
committee will be comprised of KS and Pat DeVito; the
nominating committees will be tasked with bringing to the board
the chosen members of the governing boards for final ratification;
seconded by KS.

o No discussion

s Motion was approved unanimously.

6. Discussion and possible action regarding check-signing authority, limits,
checks/balances, procedures and rules.

* KS clarified the current procedures and policies that are in place for
check-signing, and checks and balances that are in place for financial
transactions.

» No action was taken at this time.

7. Discussion and possibie action to increase the expenditure limit for the
modular bldg. on AAM campus by an additional $2,000.
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+ ST shared that after examining the modular building in question,
several unforeseen problems were discovered, including foundational
and electrical problems. It will cost approximately $2,0600 additional
dollars to fix these issues.

» The board recognized that this project still falls under the $40,000 limit
that the CEO was authorized to approve, so she can approve the
additional expenditure without Board approval.

« No action was taken at this time.

8. Discussion regarding AAEM, AASC update on enroliment numbers,
curriculum updates.

» KS shared that enroliment numbers for AAEM = 897, and AASC= 140,
but a few additional students are expected to enroll within the next
week or so.

s PD shared details about the curriculum being used by each school.

9. Discussion and possible action regarding fundraiser allowing students,
staff to have a jean day once a month. $1.00 for students, $5.00 for staff.
¢ AL made a motion to allow a jean day fundraiser once a month for

staff and students, seconded by ST.
o No discussion

« Motion was approved unanimously.

10. Discussion and possible action regarding specific verbiage used to critique
school uniforms.

» Pat DeVito shared some issues that have arisen around the
interpretation and enforcement of the uniform policy at AAEM.

¢ KS stated that she and Pat will come up with a document of desired
changes for the uniform policy in the future.

+ No action taken at this time.

11. Discussion and possible action regarding future board meetings and
agendas.

e Emergency phone conference for Tuesday, 1:00pm.
o Discussion and possible action to approve the ASRS program
for AASC
o Approve securing a location for the Glendale Charter at 303 £
Alta Vista.
+ Next meeting at Sam’s office, September 22™ at 5:00pm.
ST made a motion to adjourn; meeting was adjourned at 7:55pm.
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Tuesday, August 23", 2011 at 1:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA
1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

AGENDA ITEMS:

Action ltems:
2. Discussion and possible action to approve the ASRS program

for AASC

3. Approve securing a location for the Glendale Charter at 303 E
Alta Vista.

4. Adjourn
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Tuesday, August 23", 2011 at 1:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS™), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Cathie
DPevers (Board Member, “CD™)

Absent: Agnes Lawson (Board Member), Howard Bell (Board Member)

o ST called meeting to order at 1:00pm and verified a quorum.
AGENDA ITEMS:

Action Items:
1. Discussion and possible action to approve the ASRS program for AASC

‘o KS made a motion to approve to submit the application to begin the
process to implement the ASRS program, seconded by CD.
> No discussion
e Motion was passed unanimously.
2. Approve securing a location for the Glendale Charter at 303 E Alta Vista.
¢ The discussion was for Kim Steele to proceed with securing the property
for the potential use of the Glendale Charter; PLC will enter into a
purchase agreement for the Alta Visa site. Earnest monies not to exceed
$40,000.00 will be put down to secure.
¢ CD made a motion to have Kim secure the site and put down between
10 and 40 thousand dollars of earnest money to proceed, seconded by
ST.
o No discussion
s Motion was passed unanimously.
3. Meeting adjourned at 1:30pm.
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Thursday, September 29%, 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PL.C Corporate and Governing Board

of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
AGENDA
Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of silence
Pledge of allegiance

o Standing speaker present: Bob Brown
AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Consent agenda items:

Approve the minutes from 8/19/11 and 8/23/11 phone conference.
Approve the Accounting and Procurement Policies.

-~ Action Hems:
Discussion and Action

1. Discussion and possible action regarding the updated budget for AAEM and
AASC. Presentation by Mr. Bob Brown.

2. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of the bylaws for the
governing boards of AAEM and AASC.
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3. Dlscussmn and possible action to approve the potential Governing board
members for AAEM and AASC as previously approved by selection

committee members, Agnes Lawson and Kimberly Steele.

4. Discussion and possible action authorizing CEO Kim Steele to enter into the
part two contract with Accelerated Construction Technology for the purpose of

building the next phase of AAEM.

5. Discussion and possible action to enter into a contract with Accelerated
Construction Technologies for the design and construction of the potential Alta

Vista site.

6. Discussion and possible action accepting Mr. Howard Bell’s resignation.

7. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate
Board meetings.

Adjourmn
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Thursday, September 29", 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PL.C Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Location: 22425 N 16th St, Phoenix, AZ 85024

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele {Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin {Chairman, “ST”}, Agnes Lawson
(Board Member, “AL"), Howard Bell (Board Member, “HB"),

Absent: Cathie Devers (Board Member, “CD"}

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Bob Brown {CSl/ Standing Speaker, “BB”), Renee
Shprecher (Legal Counsel), Chuck Boebinger (AASC Site Director)

*Standing Speaker present: Bob Brown

Sam Tomlin called the meeting to order at 5:20pm and verified a quorum.
Observed a moment of silence. '
Recited pledge of allegiance.

AGENDA
Consent Agenda Items
¢ XS made a motion to approve all of the Consent Agenda items, seconded by
AL
o No discussion.
* Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and Action:
1. 1. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of the bylaws for
the governing boards of AAEM and AASC.
e ST shared that this new board system is ready to implement. Renee is
present in case there are any questions
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* Renee presented the changes to the bylaws, as discussed last month. She
gave the required documents to KS to be signed by the appropriate board
members.

¢ HB made a motion to accept the corporate bylaws as written by Buchalter
Nemer, this 29th day of September, 2011, seconded by KS.

o No discussion

* Motion was approved unanimously.

¢ HB made a motion to move Agenda ltem #3 into the #2 Agenda position,
seconded by AL.

o No discussion

¢ Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and possible action to approve the potential Governing board

members for AAEM and AASC as previously approved by selection committee

members./ Agnes Lawson and Kimberly Steele.

¢ KS presented a summary of the recruiting and interviewing process.

¢ HB made a motion to accept the candidates as presented for the Governing
Boards of AASC and AAEM, seconded by AL.

o No discussion
* Motion was approved unanimously.
. Discussion and possible action regarding the updated budget for AAEM and
AASC. Presentation by Mr. Bob Brown.

¢ Bob Brown presented the updated budget for AAEM as of August 31, 2011
(see attachment),

+ No action was taken at this time.

¢ KS made a motion to appoint AL as an interim chairman for Agenda ltems
#4 & 5 due to a conflict of interest, seconded by HB.

o No discussion

¢ Motion was approved unanimously

Discussion and possible action authorizing CEO Kim Steele to enter into the part

two contract with Accelerated Construction Technology for the purpose of

building the next phase of AAEM.,

s Note: Sam Tomlin has stepped down from position as board member, and is
now presenting as a member of the public.

¢ Statement from Sam Tomlin for the record: “This project involves me outside
of my membership of the board. | am currently employed by ACT as Vice
President of Project Development. While | have no ownership of ACT, | will
benefit indirectly from a contract with ACT through salary and benefits. PLC's
involvement with ACT preceded my involvement with the board by 3 years,
when PLC entered into a Part One agreement with ACT.”

* At 6:14pm ST stepped out of the room.

* The board had a general discussion about the ACT contract.

¢ HB made a motion to empower the CEO to complete the contract revisions
with in-house counsel. If the contracted amount is not above $3.9 million,





30f3

she may move forward. Anything over $3.9 million must be brought back to
the board; seconded by KS.

o No discussion
Motion was approved unanimously.

5. Discussion and possible action to enter into a contract with Accelerated
Construction Technologies for the design and construction of the potential Alta
Vista site.

*

KS clarified the current procedures and policies that are in place for check-
signing, and checks and balances that are in place for financial transactions.
AL made a motion to table this agenda item; seconded by HB.

o No discussion
Motion was approved unanimously.
ST returned to the room at 6:27pm.
ST reassumed his role as Chairman of the board.

6. Discussion and possible action regarding accepting Mr. Howard Bell’s
resignation.

HB presented his letter of resignation to the Board.
HB expressed his appreciation of his time on the board, and of the work of all
the board members. He is both happy and sad to be stepping down, but it is
just the right time. He has served on the board for 12 years and is pleased
with everything that has been started. He stated that he will always be
available for questions or consultations as needed. ST added his thanks and
appreciation for everything HB has done over the past 12 years. KS and AL
also expressed their thanks, appreciation, and best wishes for HB,
KS made a motion to accept the resignation of Howard Bell; seconded by
AL

o No discussion
Motion was approved unanimously.

7. Dlscussmn and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate
Board meetings.

-

Need to schedule a phone conference for:

o Approval of the withdrawal of $350k from the Trustee Fund (before
Oct. 20™)

o Tabled Agenda ltem: Discussion and possible action to enterinto a
contract with Accelerated Construction Technologies for the design
and construction of the potential Alta Vista site.

Next meeting at Sam’s office, October 20", at 5:00pm.
Need to schedule a Saturday morning breakfast to educate the new
governing boards.

ST made a motion to adjourn; meeting was adjourned at 6:45pm.





Agenda:

1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

AGENDA ITEMS:
2. Dechration of Curricular and Instructional Alignment

Discussion and Action Item:

3. Discussion and possible action regarding the schools overall compliance in

curriculum and instruction
4. Adjourn
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Wednesday, October 12", 2011 at 12:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Agnes Lawson
(Board Member, “AL")

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe)

Absent: Cathie Devers (Board Member)

1. ST called the meeting to order at 12:10pm and verified a quorum.

AGENDA ITEMS: -
2. Declaration of Curricular and Instructional Alignment (see below)

Discussion and Action Item:
3. Discussion and possible action regarding the schools overall compliance in
curriculum and instruction.
e ST made a motion to affirm that PLC will adhere to the academic standards
laid out and enforced by the state of Arizona, seconded by CD.

> No discussion.
e Motion was passed unanimously.
4. Meeting was adjourned at 12:20pm.
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Thursday, October 20", 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of silence
Pledge of allegiance

» Standing speaker present: Bob Brown

AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Consent agenda items:

Approve minutes for Conference call on 10/12 and 10/14,

Action Items:
Discussion and Action

2. Discussion and possible action to approve the 9/29/11 minutes.

3. Discussion and possible action in regards to changing the name
from Arts Academy at Glendale, to Arts Academy at Alta Vista.

4. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of PLC
Charter Schools to become the management company for PLC

Arts Academy at Scottsdale.
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5. Discussion and possible action regarding PLC Charter School to
become the Assignee between the Assignor (PLC Arts Academy at

Scottsdale) and FD&H Jenan L.L.C.

6. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the
Corporate Board meetings.

7. Adjourn
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Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337
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Thursday, October 20", 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate & Governing Boards
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Location: 22425 N 16th St, Phoenix, AZ 85024

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Agnes Lawson
(Board Member, “AL”), Cathie Devers (Board Member, “CD”)

Absent: none

Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe), Pat DeVito (AAEM Site Director)
Public Absent: Bob Brown (standing speaker)

Sam Tomlin called the meeting to order at 6:26pm and verified a quorum.
Observed a moment of silence.
Recited pledge of allegiance.

AGENDA
Consent Agenda:
1. Approve minutes for Conference call on 10/12 and 10/14
¢ KS made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda items, seconded by
CD.
o No discussion.
e Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and Action:
2. Discussion and possible action to approve the 9/29/11 minutes.

e KS noted that the minutes must specify that the Consent Agenda
includes: “Approve the minutes from 8/19/11 and 8/23/11 phone
conference; Approve the USFRSC Accounting and Procurement Policies.”

e AL made a motion to approve the 9/29/11 meeting minutes, with the
previously stated amendment to the Consent Agenda, seconded by CD.
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o No discussion
¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
3. Discussion and possible action in regards to changing the name from Arts
Academy at Glendale, to Arts Academy at Alta Vista.
* KS presented a summary of the recruiting and interviewing process.
¢ (D made a motion to change the name of the third charter from Arts
Academy at Giendale, to Arts Academy at Alta Vista, seconded by AL.
o No discussion
¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
4. Discussion and possible action regarding the approval of PLC Charter Schools
to become the management company for PLC Arts Academy at Scottsdale.
e See attachment.
e CD made a motion to approve PLC Charter School to become the
Management Company for PLC Academy at Scottsdale, seconded by KS.
o No discussion
¢ Motion was approved unanimously
5. Discussion and possible action regarding PLC Charter School to become the
Assignee between the Assignor (PLC Arts Academy at Scottsdale) and FD&H
Jenan L.L.C.
¢ See attachments.
e Al made a motion accept the Assignment and Assumption of Lease
Agreement between PLC Arts Academy at Scottsdale and FD&H Jenan
L.L.C., seconded by CD.
o No discussion
» Motion was approved unanimously.
6. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate
Board meetings.
» Next meeting at Sam’s office, November 17", at 5:00pm.
e Need to schedule a Saturday morning breakfast to educate the new
governing boards.
ST made a motion to adjourn; meeting was adjourned at 6:51pm.
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Thursday, November 17", 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele is present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

AGENDA
Call meeting to ordes and verify a quorum
Moment of silence

Pledge of allegiance

AGENDA ITEMS:
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Tuesday, November 22nd, 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele is present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

AGENDA
Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of silence
Pledge of allegiance

AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Consent agenda items:

* Approve minutes from 10/20 meeting.
Discussion ltems.

2. The Board will engage in a general discussion (no action) regarding
the following items, and related sub-topics that may arise:

¢ AAEM modular completion update
e Curriculum overview {Pat DeVito)

3. Discussion regarding topics for the December 15" Board meeting.
* Presentation on financing for Alta Vista campus

4. Adjourn
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Tuesday November 22", 2011 @ 1:00 p.m.
Phone Conference 623-474-2138
for Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Kim Steele was present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

MINUTES

Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Agnes Lawson
(Board Member, “AL”)

Absent: Cathie Devers (Board Member, “CD”)
Public: Jessica Finley (Scribe)

ST called the meeting to order at 5:02pm and verified a quorum.
1. Consent Agenda: Approve 10-20-11 meeting minutes
e AL made a motion to approve the 10-20-11 meeting minutes, seconded by
KS.
o No discussion.
e Motion was approved unanimously. Yes votes: ST, KS, AL

2. The Board will engage in a general discussion (no action) regarding the
following items, and related sub-topics that may arise: AAEM modular
completion update, Curriculum overview (Pat DeVito)

a. AAEM modular completion update
Modular has passed all inspections and is in use! Yay!

b. Curriculum overview (Pat DeVito)

e Singapore math curriculum is in. The main concern is getting the actual
curriculum materials in the hands of the students. Looking for avenues to
purchase the needed items (grants, etc. that are still available for this school
year).

3. Discussion regarding topics for the December 15" Board meeting.
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* Presentation on financing for Alta Vista campus
¢ Financing update.

¢ Updates on budget
4. ST made a motion to adjourn; meeting adjourned at 5:28pm.
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Thursday, December 15", 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA

Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of silence
Pledge of allegiance

e Standing speaker present: Bob Brown

AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Consent agenda items:

*Approve minutes from November 22™ Board meeting.

Action Items:
Discussion and Action

2.

Discussion and possible action to approve the budgets for AASC and AAEM. (Bob
Brown)

. Discussion and possible action to approve the SPED policies and procedures. (Scott

Yost)
Discussion and possible action to entertain the finance options for “Arts Academy at
Alta Vista.” (Will Gelm)

. Discussion and possible action to increase the capital assets from $300.00 for

equipment and $1000.00 for land to $5000.00 for all assets.
Discussion and possible action to approve the written policy establishing the Capital
Asset threshold as $5,000 for all assets.

. Discussion and possible action to approve the calendars for 2012-2013 school year

for AAEM and AASC.
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8. Discussion and possible action to approve the scheduled board meetings for the next
6 months.
9. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate Board

meetings.

10. Adjourn
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Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623} 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337
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Thursday, December 15", 2011 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

MINUTES
Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Agnes Lawson (Board

Member, “AL"}, Cathie Devers (Board Member, “CD")

Absent: none

Public: Bob Brown (standing speaker), Will Gelm {Legal Counsel), Elizabeth Gasperone (PLC
Business Director), Scott Yost (PLC Special Education Director), Susan Bowers (PLC Human
Resources Director)}

e Standing speaker present: Bob Brown

ST called the meeting to order at 5:12pm.
Observed a moment of silence.
Recited the Piedge of Allegiance.

AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Consent agenda items: Approve minutes from November 22" Board meeting.

¢ AL made a motion to approve the consent agenda, seconded by KS.
o No discussion.
* Motion was approved unanimously.

Action Items:
Discussion and Action





Page 2 of 3

2. Discussion and possible action to approve the budgets for AASC and AAEM. (Bob
Brown)

e Bob Brown gave an update on the budgets and profit/loss statements for
the PLC schools (see attachments).

e No action was taken at this time.

3. Discussion and possible action to approve the SPED policies and procedures. (Scott
Yost)

e Scott Yost presented a packet of proposed SPED policies and procedures
that would allow PLC to meet the state and federal regulations for SPED
(see attachment).

e KS made a motion to approve the SPED policies and procedures as
written, seconded by KD.

* No discussion.

e Motion was approved unanimously.

4. Discussion and possible action to entertain the finance options for “Arts Academy at
Alta Vista.” (Will Gelm)

e Will Gelm presented the challenges facing bond financing for the Alta
Vista site. In short, it is highly unlikely that the school would be able to
obtain bond financing in time to have it open for the 2012-13 school year.

e Will Gelm explained the option of leasing the site from a development
company who would first finance the construction of the school, then
lease it to PLC for a time (ex: 20 years), at which time PLC would
potentially own the site. Another possibility is having the option to
purchase the site after 5 years. The advantage to this option is that it
would allow construction to begin quickly, and it would show financial
segregation between this site and the Estrella Mountain site.

e AL made a motion to allow Will Gelm to pursue Entertainment
Properties Trust in establishing a lease/financing option for the Alta
Vista School, seconded by ST.

e No discussion

e Motion was approved unanimously.

5. Discussion and possible action to increase the capital assets from $300.00 for
equipment and $1000-00-for-tand $3000 for building improvements, to [$1000 for
equipment] and $5000.00 for all assets. (Bob Brown)

* The current position is a limit of $300 for equipment and $3000 for
buildings and land; this creates many pages of lists of assets for the
auditors to go over. The state has approved limits of $1000 for
equipment and $5000 for building improvements.

* CD made a motion to increase the limits for capital assets to $1000 for
equipment and $5000 for building improvements, seconded by KS.

e No discussion.
* Motion was approved unanimously.
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6. Discussion and possible action to approve the written policy establishing the Capital
Asset threshold as $5,000 for all assets.
¢ (D made a motion to remove agenda item #6 as it is a repetition of the
previous agenda item, seconded by KS.
¢ No discussion.
¢ Motion was approved unanimously.
7. Discussion and possible action to approve the calendars for 2012-2013 school year
for AAEM and AASC. (Elizabeth Gasperone)
» Elizabeth Gasperone presented the drafts of the Scottsdale and Estrella
Mountain school calendars for 2012-2013 (see attachment).
¢ KS made a motion to approve the 2012-2013 school calendars for AAEM
and AASC as presented, seconded by CD.
» No discussion.,
e Motion was approved unanimously,
8. Discussion and possible action to approve the scheduled board meetings for the next
6 months.
* See attachment for list of future meeting dates.
s No action was taken at this time.
9. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate Board
meetings.
* No action was taken at this time.
10. ST made a motion to adjourn; meeting was adjourned at 7:09pm.










PLC Charter Schools
Corpaorate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120  Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Saturday, February 11", 2012 at 9:00am
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order and verify a quorum

Discussion and Action items:

2. Discussion and possible action to approve the amended Annual Financial
Report.

3. Discussion and possible action to approve the FY2011 Single Audit
4, Adjourn
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120  Fax: (623) 936-5337
www . plccharterschools.org

Saturday, February 11*, 2012 at 9:00am
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138

MINUTES

Present: Sam Tomlin, Kim Steele, Agnes Lawson, Cathie Devers
Public: Wil Gelm (legal counsel), Jessica Finley {scribe), Bob Brown (CPA)

1.

ST called corporate board meeting to order at 9:02 and verified a quorum.

Bob Brown {CPA} joined the meeting at 9:05am.

Discussion and Action tems:

2.

A

Discussion and possible action to approve the amended Annual Financial Report.

PLC submitted an AFR to the State electronically by Oct. 15, During the course of PLC's
audit, however, some information came up that changed the AFR. The revised AFR must
now be approved and resubmitted.

AL made a motion to approve the revised Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 2011,
seconded by KS,

° No discussion.
Yes votes: KS, AL, CD, ST. The motion passed 4-0.
Discussion and possible action to approve the FY2011 Single Audit

The Board asked questions of Bob Brown regarding specifics of the Single Audit
document.

KS made a motion to approve the June 30, 2011 single audit with the desire that the
auditor is requested to revise language on p. 10 pertaining to the school's exposure to
litigation and the operating lease for Scottsdale that has been assigned. We would like
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him to clarify those items. We are not contingently approving the audit; we will accept it
as is if the language cannot be modified for reasons of auditing principles. Seconded by

CD.
4 No discussion

A Yesvotes — KS, AL, ST, CD; motion passed 4-0.

4. Corporate board meeting adjourned at 9:54am.

**Need copy of signed cover sheet included with the minutes. Signed in blue ink.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S, 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337
www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, February 16™, 2012 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Boards
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM

AGENDA
Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Moment of silence
Pledge of allegiance
¢ Standing speaker present: Bob Brown

AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Consent agenda items:
e Approve minutes from 12-15-11 and 2-11-12 meetings.

Action Items:;

Discussion and Action

2. Discussion and possible action to change the payroll company from ADP to Payroll
Experts {Susan Bowers)
Discussion and possible action to sign the cover sheet of the FY 2011 Single Audit.

- Discussion and update on-Bond Financing for Estrefla Campus. o

Discussion and possible action in regards to Arts Academy at Alta Vista.
Discussion and possible action on School Dress Code.

Discussion and possible action on AAEM academic standing.

Discussion and possible action regarding the budget for AAEM and PLC AASC.
Discussion and possible action to amend and reinstate the FY 2011 AFR.

10. Discussion and possible action to amend the meeting minutes to reflect the names of
the governing board members for AAEM and PLC AASC for the board meeting held on
9/29/11:

* Governing board members for AAEM are as follows: Kimberly Steele, Patricia
DeVito, Enrique Duron, Scott Yost, Ann Marie Jackson, Robert Leary

* Governing board members for PLC AASC are as follows: Chuck Boebinger, Agnes
Lawson, Kim Dillon, Christy Thrush, Larry Bunting

11. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate Board

and/or Governing Board meetings.

12. Adjourn

PN G W
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PLC Charter Schools

Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plecharterschools.org

Thursday, February 16", 2012 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate and Governing Board
of AAGC, AASC, and AAEM
Location: 22425 N 16th St, Phoenix, AZ 85024

MINUTES
Present: Sam Tomlin {Chairman, “ST”), Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Cathie Devers (Board
Member, “CD") '

Absent: Agnes Lawson, Bob Brown (Standing Speaker, CPA)

Public: Jessica Finley (scribe), Pat DeVito (AAEM Site Director), Susan Bowers (HR Director),
Elizabeth Gasperone {Business Manager), Enrique Duron (Finance Manager)

ST called meeting to order at 5:32 and verified a quorum.
Observed a moment of silence.
" Recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

Consent Agenda
1. Approve 12-15-11 and 2-11-12 minutes
* KS made a motion to approve the minutes for 12-15 and 2-11 as presented,
seconded by CD.
o No discussion.
e Approved unanimously.

Discussion and Action items:
2. Discussion and possible action to change the payroll company from ADP to Payroll
Experts (Susan Bowers)
* Susan Bowers presented a summary of the advantages of Payroll Experts and
the frustrations with the current company, ADP.
¢ CD made a motion to change the payroll company from ADP to Payroll
Experts, effective for the March 20" payroll, seconded by KS.
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e No discussion.
* Motion passed unanimously,
3. Discussion and possible action to sign the cover sheet of the FY 2011 Single-Audit.
Annual Financial Report.
e Action taken: KS, ST, and CD signed the AFR cover sheet,
Discussion and possible action on Bond Financing for Estrella Campus.

¢ ST shared that PLC has just been made aware that Invest Co has had some
issues with approving the new Alta Vista bond for PLC. They did give their
consent this morning, but with stipulations. One firm stipulation is for PLC to
enter into a negative covenant, which means that AAEM will not use its
revenue to for anything outside of its own campus. ST summarized some
other possible stipulations that Invest Co may require.

* The board engaged in general discussion about this news and their thoughts
about the future of the bond financing, bond compliance, and timelines for
financing and construction.

* No action was taken at this time.

5. Discussion and possible action in regards to Arts Academy at Alta Vista.
¢ Lender for the Alta Vista project said they were not ready to move forward at
this time, so this campus will not be opening for the 2012-2013 school year.

* No action was taken at this time,
Discussion and possible action on school dress code.
¢ Pat DeVito presented an updated report on the desired student uniform
policy for next year. (see attachment)
e The board engaged in a discussion about the school uniforms.
¢ The board expressed a desire for all PLC schools to have a similar look in the
style and professionalism of student uniforms.
* The board expressed a desire for Pat to continue finalizing the final draft of
the uniform policy.
¢ No action was taken at this time.
7. Biscussion-and possible action on AAEM academic standing.
» Pat DeVito presented a report on AAEM’s current academic standing, and
using data to drive instruction.

&
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-10. Discussion and possible action to amend the meeting minutes to reflect the names
of the governing board members for AAEM and PLC AASC for the board meeting
held on 9/29/11.

¢ ST made a motion to add the names for the Governing Board members for
AAEM and AASC into the minutes for the 9-29-11 meeting, seconded by KS.

e No discussion
* Motion was approved unanimously.
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11. Discussion and possible action regarding upcoming topics for the Corporate Board
and/or Governing Board meetings.
s Dress code/ student uniform policy
¢ March budget
¢ Approve minutes from conference call in January
12. Meeting adjourned at 7:43pm





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120  Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Thursday, March 15th, 2012 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Governing Boards
of AASC and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele is present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

AGENDA

Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Pledge of allegiance
Moment of silence

AGENDA ITEMS:

1.

Consent Agenda:
e Approve revised calendar for PLC AASC for 12/13 school year.

Discussion and Possible Action Items

2.

Discussion and possible action to resolve that the 11/22 combined meeting
were improperly noticed as combined meetings and should have been
noticed as separate governing board and corporate board meetings.
Discussion and possible action to identify that certain matters discussed in
both the 11/22 and 1/7 were matters for discussion for the corporate
board only and therefore the governing board should make a motion to de-
publish those matters from the meeting minutes of the governing board
and articulate that, except as specifically modified by that motion (and
depublication), the meeting minutes remain the same

Discussion and possible action regarding the update on financing for
Estrella Mountain.

Discussion of Site Directors resignation

Adjourn
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S, 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: {623) 936-5337

www . plecharterschools.org

Thursday, March 15th, 2012 at 5:00pm
Meeting for PLC Governing Boards
of AASC and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138
Kim Steele is present at 2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353

MINUTES
1. There was not a quorum present, so the phone conference will be
rescheduled for Saturday, March 17" at 9am.





PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Saturday, March 17th, 2012 at 9:00am
Meeting for PLC Governing Boards
of AASC and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138

AGENDA
Call meeting to order and verify a quorum
Pledge of allegiance
Moment of silence

AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Consent Agenda:
* Approve revised calendar for PLC AASC for 12/13 school year.

Discussion and Possible Action Items

2. Discussion and possible action to resolve that the 11/22 combined meeting . . ..

were improperly noticed as combined meetings and should have been
noticed as separate governing board and corporate board meetings.

3. Discussion and possible action to identify that certain matters discussed in
both the 11/22 and 1/7 were matters for discussion for the corporate
board only and therefore the governing board should make a motion to de-
publish those matters from the meeting minutes of the governing board
and articulate that, except as specifically modified by that motion (and
depublication), the meeting minutes remain the same

4. Discussion and possible action regarding the update on financing for
Estrelia Mountain.

5. Discussion of Site Directors resignation

6. Adjourn





Page 1l of 2

PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120 Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plccharterschools.org

Saturday, March 17th, 2012 at 9:00am
Meeting for PLC Governing Boards
of AASC and AAEM
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138

AGENDA

Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”}, Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Agnes Lawson (Board
Member, “AL")

Absent: Cathie Devers (Board Member, “CD")

Public: Jessica Finley {Scribe)

. ST called meeting to order at 9:11am and verified a quorum.

AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Consent Agenda: Approve revised calendar for PLC AASC for 12/13 school year.

e KS made a motion to pull the calendar off the consent agenda and into the action
agenda, second by ST.
o No discussion
e Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and Possible Action items

2. (Item moved from consent agenda) Approve revised calendar for PLC AASC for 12/13
school year.
¢ ST made a motion to approve the revised calendar and ask Lisa Rough to review
the August 14" items, second by KS. approved.
o Discussion: Agnes had a question about the times fisted on Aug 14" ~ seems
like a possible conflict between Meet the Teacher and the Teacher in-service.
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ST suggested we approve it as-is, ask Lisa Rough about this conflict, and
approve a revised version later.

e Motion was approved unanimously.

Discussion and possible action to resolve that the 11/22 combined meeting were

improperly noticed as combined meetings and should have been noticed as separate

governing board and corporate board meetings.

e KS made a motion to resolve that the 11/22 combined meeting were improperly
noticed as combined meetings and should have been noticed as separate
governing board and corporate board meetings, second by Agnes.

o No discussion

e Motion was approved unanimously.
Discussion and possible action to identify that certain matters discussed in both the

11/22 and 1/7 were matters for discussion for the corporate board only and therefore
the governing board should make a motion to de-publish those matters from the
meeting minutes of the governing board and articulate that, except as specifically
modified by that motion (and depublication), the meeting minutes remain the same.
e KS made a motion to approve that the items that need to be depublished from
both 11-22 and 1-7 should be put on corporate board minutes only and removed
from the governing board minutes, second by AL.
o Nodiscussion.
e Motion was approved unanimously.
Discussion and possible action regarding the update on financing for Estrella Mountain.
e ST gave an update on AAEM bond financing. There is a mutual fund that has
made an offer to purchase all of the bonds. PLC is working closely with this
company to answer their questions, with a projected closing date on the 23" of
March.
e No action taken at this time.
Discussion. of Site Director’s resignation
e KS gave an update: Pat DeVito had resigned from her position as Site Director
effective March 9, 2012, and PLC will begin to diligently seek a replacement.
When there are persons that we are interested in, we will set up interviews
process with the corporate board. KS is serving as interim SD in the meantime.
Meeting adjourned at 9:34am.
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Arizona Corporation Commission

04/25/2012 State of Arizona Public Access System 5:47 PM
Jump To...
Annual Scanned Documents Waiting To Be

Amendments  Microfilm

Reports Documents Examined

E-FILE An Annual Report Online << Click Here |

FORMS For Annual Reports To Be Printed And Mailed << Click Here ‘

Corporate Inquiry

‘File Number: -1016228-0 Check Corporate Status
[Corp. Name: P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS

Domestic Address

| 2504 S. 91ST AVENUE |

| TOLLESON, AZ 85353 |

Statutory Agent Information

Agent Name: KIMBERLY STEELE-HAYNES

| |
| Agent Mailing/Physical Address: |
| 2504 S 91ST AVE |
| TOLLESON, AZ 85353 |
| |
| |
| |

Agent Status: APPOINTED 01/06/2011
Agent Last Updated: 01/13/2011

Additional Corporate Information

|C0rp0rati0n Type: NON-PROFIT ||Business Type: EDUCATIONAL |
|Incorporati0n Date: 01/22/2002 ||C0rp0rate Life Period: PERPETUAL |
[Domicile: ARIZONA [County: MARICOPA |
[Approval Date: 01/22/2002 |Original Publish Date: 03/11/2002 |

Officer Information

|SAM TOMLIN ||KIMBERLY STEELE-HAYNES |
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PRESIDENT SECRETARY

2504 S 91ST AVE 2504 S 91ST AVE

TOLLESON,AZ 85353 TOLLESON,AZ 85353

Date of Taking Office: 06/30/2011 |[Date of Taking Office: 11/01/2010
Last Updated: 04/24/2012 Last Updated: 02/24/2012

AGNES LAWSON KIMBERLY STEELE-HAYNES

TREASURER VICE-PRESIDENT

2504 S 91ST AVE 2504 S 91ST AVE

TOLLESON,AZ 85353 TOLLESON,AZ 85353

Date of Taking Office: 02/15/2012 |[Date of Taking Office: 02/15/2012
Last Updated: 02/24/2012 Last Updated: 02/24/2012

Director Information

CATHIE DEVERS SAM TOMLIN

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

2504 S 91ST AVE 2504 S 91ST AVE

TOLLESON,AZ 85353 TOLLESON,AZ 85353

Date of Taking Office: 02/16/2011 |[Date of Taking Office: 02/16/2011
Last Updated: 04/24/2012 Last Updated: 04/24/2012

AGNES LAWSON KIMBERLY STEELE-HAYNES

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

2504 S 91ST AVE 2504 S 91ST AVE

TOLLESON,AZ 85353 TOLLESON,AZ 85353

Date of Taking Office: 06/08/2009 |[Date of Taking Office: 06/08/2009
Last Updated: 02/02/2012 Last Updated: 02/02/2012

Annual Reports

gﬁ’: ‘31“/‘2“2‘/2‘21 Olfgp‘”t E-FILE An Annual Report Online << Click Here

FORMS For Annual Reports To Be Printed And Mailed << Click Here
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200501 ]01/26/2003] [ [
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Back To Top
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PLC Charter Schools
Renewal Budget Plan

Actual Projected Financial Information
FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
ADM: 843.99 1072.54 1162.78
REVENUE
State Equalization Assistance S 5,678,025 | S 4,646,817 | S 5,898,970 | S 6,395,290
Classroom Site Fund S 240,155 | S 213,524 | S 235,980 | S 255,835
Instructional Improvement Fund S 39,066 | S 39,066 | $ 39,191 | $ 42,488
Federal Funds/Grants S 873,457 | S 606,431 | S 568,823 | S 570,223
Other State Funds/Grants (SEI) S - S 124,943 | § - S -
Food Service (e.g., NSLP, food sales) S 16,013 | S - S - S -
Extracurricular Tax Credits S 19,708 | S 3,040 | S 4,500 | S 5,000
Contributions and Donations S 25,872 | S 5,077 S 6,000 | S 6,500
Fundraising S - S - S - S -
Earnings on Investments S - S - S - S -
Student Activities S 43,313 | S - S - S -
Kindergarten Tuition (Applies only to FY10 S - S - S - S -
& FY11 unless expanded by Legislature) S - S - S - S -
Other S 159,982 | $§ 16,432 | S 19,000 | S 19,500
TOTAL REVENUE $ 7,095,590 |$ 5655329 S 6,772,464 [$ 7,294,836
EXPENSES
Instructional
Salaries S 1,992,107 | S 1,591,420 | $ 1,809,814 | S 1,914,814
Payroll Taxes S 175,873 | $ 163,916 | $ 204,871 | S 216,757
Employee Benefits S 341,478 | S 463,581 | $ 595,429 | S 706,566
Performance Pay with Tax & Benefits S 83,607 | 85,409 | S 94,392 | $ 102,334
Tutoring Pay with Tax & Benefits S 82,316 | $ 82,629 | $ 47,028
Purchased Services (Consultants) S - S - S -
Purchased Services (Special Education) S 193,539 | $ 55,500 | $ 58,614 | S 60,000
Technology S 15,000 | $ 17,000 | S 19,000
Textbooks/Curriculum/Library S 46,281 | S 139,000 | $ 250,000 | S 250,000
Instructional Supplies S 74,653 | S 36,000 | S 45,749 | $ 49,598
Temporary Teachers S 26,193 | S 22,680 | S 28,822 | S 31,247
Contracted Teachers S 49,421 | S 80,000 | S - S -
Professional Development S 17,684 | S 15,000 | $ 17,000 | S 19,000
Travel S - S - S - S -
Other S - S - S - S -
Total Instructional S 3,000,835 | $ 2,749,823 | $ 3,204,319 | $ 3,416,344
Non-Instructional
Salaries S 1,032,367 | S 818,301 | $ 916,310 | S 916,310
Payroll Taxes S 86,624 | S 84,285 | $ 103,726 | $ 103,726
Employee Benefits S 168,190 | $ 238,371 | S 298,571 | S 298,571
Purchased Services S 79,776 | S 30,000 | $ 10,000 | S 10,000
Rent/Bond Payment S 822,410 | S 1,011,198 | $ 1,396,422 | S 1,638,833
Repairs and Maintenance S 139,204 | $ 42,100 | $ 45,000 | $ 50,000
Property, Casualty, Liability Insurance S 57,488 | S 23,600 | S 64,970 | S 64,970
Interest/Property Taxes S 10,728 | S - S - S -
Communications S 39,495 | S 21,100 | S 23,000 | S 25,000
Utilities S 132,329 | $ 105,841 | $ 134,453 | § 140,714
Furniture and Other Equipment S - S 4,950 | S 10,000 | S 50,000
Note/Loan/Non-Facility Lease Payments S 12,376 | S 15,453 | § 15,453 | S 15,453
Payroll Fees S 10,935 | S 8,904 | § 7,000 | S 7,000
Audit S 19,400 | S 9,353 | $ 14,000 | S 14,000
Legal S 71,456 | S 30,600 | $ 8,500 | S 8,500
Advertising/Marketing S 15,055 | S 3,475 | S 4,000 | S 4,000
Travel S 970 | S 3,844 | S 3,900 | S 4,000
Printing and Postage S 2,659 | S 1,512 | S 1,800 | S 1,900
Supplies S 46,745 | S 17,000 | $ 20,000 | S 22,000
Network Support S 25,329 | S 26,400 | S 30,800 | S 30,800
SDMS Software & Support S 12,000 | S 17,500 | § 8,500 | $ 8,500
Food S 19,078 | S 5,368 | S 5,400 | S 5,500
Transportation S 119,536 | $ 6,870 | S 7,500 | S 8,500






Student Activities, Field Trips S 32,922 | S - S - S -
Fees and Dues S 5835 |S 2,000 | $ 2,500 | S 3,000
Depreciation S 497,069 | $ 351,784 | S 350,000 | S 400,000
Other S 365,628 | S 9,306 | § 57,895 | S 8,395
Total Non-Instructional S 3,825,603 | S 2,889,116 | $ 3,539,698 | S 3,839,670
TOTAL EXPENSES S 6,826,439 | S 5,638,938 | $ 6,744,017 | S 7,256,014
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets S 269,152 | S 16,391 | S 28,447 | S 38,822
Net Assets, Beginning of Year S (585,101)| S (315,949)| $ (299,558)| S (271,111)
Net Assets, End of Year S (315,949)| S (299,558)| $ (271,111)| S (232,290)

ASSUMPTIONS/NOTES

AAEM = Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain
AASC = Arts Academy at Scottsdale

AASM = Arts Academy at South Mountain

Revenue

State Equalization is calculated at $5,500 per student.

Revenue assumes no increase in state funding or weighted percentage.

ADM is calculated at 94% of enrollment based on historical data.

Classroom Site Fund revenue based on $190 per student.

FY11 Other Account includes AASM Early Childhood, Backpacks & Uniforms, After School Registration,
Bus/Transportation Fees @ AASM, Event Income, Materials & Clubs @ AASC, Rentals, Sale of Used Furniture
from AASM, Drama Class Fees from AASC, Lifetouch Reimbursement, Payroll Deductions for Charity.

FY11 - Food Service and Student Activities amounts are for AASC.

FY13 - Additional classrooms will add 243 students.

FY14 - Additional classrooms will add 96 students.

Expenses

Other (Non-Instructional) amounts includes Security, Rentals, Interest and New Construction costs.
FY11 - includes two PLC schools that were closed effective FY12.

FY11 - Interest/Property Taxes are for AASC.

FY11 - Student Activities, Field Trips (Non-Instructional) are for AASC.

FY12 - $51,143.50 for Math curriculum is included in the Textbooks/Curriculum/Library line item.
FY12 - Insurance expenses have been reimbursed through the bond operating account.

FY12 - Rental expenses decreased due to the closure of AASM and AASC moving to its own charter.
FY13 - $78,000.00 for Math curriculum is included in the Textbooks/Curriculum/Library line item.
FY13 - Charter acquired bond financing for additional building.

FY13 - Discontinued the use of contracted teaching staff.

FY14 - $45,000.00 for Math curriculum is included in the Textbooks/Curriculum/Library line item.

The 17% decrease in total expenses for FY12 is due to the closure of AASM and AASC moving to its own charter.

The 20% increase in total expenses for FY13 is due to the expansion of AAEM.
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P.L.C. Charter School’s Financial Sustainability

P.L.C. Charter Schools is an Arizona non-profit corporation. The corporation was established to operate a charter school (Arts
Academy @ South Mountain) whose mission was to teach students the content areas of education in a nurturing, safe, and
drug free environment. P.L.C. Charter Schools currently provides educational services (Arts Academy @ Estrella Mountain) to
approximately 900 students in kindergarten through eighth grades, and is funded primarily on student membership and federal
grants. Based on the organization’s fiscal year 2011 audit report, the corporation continues to demonstrate a sustainable
operation.

In fiscal year 2006, P.L.C. Charter Schools opened Arts Academy @ Estrella Mountain in Tolleson. The organization became
obligated to The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Pima for issued tax-exempt Education Revenue Bonds for
the purpose of financing the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, and/or equipping educational facilities. Average Daily
Membership (ADM) increased by 384 students, but the corporation realized a decrease in net assets of ($204,965) mainly due
to increased salaries, purchased services, supplies and rent directly related to the opening of the new school. Amortization
and depreciation expenses increased from $50,912 the previous year to $96,613.

In fiscal years 2007 through 2008 the corporation increased its ADM by another 309 students for a total of 866 students
between Arts Academy @ South Mountain and Arts Academy @ Estrella Mountain. The School hired a highly experienced
individual for the position of SAIS compliance to further guarantee optimum funding and reporting accuracy. Revenue
increased significantly, however an increase in expenses continued to produce a decrease in net assets of ($461,229).

Payroll and related expenses along with interest expense for the bond obligation were the cause of the decrease in net assets.
Amortization and depreciation expenses related to property and equipment increased significantly from prior years, $365,053
for FY07 and $534,500 for FY08.

Fiscal year 2009 resulted in a net asset loss increase to $975,048. Weak internal controls were identified; hiring outside
consultants, overstaffing, and the use of outside vendors were very costly. Arts Academy @ South Mountain purchased two
buses to transport students to and from school to assist with declining enrollment; however the transportation expenses
outweighed the budgeted projections and the school lost money. Additional expenses were also incurred due to the Corporate
Board’s decision to add an additional site in Scottsdale in fiscal year 2010. P.L.C. Charter Schools ADM decreased slightly to
850; however the revenue increased $50,874.

In fiscal year 2010 a new site was added, Arts Academy @ Scottsdale, which increased P.L.C. Charter School's ADM to 1018
students. Revenue increased by $1,517,748 largely due to increased federal ARRA grants. The total net asset loss improved
by $407,989 from ($975,048) to ($567,059)

In fiscal year 2011, the Corporate Board accepted the resignation of the Chief Executive Officer of the corporation and a new
Chief Executive Officer was designated by the board. A complete analysis of the financial position of the corporation was
immediately implemented. New P.L.C. Charter School's administration eliminated administrative positions, maintenance
positions, support positions and outside consultants that were unnecessary and replaced individuals that were not qualified in
their current positions by those that were both qualified and experienced. All other expenses were analyzed and subsequently
eliminated if not deemed necessary by the Business Office. An accounting consultant was hired to analyze the financial
records, and the corporation added an in-house Finance Director. The Finance Director enhanced the school’s purchasing
procedures and internal controls by requiring all purchases to be pre-approved in writing by two P.L.C. Corporate Office staff
members. In addition, the decision was made to add in fiscal year 2012 an in-house Special Education team to replace the
existing contracted Special Education provider that was a large expense to the schools. The Corporate Board voted to close
Arts Academy @ South Mountain effective the end of fiscal year 2011 due to declining enroliment and continued financial loss.
In spite of losing the added Kindergarten weighted funding and additional funding cuts, these administrative changes improved
the total net asset loss by $269,152 from ($567,059) to ($297,907).

The Corporate Board also voted to transfer the existing Arts Academy @ Scottsdale to its own charter. This move took effect
fiscal year 2012 and is now called PLC Arts Academy at Scottsdale, Inc.

One school remains in the P.L.C. Charter School umbrella — Arts Academy @ Estrella Mountain. The Corporate Board voted
unanimously to expand the campus through additional bond financing adding a potential 243 more students for fiscal year
2013. A waiting list for all grades, particularly sixth through eighth, supports the decision to expand and will allow the upper
and lower grades to have their own learning environment on campus. A recruiting team has been created to promote
additional enrolliment. Currently, as of April 26, 2012, the school's ADM is 844 and is experiencing positive cash flow. With the
new bond in fiscal year 2013, the school is analyzing the costs for future years and is working to have a plan in place to make
it a positive and healthy school. With the change in staff and management, and the new policies and procedures that have
been put in place to promote accountability and sustainability both financially and academically, the school will continue
towards positive growth.
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PLC CHARTER SCHOOLS PURCHASING PROCEDURES

All PLC Charter School employees shall follow these purchasing procedures for the
procurement of goods and services. These procedures provide tracking for all purchases
and help maintain control for budgetary purposes.

A Purchase Requisition form shall be completed for all purchases and submitted to the
Business Office.

All Purchase Requisition Forms must be completed and submitted to the PLC Business
Office with the following information:

Vendor Name

Vendor Contact Information

Complete Description of Items

Funding Source (M&O, Title I, IDEA, etc.)

Line Item Totals, Shipping & Handling, Tax & Grand Total
Name of Person Ordering

Order Quote/Registration Forms/Supporting Documentation

All Purchase Requisitions need to be pre-approved in writing by two staff members in the
PLC Business Office. Furthermore, all purchases will need to be done with a purchase
order, check or charge account to avoid employee reimbursements.

e The PLC Business Office will be responsible for reviewing all purchase
requisitions to verify that they are appropriate and are allowable grant
expenditures (if applicable).

Orders may take one to three weeks for processing, depending on vendor availability of
product. For this reason, employees are advised to plan ahead to ensure items/services are
received timely.

If the item(s) ordered are fixed assets, the Purchase Requisition form will indicate that the
item(s) must be tagged with sequentially numbered inventory asset labels upon receipt.

04/17/2011 (Rev. 1) Page 1
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PLC Charter Schools
Corporate Offices
2504 S. 91st Ave, Tolleson, AZ 85353
Phone: (623) 474-2120  Fax: (623) 936-5337

www.plecharterschools.org

Monday, April 2nd, 2012 at 5:15pm
Meeting for PLC Corporate Board
Phone Conference: 623-474-2138

Present: Kim Steele (Vice President, “KS”), Sam Tomlin (Chairman, “ST”), Agnes Lawson (Board
Member, “AL”)
Absent: Cathie Devers (Board Member, “CD"), Jessica Finley (Scribe)

ST called the meeting to order at 5:15pm and verified a quorum.

AGENDA ITEMS:
1. Discussion and action to sign the 2012 Bond Documents.

A The Amended and Restated Resolution was sent to each board member before the meeting. KS
made a correction in the first paragraph: it states the date of April 2, 2011; the date needs to
be changed to year 2012. ST made a correction on the signature line: it shows secretary, Agnes
Lawson, as the treasurer. Both corrections were crossed out, changed and initialed by AL.

A KS made a motion to approve Sam Tomlin to sign the bond documents for the 2012 Bond
series. Seconded by AL.

> No discussion.
A Motion passed unanimously.

2. Meeting adjourned at 5:42pm.
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I Anthony Lorenzo, CPA
Or enz Ol PLC Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Certified Public Accountant Member of Arizona State Society of Certified Public Accountants

March 9, 2012

P.L.C. Charter Schools
Attention: Beth Gasperone
4039 E. Raymond St. #3
Phoenix, AZ 85040

Dear Beth,

P.L.C. Charter Schools’ audit for the year ending June 30, 2011 is now complete. The following
items’ are enclosed for your records:

> Financial Statements including the Independent Auditor’s Report, and Single Audit
Reporting Package. (3 copies)

» Arizona State Board for Charter Schools Legal Compliance Questionnaire. (1 copy)
Additionally, we have included our letter addressed to those charged with governance. That
letter is a required communication in accordance with Statement on Auditing Standards No.

114. Please distribute the letter to the Board of Directors at the next board meeting.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you, and look forward to working with you
again. Have a great school year.

Sincerely,

Lorenzo, PLC

An‘Hw‘ml ?me P

Anthony Lorenzo, CPA
Managing Member

Enc

1450 W. Guadalupe Rd,, Suite 111 ¢ Gilbert, AZ85233 ¢ Ph:480.644.1097 ¢ Fax:480.644.9405






Anthony Lorenzo, CPA

or enzo, PLC | Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Certified Public Accountant Member of Arizona State Society of Certified Public Accountants
March 9, 2012
To the Governing Board

P.L.C. Charter Schools

We have audited the financial statements of P.L.C. Charter Schools for the year ended June 30,
2011, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2012. Professional standards require
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information to you in our
engagement letter dated November 4, 2011. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by P.L.C. Charter Schools are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing
policies was not changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We noted no transactions
entered into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate
affecting the financial statements was the estimate of useful lives of fixed assets.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

The disclosure of notes payable to IDA in Note 7 to the financial statements with an
aggregate maturity balance of $10,540,462 on June 30, 2011.

The disclosure of related party transactions in Note 9 and subsequent events in Note 12.

1450 W. Guadalupe Rd, Suite 111 e Gilbert, AZ 85233 ¢ Ph:480.644.1097 ¢ Fax: 480.644.9405






Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. The material misstatements listed in the attached schedule were detected as a
result of our audit procedures and were corrected by management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. '

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 10, 2012.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors.

However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquires of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.






This information is intended solely for the use of the Governing Board and management of P.L.C.
Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Very Truly Yours,
LORENZO, PLC
fntheny Wotyy

Anthony Lorenzo, CPA
Managing Member
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I Anthony Lorenzo, CPA
OrenZO, PLC Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Certified Public Accountant Member of Arizona State Society of Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
P.L.C. Charter Schools

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of P.L.C. Charter Schools (School) as of June
30, 2011, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the School’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

In our obinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respécts, the financial
position of P.L.C. Charter Schools as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10, 2012, on
our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and

should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and the accompanying supplemental schedules of the debt service coverage ratio,
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Industrial Development Authority of the County
of Pima, and the statement of activities by location, requested by management, are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

d/ow)}o, Pee
Lorenzo, PLC
Gilbert, Arizona
February 10, 2012
1450 W. Guadalupe Rd,, Suite 111 * Gilbert, A; 85233 ¢ Ph:480.644.1097 ¢ Fax: 480.644.9405






P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (including
cash held by trustee of $406,825)
Due from Government
Accounts receivable
Due from related parties
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salary and benefits
Capital leases payable-current portion
Note payable to IDA-current portion
Notes payable-current portion

Total Current Liabilities

Capital leases payable-less current portion
Note payable to IDA-less current portion
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Unrestricted:
Undesignated
Designated for Classroom site fund
Temporarily Restricted:
Extracurricular activities
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 088,843

72,306
6,605
61,075
80,417
1,209,246

9,451,842

_$10,661,088_

$ 14,615
171,532
15,952
185,000
5,601
392,700

25,833

10,540,462
10,958,995

(336,828)
8,026

29,995

(297,907)

$ 10,661,088

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2011

Temporarily
REVENUES Unrestricted Restricted Total
State equalization $ 5,678,025 5,678,025
Classroom site fund 240,155 240,155
Instructional improvement fund 39,066 39,066
State and Federal grants 873,457 873,457
Contributions 26,622 26,622
Student activities and events 91,041 91,041
Extracurricular tax credit 19,708 19,708
Rental income 15,439 15,439
Food service sales 16,013 16,013
Miscellaneous 96,065 96,065
Total Revenue and Other Support 7,075,883 19,708 7,095,591
EXPENSES
Program services 6,445,889 7,755 6,453,644
Management and general 372,795 372,795
Total Expenses 6,818,684 7,755 6,826,439
Increase in Net Assets 257,199 11,953 269,152
Beginning Net Assets (Deficit) {585,101) 18,042 (567,059)
Ending Net Assets (Deficit) (327,902) 29,995 (297,907)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets S 269,152

Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net
Cash provided/(used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 497,069
(Increase) in due from State (22,879)
(Increase) in accounts receivable (3,937)
(Increase) in due from related parties (27,225)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses (33,994)
Decrease in security deposit 17,535
(Decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses (142,767)
(Decrease) in deferred revenue (11,220)
(Decrease) in compensated absences (30,422)
(Decrease) in accrued payroll and related expenses (93,049)
Net cash provided by operating activities 418,263

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (16,159)

Net cash (used) by investing activities (16,159)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net repayments on credit card payable (2,487)
Repayments on capital lease payable (31,556)
Repayments on notes payable (15,294)
Repayments on note payable to IDA (171,575)
Net cash (used) by operating activities (220,912)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 181,192
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 807,651
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 988,843

Supplemental data:
Noncash capital and financing activities:
Equipment acquired through capital lease payable
Interest paid

33,774
788,815

@~ P

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

P.L.C. Charter Schools (School) is an Arizona not-for-profit corporation. The School was
established in 2002 to operate a charter school whose mission is to teach students the content
areas of education in a nurturing, family-oriented, safe, and drug free environment. The School
operates under a charter contract with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, which
mandates policy and operational guidelines. The School provides educational services in
Phoenix, Arizona to approximately 1,070 students in kindergarten through eighth grades, and is
funded primarily through its sponsor, based on student membership.

The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the usefulness of the
financial statements to the reader.

Financial Statement Presentation — The School presents these financial statements in accordance
with the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC)
958-205, Not-for-Profit Entities, Presentation of Financial Statement. This Statement establishes
standards for general purpose external financial statements provided by a not-for-profit
organization. Those financial statements include a statement of financial position, a statement of
activities, and a statement of cash flows.

Under this codification, net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based
on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. Accordingly net assets of the School
and changes therein are classified and reported as unrestricted, temporarily, or permanently
restricted net assets. Unrestricted net assets are not subject to donor imposed restrictions.
Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to donor imposed restrictions that may or will be met
either by actions of the School and/or the passage of time. Permanently restricted net assets are
subject to donor imposed restrictions that will be maintained permanently by the School.
Generally, the donors of permanently restricted assets allow the School to use all or part of the
income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes.

Donor Imposed Restrictions — All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use
unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods
or restricted by the domor for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or
permanently restricted support that increases those net asset classes. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same time period in which the contribution is received, the School reports that
support as unrestricted. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified
to unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from

restrictions.






P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Donated Services — The School receives donated services throughout the year from unpaid
volunteers. In accordance with FASB ASC 958-605-25-16, if donated services received (1)
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) require specialized skills, are performed by people
with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the School, the donated services are
recognized as contributions. No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for
donated services since they do not meet the criteria for recognition.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered cash

equivalents.

Property and Equipment — Land, buildings, and improvements with a cost of $3,000 or more and
vehicles, furniture and equipment with both a cost of $300 or more, except textbooks and other
classroom furniture with a cost of over $20, and an estimated useful life of one year or more are
capitalized. Assets are stated at cost. Depreciation of furniture and equipment is provided on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives of the respective assets.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The School places its cash with high quality financial institutions.
At times, such cash may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits.

Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Tax Status — The School is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and from state income taxes under A.R.S. §43-1201, and is not
classified as a private foundation. Accordingly, there are no income taxes reflected on the
Statement of Financial Position or the Statement of Activities.






P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in bank - The School maintains all of its cash with two financial institutions. The carrying
amount of deposits was $582,018 and the bank balance was $655,461 at June 30, 2011. As of
June 30, 2011, the entire $655,461 was covered by federal depository insurance.

Cash held by trustee — As of June 30, 2011, the School maintained cash held by trustee totaling
$406,825. The cash held by trustee is for operating reserves to cover any short term interruptions
in revenue. The cash held by trustee is uninsured and uncollateralized.

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following:

Land $ 792,161
Buildings and building improvements 10,082,118
Furniture and equipment 752,743
Textbooks 340,877
Total property and equipment 11,967,899
Amortization and accumulated depreciation 2,516,057
Property and equipment, net $ 9,451,842

Amortization and depreciation expense related to property and equipment was $497,069 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.





P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Compliance — The School’s compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review by
the State Board for Charter Schools, the State of Arizona, Office of the Auditor General and
Department of Education. Such reviews could result in an adjustment of state equalization

assistance

Litigation — The School is contingently liable for claims and judgments that may result from
lawsuits incidental to the normal operation of a school. In the opinion of the School’s
management, the School’s insurance coverage is adequate to cover any potential claims relating
to normal operations and decisions that might adversely impact the School, and would not have a
material effect on the financial statements. As of the date of this report, no claims or potential
claims and judgments have been identified. Accordingly, no provision for possible losses is
reflected in the financial statements.

Operating lease — The School leases buildings and equipment under the provisions of long-term
lease agreements classified as operating leases. Rental expense under the operating leases for the
year ended June 30, 2011, totaled $333,964, which is equal to the required payments. As of June
30, 2011, the total remaining payments under the noncancelable operating leases were as follows:

Fiscal vear ending June 30:

2012 $ 208,283
2013 209,382
2014 201,530
Total $ 619,195

See Note 12 for disclosure regarding the assignment of the building lease effective Julyl, 2011.

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE

The School has acquired copiers under the provisions of long-term lease agreements classified as
capital leases for accounting purposes due to the net present value of the minimum lease
payments exceeding 90% of the fair market value of the assets. Accordingly, the original cost of
the leased assets totaling $95,074 has been capitalized as fixed assets. Amortization expense
totaled $12,260 for the year ended June 30, 2011, and is included in depreciation expense, and
accumulated amortization totaled $37,291 as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The future
minimum lease payments under the lease, together with the present value of the net minimum
lease payments at June 30, 2011, are as follows:

10





P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE (CONT’D)

Maturities of the lease payable are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30:

2012 $ 20,914

2013 13,800

2014 13,800

2015 4,600

Total minimum lease payments 53,114
Less amount representing interest (11,329)

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments 41,785
Less current portion (15,952)

$ 25,833

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description — The School contributes to a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health care plan; and a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit long-term disability plan, all of which are
administered by the Arizona State Retirement System. The Arizona State Retirement System
(through its Retirement Fund) provides retirement (i.e., pension), death, and survivor benefits; the
Health Benefit Supplement Fund provides health insurance premium benefits (i.e., a monthly
subsidy); and the Long-Term Disability Fund provides long-term disability benefits. Benefits are
established by state statute. The System is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System
Board according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.

The System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The most recent report may be obtained by writing the
System, 3300 North Central Avenue, P.O. Box 33910, Phoenix, AZ 85067-3910 or by calling
(602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - RETIREMENT PLAN (CONT’D)

Funding Policy — The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan members’
and the School’s contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2011, active plan members were
required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.85% (9.60% for retirement
and 0.25% for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered payroll and the School was
required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.85% (9.01% for
retirement, 0.59% for health insurance premium, and 0.25% for long-term disability) of the
members’ annual covered payroll. The School’s contributions to the System for the years ended
June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $307,983, $304,773 and $254,065, respectively, which were
equal to the required contributions for each year.

NOTE 7 - NOTE PAYABLE TO IDA

Education Revenue Bonds - The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Pima (IDA)
issued tax-exempt Education Revenue Bonds (Bonds) under an Indenture of Trust dated as of
April 12, 2006. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the School for the purpose of financing
the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating and/or equipping educational facilities for the
borrower; paying the issuance costs of the bonds; and establishing reserves equal to one year’s
maximum debt service to be used in the event of default.

Loan Agreement - The School is obligated to the IDA under its respective Loan Agreement and
promissory note to make payments sufficient to pay the principal, premium, and interest on its
loan; and to pay its share of ongoing costs.

The School has pledged substantially all of its revenues in order to meet its obligations under the
Loan Agreement and promissory note. The primary revenues of the School are state equalization
assistance, which are statutorily owed by the State to the School based on student enrollment.
The School has irrevocably directed the State to make its monthly state equalization payments
directly to the trustee of the bonds so long as any of its obligations under the Loan Agreement
remain outstanding and unsatisfied. The trustee of the bonds calculates and retains the amount
due under the Loan Agreement and remits the remaining state equalization payments to the
School.

The Loan Agreement and promissory note remain in force until either all payments required by
the promissory note have been paid or there are sufficient monies in the reserve funds to redeem

all outstanding bonds.
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 7 - NOTE PAYABLE TO IDA (CONT’D)

Reserve Funds — The reserve funds are held in trust solely for the benefit of the bondholders. The
School has no legal, equitable, or reversionary right to the reserve funds. In the event of default
of the loan agreement by the School, amounts held in the reserve funds and any proceeds from the

sale of collateral will be used to satisfy/repay the promissory note.

If at any time the amount in the reserve funds exceeds the aggregate principal amount of bonds
outstanding plus any redemption premium, the reserve funds will be used to redeem all
outstanding bonds and, accordingly, the School’s obligation under the Loan Agreement and
promissory note ceases. Therefore, the School’s initial and continuing contributions to the
reserve funds are accounted for as prepayments of its promissory note payable to the IDA.

Promissory note payable to the IDA in monthly installments

ranging from $67,582 to $79,353 through April 1, 2036

with an interest rate ranging from 6.00% to 6.75%,

collateralized by cash held by trustee, land and buildings. $ 11,685,000

11,685,000
Less amount held in reserve funds. (959,538)

10,725,462

Less current portion (185,000)

$ 10,540,462

Interest expense under the promissory note for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $780,460.

The aggregate maturities of the note payable to the IDA as of June 30, 2011, were as follows:

Maturities
Year ending June 30:

2012 $ 185,000

2013 195,000

2014 205,000

2015 220,000

2016 235,000
Thereafter 10,645,000

$ 11,685,000

13





P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 8 - NOTE PAYABLE

The School had the following note payable outstanding at June 30, 2011.

$23,000 note payable to a corporation, with an interest
rate of 8%, secured by buildings.

Total

Maturities of the notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal vear ending June 30:
2012

Total

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

5,601

5,601

5,601

5,601

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School had the following transactions with related

parties:

A business owned by a member of the board of directors was paid $24,551 for providing

contracted administrators to the School. The board member served as a contracted
principal/administrator. No balance remained payable as of June 30, 2011.

The School is related to another not-for-profit charter school through common board
members. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School paid $61,075 in startup costs

for the related organization to begin operations effective July 2011. The entire balance of

$61,075 remains outstanding as of June 30, 2011, and is presented as due from related

party on the Statement of Financial Position.
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 10 - DESIGNATED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Classroom Site Fund — In June of 2000, the Arizona Legislature created a Classroom Site Fund
(CSF) to be administered by the Arizona Department of Education (ADE). The CSF was created
to provide funding to school districts and charter schools for designated purposes. The measure
(Proposition 301) was approved by the voters of Arizona and was implemented after May 31,
2001. Proposition 301 authorizes the State to levy and collect 0.60% sales tax for educational
purposes. The ADE administers and allocates CSF funds to the School based on student count
and other factors specified by statute. The School must allocate funding from CSF according to
the following statutory parameters:

e 40% of the funds must be used for performance based teacher compensation increases
and teacher employment related expenses;

e  40% of the funds must be used for maintenance and operations purposes including class-
size reduction, teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs, teacher
development, dropout prevention programs, and teacher liability insurance premiums;

o 20% of the funds must be used for teacher base salary increases and employment related
expenses.

The CSF funds are nonreverting; therefore unspent monies at fiscal year end may be used in
future years. However restrictions placed on the original allocation of revenues apply in future
years. Therefore the unexpended balance must be carried forward in each of the three categories.

NOTE 11 - CONCENTRATIONS

The School receives a substantial amount of its support from the state government agencies of
Arizona. If the State and its agencies significantly reduced the level of support provided to the
School it would have a material effect on the School's operations. Management is aware of the
concentration and its potential impact. If any reduction did occur, management would take action

as appropriate to limit the effect on its programs.

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 10, 2012, and that date corresponds
with the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective July 1, 2011, the School ceased operating the Scottsdale campus, and it is currently
being operated by a related not-for-profit organization. The building lease (Note 4) for the
campus has been assigned to the related organization. Therefore, the future minimum lease
payments, included in Note 4, for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 of
$199,411, $209,382, and $201,530, respectively, are no longer obligations of P.L.C. Charter

Schools.
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I Anthony Lorenzo, CPA
Orenzo, PLC Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Certified Public Accountant Member of Arizona State Society of Certified Public Accountants
Report on Control Over cial Re
Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit of Fi tements

Perfo! in rdance with Govern t Auditi

Board of Directors
P.L.C. Charter Schools

We have audited the financial statements of P.L.C. Charter Schools (School), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2012. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material

weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Métters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported under Government Auditing Standards. :
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Board of Directors
P.L.C. Charter Schools

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors, management, the
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and the State of Arizona, Department of Education, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

K, Pee

Lorenzo, PLC
Gilbert, Arizona
February 10, 2012





Anthony Lorenzo, CPA

- Orenzor PLC Member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Certified Public Accountant Member of Arizona State Society of Certified Public Accountants

Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect
on Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance

in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

Board of Directors
P.L.C. Charter Schools

Compliance
We have audited P.L.C. Charter Schools (School) compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The School’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the School’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audit of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about P.L.C.
Charter School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of P.L.C. Charter Schools’ compliance with

those requirements.

In our opinion, P.L.C. Charter Schools complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal

programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of P.L.C. Charter School’s internal control over

compliance.

1450 W. Guadalupe Rd,, Suite 111 * Gilbert, AZ85233 ¢ Ph: 480.644.1097 « Fax: 480.644.9405






Board of Directors
P.L.C. Charter Schools

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of P.L.C. Charter Schools, the
School’s board of directors, the Arizona Department of Education, and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

ﬁfma, Pre

Lorenzo, PLC
Gilbert, Arizona
February 10, 2012
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30, 2011
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title Number Grantor’s Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education

Passed through the Arizona Department of Education

Special Education Cluster
IDEA-Education of Children with Disabilities-Part B,

Sec 611 84.027A H027A100007 $ 147,895
IDEA Special Ed Recovery Act 84.391 H391A090007 50,648
Total Special Education Cluster 198,543

Title Il Cluster '
Title Il Part D — Enhancing Ed Thru Technology 84.318X S$318X090003 1,810
Education Technology State Grants (ARRA) 84.386 S386A090003 664
Total Title 1l Cluster 2,474
ARRA State Fiscal Stabilization Fund Distribution 84.394 ISA GOER-FY2010-506-E 57,167
ARRA Education Jobs Fund 84.410* ISA OER-11-1SA-EJ-001 216,390
Title I-A Improving Basic Programs 84.010* S010A090003 350,728
Title II-A - Improving Teacher Quality 84.367A S$367A090049 24,500
Title lll English Language Acquisition 84.365A S$365A090003 33,853
Total U.S. Department of Education 883,655
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 883,655

*

Denotes a major program

See accompanying notes to schedule
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
P.L.C. Charter Schools, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

NOTE 2 - Cluster of Programs

OMB Circular A-133 defines a cluster of programs as a grouping of closely related federal programs that
share common compliance requirements. A cluster of programs is considered one program for
determining major programs. The following programs were considered a cluster for the purposes of our

audit.

Program CFDA #
Title 1I Cluster
Title I1 Part D-Enhancing Ed Thru Technology 84.318X
Education Technology State Grants (ARRA) 84.386
Special Education Cluster
IDEA-Education of Children with Disabilities-Part B, Sec 611 84.027A
IDEA Special Ed Recovery Act 84.391
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Were significant deficiencies disclosed
by the audit of the financial statements? NO
Is any significant deficiency in internal control a material weaknesses? NO
Any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements? NO
FEDERAL AWARDS
Were significant deficiencies in internal control over major
programs disclosed by the audit of the financial statements? NO
Is any significant deficiency reported for
any major program a material weaknesses? NO
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed which are required to be
reported under OMB Circular A-133 (§ .510(a))? NO
Major program:
Program CFDA#
Title I-A Improving Basic Programs 84.010
ARRA Education Jobs Fund 84.410
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Low risk auditee? NO
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL REPORTING
REFERENCE: 2010 C-1
AUDIT YEAR: JUNE 30, 2010

CONDITION

Not unlike other not-for-profit organizations of similar size, the School does not have the ability to
prepare financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), or
review them in order to prevent or detect misstatements. Consequently, the School did not have adequate
controls and procedures in place to ensure accurate financial reporting. The following accounting errors

were identified:

1. Accrued payroll of $35,993 related to classroom site fund performance pay was not accrued as of
June 30, 2010.

2. Interest earned on cash with trustee of $33,235 was not recorded. Additionally, interest expense
was understated by that same amount. The trustee nets the interest earned with the interest
expense, thereby reducing the cash payment PLC needs to make to the trustee. This noncash

transaction which occurs monthly was not recorded.
3. Purchases of multiple equipment items totaling $40,339 were capitalized as assets that did not
meet the School’s capitalization policy threshold.

STATUS
Corrected
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P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO
JUNE 30, 2011

Total Bonds
Debt Service (Fiscal Year 2010-2011)

Pledged Revenues
State Assistance
Federal/State Grants
Contributions
Preschool/before and after care
Food service sales
Rentals
School activities
Miscellaneous

Total Pledged Revenues

General Operating Expenses
Program Services
Management and General
Total Operating Expenses
Less Debt Service Interest
Less Depreciation and Amortization
Net Operating Expenses
Net Income Available for Debt Service

Divided by Debt Service

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

25

$ 12,325,000
955,460

5,957,246
873,457
26,622
4,320
16,013
15,439
91,041
91,745

7,075,883

6,445,889

372,795

6,818,684
(780,460)

(497,069)

5,541,155

1,534,728
955,460

1.61





REVENUES
State equalization
Classroom site fund

Instructional improvement fund

State and Federal grants
Contributions

Student activities and events
Extracurricular tax credit
Rental income

Food service sales
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue and Other Support

EXPENSES
Program services
Management and general
Total Expenses
Increase in Net Assets

Beginning Net Assets (Deficit)

Ending Net Assets (Deficit)

P.L.C. CHARTER SCHOOLS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

JUNE 30, 2011

South Estrella
Mountain Mountain Scottsdaie Administration Total

$ 713,066 $ 4,179,488 $ 785,471 $ 5,678,025
34,708 171,759 33,689 240,155
5,397 28,904 4,764 39,066
124,108 697,147 52,202 873,457
54 4,042 22,526 26,622

2,798 8,878 79,364 91,041

807 5,621 13,280 19,708

- 12,663 2,776 15,439

64 130 15,820 16,013

7,731 10,676 68,658 96,065
888,733 5,128,308 1,078,550 - 7,095,590
903,714 4,349,063 912,028 288,839 6,453,644
13,901 88,712 4,096 266,086 372,795
917,615 4,437,775 916,124 554,925 6,826,439
(28,883) 690,532 162,427 (554,925) 269,152
(567,059)

$ (297,907
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Detailed Business Plan Section Checklist

Charter Holder: P.L.C. Charter Schools (Entity ID 6235)

Each Detailed Business Plan will be reviewed to determine if all of the required elements have been addressed:

Yes — Required element addressed.
No — Required element not addressed.
Not Applicable — Required element not applicable to the charter holder.

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) staff will complete the Detailed Business Plan Section Checklist. The Checklist will be used by
the Board in its consideration of the charter holder’s request for charter renewal. “ No” answers may adversely affect the Board’'s decision

regarding a charter holder’s request for charter renewal.

Il b.1. CHARTER HOLDER’'S ORGANIZATIONAL M EM BERSHIP

Renewal Instructions with fiscal years clearly identified.

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS

o Evidence of the appropriate filings with either the Board, Arizona X
Corporation Commission or both submitted.
Il b.2. CHARTER HOLDER’S FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PART A — RENEWAL BUDGET PLAN

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS
o Completed Renewal Budget Plan submitted. X
o 4 years of financial information provided as required by the X
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o Renewal Budget Plan includes average daily membership (ADM) X The Renewal Budget Plan did not include the

used in each fiscal year and the basis for projected ADM. ADM for fiscal year 2011. According to
Arizona Department of Education (ADE)
reports, the charter holder’s fiscal year 2011
ADM was 1,069.463.

The fiscal year 2012 ADM included in the
Renewal Budget Plan is in line with ADE
reports. The charter holder experienced an
approximately 21% decrease in ADM from
fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2012. During
this period the charter holder decreased the
number of sites that it was operating from
three to one. For fiscal year 2013, the charter
holder has built its projections based on ADM
growth of approximately 27%. The Renewal
Budget Plan assumptions and Financial
Sustainability Narrative attribute the growth to
expansion of the campus in fiscal year 2013.
The narrative states, “ A waiting list for all
grades, particularly sixth through eighth,
supports the decision to expand and will allow
the upper and lower grades to have their own
learning environment on campus.” For fiscal
year 2012, the Renewal Budget Plan includes
$3,475 in the advertising/marketing line item.
This line item increases to $4,000 for fiscal
year 2013.

The charter holder’s current enrollment cap is
1,300. For more information about the charter
holder's ADM history, please see the
“Viability of the Organization” section of the
Renewal Executive Summary.

o Assumptions provided for key components of the Renewal Budget X Assumptions were not provided for the
Plan, including the basis for all projected revenue line items used. Instructional Improvement Fund, Federal
Funds/Grants, Extracurricular Tax Credits and

Contribution and Donations line items.
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Increases or decreases of 10% or more in the “ total expenses” X

line item from year to year in the Renewal Budget Plan are

explained in the “ Assumptions/Notes” section.

Each “ Other” line item used is explained in the X

“Assumptions/Notes” section to specify what is included.

For those required to submit the Academic Performance Section of X The charter holder began implementing its

the renewal application, the charter holder’s previous two audits performance management plan (PMP) in

and the Renewal Budget Plan demonstrate the charter holder has fiscal year 2012. In the first year, the PMP

the financial capacity to implement the “ budget” as detailed in the ﬁ:ﬁg:;e‘"’tis $$1;%3é%%6i'nzmizue%%itdv;ggr and

Academic Performance Section. drop slightly to $149,965 in the third year.
It is not readily clear whether the charter
holder has the financial capacity to implement
its PMP. To the extent that the projected
ADM s realized, then the charter holder could
generate sufficient equalization to be able to
implement the PMP.

Renewal Budget Plan is mathematically correct. X Taking into account rounding issues, the

Renewal Budget Plan is mathematically
correct.

Il b.2. CHARTER HOLDER’S FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

PART B — FINANCIAL SUSTAI

NABILITY NARRATIVE

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS
For those required to complete the renewal application’s “ Charter X
Holder’s Financial Sustainability” section because at least one of
the two previous audits identified a going concern or identified
negative net assets or negative members’/stockholders’ equity at
year end, a narrative is provided.
Narrative does not exceed one page in length. X While the charter holder submitted a cover

page with its narrative, the narrative itself did
not exceed one page in length.
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o Narrative explains the charter holder’s current financial situation. X

o Narrative includes the specific steps the charter holder has already X
taken to improve its financial situation and ensure the continued
financial sustainability of the charter school(s).

o Evidence provided that supports each of the steps already taken by X
the charter holder to improve its financial situation and ensure the
continued financial sustainability of the charter school(s).

TOTAL (Sections Il b.1, Il b.2 Part A, and Il b.2 Part B) 11

Check one (required):

1 MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS

DOES NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS (One or more applicable “ Required Elements” received a “No” .)

Board Staff Review Date: June 26, 2012

(All applicable “ Required Elements” received a “ Yes” .)
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Comparison Schools

Selection of schools: Schools were selected based on grade levels served, proximity, and availability
of data.

e Grade levels served — schools serving grades in common with the selected school site were
included.
Example: If the selected school serves grades K-8, a K-3 and a 5-12 school would be listed. In
the case of a K-12 school as the selected site, both elementary (K-8) schools and high schools
(9-12) are included.

e Proximity — charter and district schools located within a two mile radius were included. If fewer
than four school sites were located within a two mile radius, the distance was increased until at
least four schools were located or a radius of 15 miles was reached. If the selected site is not an
alternative school, alternative schools may be included in the list but do not count toward the
four school minimum to be listed. If fewer than four schools were located within a 15 mile radius,
the list consists only of schools within that 15 mile radius.

¢ Availability of data — Additional information regarding specific data elements is included below.
Schools that did not have current academic data for proficiency and growth, but met the criteria
of inclusion based on grade levels served and proximity, were not included in the list.

Number of Students: Enroliment information is based on the October 1, 2010 student count reported
to the Arizona Department of Education.

Free/Reduced Lunch Eligible: Student eligibility percentages are provided by the school’s enroliment
information. Data is from the 2010-2011 school year.

Grades Served: Grade levels served are based on 2010-11 school year data as reported to the
Arizona Department of Education.

AZ LEARNS Label: Legacy and letter grade labels are based on the Arizona Department of
Education’s Accountability System for the 2010-11 school year.

Math and Reading Proficiency on AIMS: Proficiency is determined by the percentage of students
earning a score of “Meets” or “Exceeds” on the math or reading portion of Arizona’s Instrument to
Measure Standards (AIMS) tests in 2011 as reported by the Arizona Department of Education.

Math and Reading Median Growth Percentile: The median growth percentile is the median percentile
of all students in the school with AIMS and Stanford 10 test data, and shows if a school has high,
typical or low student growth. Growth percentiles are calculated for all third- through tenth-grade
students who took the AIMS test and second and ninth-grade students who took the Stanford 10 test.
This model looks at the student’s progress over a number of years compared to their academic peers.
Growth Percentile scores are calculated by the Association and are based on 2010-11 AIMS and
Stanford 10 test scores.
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School Comparison - Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain

2504 S. 91st Ave.| 21505 87th | 89s0w. minist. | 19207 W. g150 w, Durango| 3850 South 7oth | Soos - Van
Address Country Place . ; Buren St.
Tolleson Ave. Tolleson Tolleson Phoenix Ave. Phoenix
Blvd. Tolleson Tolleson
School Type Charter District District District District District District
Distance from . . . . . .
N/A .61 mi .84 mi 1.32 mi 1.35 mi 1.57 mi 1.93 mi
Charter Holder
Number of Students 919 883 742 809 617 650 416
Free/Reduced Lunch 70% 57% 62% 82% 82% 79% 79%
Eligible
Grades Served K-8 K-8 K-6 K-8 K-5 K-5 K-8

AZ Learns Label

Performing Plus

Performing Plus

Performing Plus

Performing Plus

Performing Plus

Performing Plus

Performing Plus

AZ Learns A-F C C B B C B B
Math Proficiency 56.3 44.2 68 48.1 63.2 65.7 65.8
Math gefgéarﬂiimwrh 49.0 Typical 50.0 Typical 67.0 High 58.5 Typical 49.0 Typical 64.0 Typical 57.5 Typical
Reading Proficiency 76.5 64.8 74.9 69 67.3 74.7 73
Reading Median 49.0 Typical 45.0 Typical 61.5 Typical 57.0 Typical 45.0 Typical 53.0 Typical 51.0 Typical

Growth Percentile
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P.L.C. Charter Schools - Entity ID 6235
School: Arts Academy at Estrella M ountain

Renewal Executive Summary

Sources of Evidence for this Document

Pursuant to A.R.S. 15-183.1, a charter may be renewed for successive periods of twenty years.
The Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) has established a process for the renewal
of a charter that is based on affirmative evidence in three areas:

I. Success of the academic program, including academic achievement
II. Viability of the organization, including fiscal management and compliance
lll. Adherence to the terms of the charter, including contract and legal compliance

Evaluation of the charter holder's success in these three areas is based on a variety of
information that will serve as sources of evidence in determining renewal of a charter. These
sources include, but are not limited to:

e Pupil achievement data
Independent financial audits
Five-year interval summary reviews
Site visit reports

Monitoring reports

Application package for renewal

Profile
P.L.C. Charter Schools operates one school serving grades K-8.

Graphs displaying the academic achievement for the past five years, if available, are provided
on the next page.
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I. Success of the Academic Program

The academic performance of the school operated by the charter holder did not meet or
demonstrate sufficient progress toward the Board’s level of adequate academic performance.
Therefore, the charter holder was required to submit a Performance Management Plan in the
academic section of the renewal application and to complete the Renewal Budget Plan.

On April 26", the charter holder submitted the PMP narrative, templates, and oversight
documentation.

A leadership team discussion took place on June 19 at the school site with Kim Steele
(CEO/Charter Representative), Ron Alexander (Director of Education), Elizabeth Gasperone
(Business Director), Ruben Ruiz (Site Director), and Enrique Duron (Finance Director). The
information provided by the leadership team supported the Performance Management Plan
narrative and templates submitted, including creating a mentoring program for new teachers,
establishing a curriculum committee comprised of teachers and the site administrator that will
assist in the implementation of the math and reading curriculum, and determining professional
development based upon needs identified during classroom observations. The leadership team
anticipates that the school will see an increase in enrollment for 6"-8" grades because parents
in the surrounding area see the school as a safe option for students.

Required submissions for the Academic Performance Section and the Renewal Budget Plan, as
well as the applicable evaluation instrument and checklist, are included in the charter holder’s
portfolio. The evaluation instrument completed by staff identifies whether the required
information provided included a Full Description, a Partial Description, or a Very Limited
Description. The checklist completed by staff identifies whether the required elements of the
Detailed Business Plan were addressed.

1. Viability of the Organization

Because the charter holder’s fiscal years 2009 and 2010 audits identified negative net assets at
year-end, the charter holder was required to complete the Renewal Budget Plan and submit the
Financial Sustainability Narrative and supporting evidence. Required submissions for the charter
holder’s Financial Sustainability portion of the Detailed Business Plan Section of the application
and the applicable checklist are included in the charter holder’s portfolio. The checklist
completed by staff identifies whether the required elements of the Detailed Business Plan
were addressed.

The graph below shows the charter holder’s actual 100" day average daily membership (ADM)
for fiscal years 2007 through 2011, the fiscal year 2012 ADM as of June 11, 2012 and projected
ADM through 2014. Projections were provided by the charter holder as part of the submitted
Renewal Budget Plan. The ADM included in the Renewal Budget Plan for fiscal year 2012 is in
line with reports available through the Arizona Department of Education’s (ADE) website. The
Renewal Budget Plan did not include the fiscal year 2011 ADM.
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As indicated in the graph above, the charter holder's ADM has fluctuated up and down during
the past six fiscal years. The ADM fluctuation may be attributed, at least in part, to the number
of sites in operation. After three years of operating with two sites, the charter holder added a
third site in fiscal year 2010. The charter holder continued to operate three sites until fiscal year
2012 when the number of sites was reduced to one. The projected ADM included in the
Renewal Budget Plan for fiscal years 2013 and 2014 anticipates growth of approximately 27%
and 8.5%, respectively.

In reviewing the five most recent audits (2007-2011), the charter holder ended each year with
negative net assets ranging from a low of $182,331 in fiscal year 2007 to a high of $939,709
(restated) in fiscal year 2009. While all five financial statements showed a deficit resulting from
liabilities in excess of assets, the charter holder had a positive change in net assets for fiscal
years 2010 and 2011. This resulted is the deficit being reduced from $939,709 (restated) at the
beginning of fiscal year 2010 to $297,907 at the end of fiscal year 2011.The Renewal Budget
Plan projects positive changes in net assets for fiscal years 2012 through 2014. As of June 30,
2011, the charter holder had sufficient cash and other readily available resources [$1,209,246]
to satisfy obligations due within the next year [$392,700]. Further between fiscal years 2009
and 2011, the charter holder’s ending unrestricted cash has grown from $113,983 to $582,018.

In the Financial Sustainability Narrative, the charter holder summarizes events that led to the
charter holder’s current financial situation. Additionally, the narrative discusses the changes in
the number of sites operated by the charter holder under this charter. Further, the charter
holder describes steps taken to improve the financial situation, including staffing changes,
reductions in expenses, changes in internal controls and the closure of one campus at the end
of fiscal year 2011 “ due to declining enroliment and continued financial loss” . The narrative also
addresses the corporate board’s recent vote to expand the campus through additional bond
financing, which adds a potential 243 more students for fiscal year 2013. Related to the
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additional students, the narrative mentions a current wait list at the school and recruitment
efforts.

I1l. Adherence to the Terms of the Charter

A. Compliance Matters Requiring Board or Other Agency Action®

On May 16, 2007, the Arizona Department of Health Services issued a Cease and Desist Order
to SHAPE Education for operating a child care facility without a license. The Order listed the
Arts Academy at Estrella Mountain as a charter operator doing business with SHAPE Education
at the school site. The Order stated that the school facility was not exempt from licensing and
was not in compliance with state law. On June 5, 2007, the school discontinued services with
SHAPE Education.

B. Other Compliance Matters®

The fiscal year 2010 audit identified an issue that required a corrective action plan (CAP).
Specifically, the audit indicated that one non-instructional, night security employee was not
fingerprint checked. The charter holder submitted a satisfactory CAP.

C. Charter Holder’s Organizational Membership

Because the organizational membership on file with the Board was not consistent with the
information on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission, the charter holder was required to
submit the charter holder’s Organizational Membership portion of the Detailed Business Plan
Section. Required submissions for the charter holder’s Organizational Membership portion of
the Detailed Business Plan Section of the renewal application and the applicable checklist are
included in the charter holder’s portfolio.

Board Options

Option 1: The Board may approve the renewal. Staff recommends the following language for
consideration: Renewal is based on consideration of academic, fiscal and contractual
compliance of the charter holder. In this case, there is arecord of academic performance below
the Board'’s level of adequate academic performance, which has been addressed by the charter
holder through the inclusion of a performance management plan as part of the renewal
application package and can be incorporated in the charter contract. There is also a record of
past contractual noncompliance which has been reviewed. With that taken into consideration
as well as all information provided to the Board for consideration of this renewal application
package and during its discussion with representatives of the charter holder, | move to approve
the request for charter renewal and grant a renewal contract to P.L.C. Charter Schools that
incorporates the performance management plan.

! For more information about the areas of compliance reviewed for this section, please see the “Renewal Guide”.
2 For more information about the areas of compliance reviewed for this section, please see the “Renewal Guide”.
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Option 2: The Board may deny the renewal. The following language is provided for
consideration: Based upon areview of the information provided by the representatives of the
charter holder and the contents of the application package which includes the academic
performance, the fiscal compliance, and legal and contractual compliance of the charter holder
over the charter term, | move to deny the request for charter renewal and to not grant a
renewal contract for P.L.C. Charter Schools. Specifically, the charter holder, during the term of
the contract, failed to meet the obligations of the contract or failed to comply with state law
when it:

1. Failed to provide alearning environment that improved pupil achievement in
accordance with A.R.S. § 15-181(A).

2. Other specific reasons the Board may have found during its consideration
including...
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